
VIRGINIA: 

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF FAIRFAX COUNTY 

JOHN C. DEPP, II, 

Plaintiff and Counter-defendant, 

V. Civil Action No.: CL-2019-0002911 

AMBER LAURA HEARD, 

Defendant and Counter-plaintiff. 

DEFENDANT'S EXHIBITS 
SUPPLEMENT AL PLEA IN BAR 





Claim No: QB-2018-006323 

IN THE IDGH COURT OF JUSTICE 
QUEEN'S BENCH DIVISION 

MEDIA AND COMMUNICATIONS LIST 

BETWEEN 

JOHN CHRISTOPHER DEPP II 

and 

(1) NEWS GROUP NEWSPAPERS LTD 

(2) DAN WOOITON 

CORE TRIAL BUNDLE INDEX 

Tab No. Document Date 
(dd/mm/yy) 

Section A: Articles Co~olained Of -

1. Original Online Article: 27.04.18 

'Gone Potty: How can JK Rowling be 
"genuinely happy" casting wife beater 

Johnny Depp in the new Fantastic Beasts 
film?' 

2. Word ve.rsion of Original Online Article 27.04.18 

3. Amended Online Article: 28.04.18 
'Gone Potty: How can JK Rowling be 
"genuinely happy" casting Johnny Depp in 

the new Fantastic Beasts film after assault 
claim?' 

4. Word version of Amended Online Article 28.04.18 

5. Hardcopy Article: 28.04.18 

'Gone Potty: How can JK Rowling be 
"genuinely happy" casting Johnny Depp in 
the new Fantastic Beasts film after assault 
claim?' 

6. Word version ofHardcopy Article 28.04.18 

Section B: Case Documents --

7. Trial Timetable 
8. Agreed Chronology 

1 

22 July 2020 (PM) 

Claimant 

Defendants 

File Page No. 
No. 

I Al-A20 

1 A21-A23 

l A24-A41 

l A42-A44 

1 A47 

l A48-A50 

I Bl 
I B2-B5 

[SCHILLING~Plt.@cw.~I 
Date 1 ·Aa@1 
Judge -.rT-P&A--~--

1 Case 11{!l;L1 ,iq II 



22 July 2020 (PM) 

Tab No. Document Date File Page No. 
(dd/mm/yy) No. 

9. Agreed list of persons involved 1 B6-Bl0 

10. Left Intentionally Blank I Bl I 

11. Left Intentionally Blank I B12 

Section C: Statements of Case, Court Orders, Judgments, Court 
Documents 
Statements of Case 
12. Claim Form 01.06.18 I Cl-C3 

13. Particulars of Claim 13.06.18 I C4-C15 

14. Re-Amended Defence 06.03.20 I Cl6-C29 

15. Re-Amended Reply 25.02.20 I C30-C46 

Relevant Judgments and Orders 
16. Judgment of Nicklin J 27.02.19 l C47-C58 

17. Order of Master McCloud 21.11.18 I C59-C60 

18. Directions Order of Master McCloud 20.06.19 I C61-C66 

19. Order of Master McCloud 14.11.19 1 C67 

20. Consent Order (extension of time re witness 28.11.19 l C68 
statements) 

21. Order of Deputy Master Bard (witness 11.12.19 1 C69-C70 

summaries) 
21(a). Order permitting the Claimant to call Raquel 04.0320 I C70. l-C70.2 

Pennington and Eliz.abeth Marz to be cross-

examined 

22. Pre-Trial Review Directions Order of Nicol J 06.0320 1 C71-C75 

23. Pre-Trial Review Disclosure OrderofNicol J 06.03.20 l C76-C79 

24. Judgment of Nicol J 06.03.20 I C80-C95 

25. Ruling on draft Order ofNicol J 06.03.20 I C96-Cl00 

26. Order ofNicolJ (extension of time) 10.03.20 I Cl01-C102 

26(a). Order of Nicol J (relief from sanctions) 13.03.20 I Cl02.l-

Cl022 

26(b). Consent Order (relief from sanctions) 17.03.20 l Cl02.3-

Cl02.4 

26(b)(i). Draft Order of Nicol J (Dr Blaustein and Dr 18.03.20 I Cl02.4A-

Banks disclosure) Cl02.4C 

26(c). Left Intentionally blank 1 CI02.5-

Cl02.7 

26(d). Order of Nicol J (adjournment) 20.03.20 1 Cl02.8-

Cl02.9 

26(e). Judgment of Nicol J (adjournment) 20.03.20 I Cl02.10-

CI02.13 

26(f). Order of Nicol J (privacy) 08.04.20 I C102. 14-

Cl02.15 
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22 July 2020 (PM) 

Tab No. Document Date File Page No. 
(dd/mm/yy) No. 

26(g). Order ofNicol J (adjournment of 11.05.20 1 Cl02.l6-
Defendants' application to strike out parts of Cl02.l7 
Claimant's witness statements) 

26(h). Judgment of Nicol J (directions hearing and 13.05.20 1 Cl02.18-
additional witness evidence) Cl02.25 

26(bXi). Order of Nicol J (trial bundles) 13.05.20 1 C102.25A 
26(i). Order of Nicol J relating to evidence 18.05.20 l Cl02.26-

( directions hearing) Cl02.28 
26(j). Order ofNicol J (Claimant's additional 28.05.20 1 Cl02.29-

witness costs) Cl02.31 
26(k). Order ofNicol J (Defendants' specific 15.06.20 I Cl02.32-

disclosure costs) Cl02.33 
26()). Judgment of Nicol J (unless order) 29.06.20 I Cl02.34-

Cl02.43 
26(m). Judgment ofNicol J (relief from sanctions 02.07.20 l Cl02.44-

and third-party disclosure) Cl02.57 
26(n). Order of Nicol J (relief from sanctions) 02.07.20 l Cl02.58-

C102.60 
26(0). Order of Nicol J (third party disclosure) 02.07.20 I Cl02.61 
26(p). Direction of Nicol J (permitting Ms Heard to 04.0720 I Cl02.62-

attend court) Cl02.64 
26(q). Consent Order (extension of time) 14.07.20 1 Cl02.65 
Lists of Documents and Questionnaires 
27. Claimant's Form N265 13.09. 19 I Cl03-Cl07 
27(a). Claimant's Form N265 09.0120 l Cl08-CI08.5 
27(b). Claimant's Form N265 13.0320 l Cl08.6-

CI08.8 
27(b)(i). Claimant's Form N265 14.03.20 l Cl08.8A-

Cl08.8C 
27(c). Claimant's Form N265 19.03.20 I Cl08.9-

Cl08.12 

28. Claimant's List of Documents 09.01.20 1 Cl09-Cl 11 

29. Claimant's Supplemental List of Documents 24.01.20 I Cl 12-Cl 13 

30. Claimant's Supplemental List of Documents 29.01.20 I Cl !4-Cl23 
30(a). Claimant's Supplemental Lists of Documents 12.03.20, l Cl23.l-

l4.0320 Cl23.9 
30(b). Claimant's Supplemental List of Documents 20.0320 1 Cl23.10 
30{c). Claimant's Supplemental List of Documents 10.07.20 1 CJ23.l l 

31. First Defendant's Form N265 12.09.19 1 Cl24-Cl26 

31 (a). Second Defendant's Form N265 12.09.19 I Cl27-Cl29 
32. De(endants' List of Documents 12.09.19 I Ci27-Cl53 
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22 July 2020 (PM) 

Tab No. Document Date File Page No. 
{dd/mm/yy) No. 

33. Defendants' Supplemental List of 14.02.20 l Cl54-Cl63 
Documents 

34. Defendants' Supplemental List of 09.03.20 1 Cl64-Cl66 
Documents 

35. Claimant's Listing Questionnaire (Pre-Trial 21.02.20 J Cl67-C170 
Checklist) 

36. Defendants' Listing Questionnaire (Pre-Trial 21.02.20 1 Cl71-Cl73 
Checklist) 

Section D: Claimant's Trial Witness Statements and Hearsay Notice 
37. Left Intentionally Blank 2 Dl-D21 
38. Second Witness Statement of John 12.12.19 2 D22-D66 

Christopher Depp Il together with Exhibit 
JD2 

39. First Witness Statement of Katherine Kendall 12.12.19 2 O67-D69 
40. First Witness Statement of Sean Bett together 12.12.19 2 D70-D76 

with Exhibit SB 1 
41. First Witness Statement of Samantha 12. 12.19 2 O77-D80 

McMillen 
42. First Witness Statement of Kevin Murphy 12.12.19 2 D81-D93 

together with Exhibit KMl 
43. First Witness Statement of Trinity Esparza 12.12.19 2 D94-D103 
44. First Witness Statement of Stephen Deuters 12.12.19 2 D104-D112 

together with Exhibit SD l 
45. First Witness Statement of Edward White 10.12.19 2 DI 13-Dl 16 
45(a). Second Witness Statement of Edward White 18.07.20 2 Dl 16.1-

D116.4 
46. First Witness Statement of Ben King 12.12.19 2 D117-D122 
47. First Witness Statement of Alejandro 12.12.19 2 D123-D128 

Romero 
48. First Witness Statement oflsaac Baruch 12.12.19 2 D129-D139 
49. First Witness Statement of Cornelius Harrell 12.12.19 2 D140-D146 
50. First Witness Statement of Brandon Patterson 12.12.19 2 D147-D153 
51. First Witness Statement of Hilda Vargas 21.02.20 2 D154-D162 

together with Exhibit HVI 
52. First Witness Statement of Travis McGivem 25.02.20 2 Dl63-Dl67 
53. First Witness Statement of Malcolm 25.02.20 2 D168-D172 

Connolly 
54. Third Witness Statement of John Christopher 25.02.20 2 D173-

Depp II together with Exhibit JD3 D185.5 
55. Claimant's Hearsay Notice 20.02.20 2 D186-D187 
56. Witness Statement of Kate James together 05.06.20 2 D188-D209 

with Exhibit KJl 
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22 July 2020 (PM) 

Tab No. Document Date File Page No. 
(dd/mm/yy) No. 

57. Left Intentionally Blank 2 D210-D217 
58. Witness Statement of Vanessa Paradis 07.03.20 2 D218-D221 
59. Witness Statement of Winona Ryder 08.03.20 2 D222-D224 
59(a). Claimant's Hearsay Notice 12.05.20 2 D225-D226 
59(b). Witness Statement of Tara Roberts 11.05.20 2 D227-D232 
59(c). Witness Statement of Starling Jenkins I 1.05.20 2 D233-D237 
59(d). Second Witness Statement of Kevin Murphy 23.0620 2 D237.1-

together with Exlubit KM2 D237.37 
59(e). Second Witness Stateme.ot of Kate James 12.07.20 2 D238-D240 
59(f). Second Witness Statement of Ben King 13.07.20 2 D241-D249 

together with Exhibit B.K2 

Section E: Defendants' Trial Witness Statements, Summaries and -

Hearsay Notices 
60. First Witness Statement of Amber Heard 15.12.19 2 El-E96 

together with Exhibit AHi 
61. First Witness Statement of Whitney 12.12.19 2 E97-E123 

Henriquez together with Exhibit WH 1 
62. First Witness Statement of iO Tillett Wright 12.12.19 2 El24-El46 

together with Exhibit ITW I 
63. First Witness Stateme.nt of Kristina Sexton 04.12.19 2 E147-El64 

64. First Witness Statement of Joshua Drew 12.02.20 2.1 El65-E426i 
together with Exhibit JD 1 
(19.11.2019 deposition of Joshua Drew 

including exhibits) 

65. First Witness Summary of Melanie Inglessis 10.12.19 2.1 E427-E433 
together with Exhibit Ml l 

66. First Witness Summary of Raquel Rose 10.12.19 2.1 E434-E557 
Pennington together with Exhibit RRP I 
(27.05.2016 Declaration of Raquel 

Pennington; and 16.06.2016 and 14.07.2016 

Depositions (excluding exhibits)) 

67. First Witness Summary of Elizabeth Marz 10.12.19 2.1 E558-E585 
together with Exhibit EM! 
(including 15.07.2016 Deposition) 

68. Defenda.nts' Hearsay Notice 16.12.19 2.1 E586-E587 
69. Defendants' Second Hearsay Notice 19.02.20 2.1 E588-E590 
70. Second Witness Statement of Amber Heard 19.02.20 2.1 E591-B596 
71. Third Witness Statement of Amber Heard 26.02.20 2.1 E597-E606 
71.1 Fourth Witness Statement of Amber Heard 19.03.20 2.1 E606A-

E606C 

5 

[SCHILLINGS] 



22 July 2020 (PM) 

Tab No. Document Date File Page No. 
(dd/mm/yy) No. 

71.2 First witness statement of Raquel Pennington 16.06.20 2.1 E606.1-
together with Exhibit RRP2 E606.20 

71.3 Fifth witness statement of Amber Heard 26.06.20 2.1 E606.21-
together with Exhibit AH5 E606.78 

71.4 Letter from Ms Heard to the Hon. Mr Justice 02.07.20 2.1 E606.79 
Nicol 

71.5 Sixth witness statement of Amber Heard 04.07.20 2.1 E606.80-
together E606.88 

71.6 Seventh witness statement of Amber Heard 06.07.20 2.1 E606.89-
E606.93 

Relevant Interlocutory Witness Statements 
7 l(a). Second Witness Statement of Louis 10.12.19 2.1 E607-E621 

Charalambous 
(inc/11ding pages 1 to 3 of Exhibit LC2 only) 

71(b). Third Witness Statement of Lou.is 19.02.20 2.1 E622-E647 
Cbaralambous 

Section F: Disclosure Documents 
- -

- c 

US Divorce & Libel Proceedings Documents: 
Relevant Declarations/Deposition Transcripts/Statements 
All previous relevant Claimant's Depositions and Declarations from US Proceedings where not 
exhibited to a Witness Statement or Summary in these proceedings 
72. Declaration of John Christopher Depp II **.05.19 3 Fl-F6 
72(a). Extract of transcript of deposition of 12.12.18 3 F6.l-F6.10 

Claimant in Bloom Hergott litigation 
73. Declaration oflsaac Baruch 21.01.19 3 F7-F8 

74. Second Declaration of1saac Baruch 21.01.19 3 F9-Fl2 

75. Deposition oflsaac Baruch 20.11.19 3 Fl3.1-Fl3.86 

76. Declaration of Samantha McMillan **.04.19 3 F14-Fl5 

77. Declaration of Kevin Murphy 13.05.19 3 Fl6-F22 

78. Declaration of Sean Bett **.06.** 3 F23-F24 

79. Left intentionally blank 3 F25-F29 

80. Left intentionally blank 3 F30-F31 

81. Draft Declaration of Brandon Patterson sent Undated 3 F32-F32.4H 
to Adam Waldman on 29 January 2019 

82. Declaration of Brandon Patterson Undated 3 F33-F33.6 
(--08.02.19) 

83. Declaration of Jerry Judge **.06.•• 3 F34-F35 

84. Draft declaration of Travis McGivem Undated 3 F36 

85. Left intentionally blank 3 F37-F39 

86. Declaration of Laura Divenere 28.06.19 3 F40-F42 

87. Deposition Transcript of Melissa Saenz 18.07.16 3 F43-F54 
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22 July 2020 (PM) 

Tab No. Document Date File Page No. 
(dd/mm/yy) No. 

88. Deposition Transcript of Officer Tyler 18.07.16 3 F55-F69 
Hadden 

89. Deposition Transcript of Trinity Esparza 19.07.16 3 F70-F81.l l 
90. Deposition Transcript of Trinity Esparza 25.01.19 3 F82-F115 

(Depp II Bloom Hergott) 
91. Deposition Transcript of Alejandro Romero 19.07.16 3 Fl 16-F127 
92. Deposition Transcript of Alejandro Romero 30.01.19 3 Fl28-FJ47 

(Depp v Bloom Hergott) 
93. Respondent's Notice of Deposition of 26.07.16 3 Fl48-F148.4 

Petitioner 
(Exhibit A to Ex Parte Declaration of S 
Klein) 

94. Deposition Transcript of Cornelius Harrell 28.07.16 3 Fl49-Fl60 
95. Deposition Transcript of Cornelius Harrell 31.01.19 3 F161-Fl 77 

(Depp v Bloom Hergott) 
95(a). Declaration of Amanda de Cadenet 18.06.20 3 Fl 77.1-

Fl77.2 

Defendants' relevant Declarations I Depo.sttions in US Proceedings where not exhibited to a 
witness statement or summary in these proceedings 
96. Divorce Declaration of Amber Heard (2016) 26.05.16 3 Fl 78-Fl 8 I 
96(a). Declaration of Samantha Spector 27.05.16 3 Fl81.1-

F181.7 

97. A. Depp's Responsive Declaration 26.07.16 3 F182-
Fl82. l l 

98. Deposition Transcript of Amber Depp -Pa.rt 06.08.16 3 Fl 83-Fl 87 
1 

99. Deposjtion Transcript of Amber Depp - Part 13.08.16 3 Fl88-F305 
2 

100. Left intentionally blank 3 F306-F312 

10 l. Libel Declaration of Amber Heard (2019) 10.04.19 3 F313-F326.4 
(&hibit4) 

102. Declaration of iO Tillett Wright 13.06.16 3 F327-F337 
102(a). Extracts from of the Deposition Transcript of 08.08.16 3 F337. I-

Gaylynn Summerlin F337.5 

103. Draft Declaration of Elizabeth Marz and I 1.07.19- 3 F338-F360 
accompanying emails 08.08.19 
(Exhibits 7 and 8 to Elizabeth Marz 's 
26.11.19 Deposition) 

104. Deposition of Elizabeth Marz 26.11.19 3 F361-F484 
105. Deposition of Kristina Sexton 30.08.19 4 F485-F516 

106. Deposition of Kristina Sexton (redacted) 18.12.19 4 F517-F563 

107. Deposition of Ellen Barkin 22.11.19 4 F564-F575 
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22 July 2020 (PM) 

Tab No. Document Date File Page No. 
(dd/mm/yy) No. 

108. Extracts from the Deposition Transcript of 13.12.19 4 F576-
Lisa Beane, together with Exhibits 2, 3, 4, 5, F640.14 
6 and 9 

Miscellaneous relevant documents relating to US court proceedings (Divorce/Libel) 
109. Amber Heard Divorce Petition 23.05.16 4 F641.1-

F641.4 
1 JO. Johnny Depp Response to Divorce Petition 25.05.16 4 F642.l-

F642.6 
111. Request for Domestic Violence Restraining 27.05.16 4 F643-F676 

Order 
112. Temporary Restraining Order 27.06.16 4 F677-F682 
I 13. Extension of Temporary Restraining Order 16.06.16 4 F683.1-

F683.2 
114. Amber Heard's Exhibit List from Divorce **.08.16 4 F684-F688 

Proceedings 
115. Claimant's Exhibit List from Divorce 08.08.16 4 F689-F693 

Proceedings 
l 16. Stipulated Judgment of Dissolution of **.12.16 4 F694.l-

Marriage F694.52 
117. Complaint (less exhibits) 01.03.19 4 F695-

F695.30 
118. Protective Order of the Honourable Bruce D. 25.09.19 4 F696-

White F696.11 
Text Messages 
119. Composite Text Message Schedule Various 6 F697.001-

F697.200 
120. Text message between Adam Waldman and -22.06.19 4 F698 

Laura Divenere 
121. Text messages between Amber Heard and 06.12.14- 4 F699-F729 

Lily-Rose Depp 05.04.16 
122. Text messages between Katherine Kendall Various 4 F730-F735 

· and Zoe Nauman 
Medical Records and related Documents 
123. Dr Kippernotes (Kip jd 174-177) 22.05.14 4 F736-F739 
124. Dr Kipper notes (Kip jd 172-173) 11.06.14 4 F740-F741 
125. Dr Kipper notes (Kip jd 169-171) 22.06.14- 4 F742-F744 

24.06.14 
126. Email from David Kipper to Christi 18.08.14 4 F745-F747 

Dembrowski 
126(a). Email from Amber Heard to Dr Kipper 27.08.14 4 F747.1 
127. Emails between Dr Kipper and Dr Blaustein 18.09.14- 4 F748-F749 

(Kipjd 12-13) 21.09.14 
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22 July 2020 (PM) 

Tab No. Document Date File Page No. 
(dd/mm/yy) No. 

128. Emails between Dr Kipper and Debbie Lloyd 25.09.14 - 4 F750-F753 
(Kip jd 14-17) 26.09.14 

129. Medical intake fonn completed by Petitioner, 14.03.15 4 F754-
in part, in 20 I 5 F754.2 
(Exhibit 8 to Amber Beard's Divorce 
Declaration (20 I 6)) 

130. Emails between Connell Cowan and Dr 26.01.15- 4 F755-F756 
Kipper (Kip jd 7-8) 27.01.15 

131. Emails between Dr Kipper and Dr Blaustein 01.03.15 4 F757-F758 
(Kipjd 9-10) 

132. Emails between Dr Kipper and Dr Raja 08.03.15 4 F759-F760 
Sawhney and Lisa Beane (Kjp jd 273-274) 

133. The Claimant's discharge letter from the 08.03.15 4 F761 
Emergency Department of Gold Coast 
University Hospital in Southport, Australia 

134. The Claimant's X-ray from the Emergency 08.03.15 4 F762-F762.4 
Department of Gold Coast University 
Hospital in Southport, Australia 

135. Letter from Dr Kipper to Claimant (Kjp Jd 15.03.15 4 F763 
168) 

136. EmaiJs between Dr Kipper and Connell 15.03.15 4 F764 
Cowan (Kip jd 3) 

136(a). Email from Michael Kalamaras regarding 04.05.15 4 F764.l• 
injury to Claimant's finger F764.2 

136(b). Email from David Kulber to Michael 27.06.15 4 F764.3 
Kalamaras regarding injury to Claimant's 
finger 

137. Dr Kipper notes (Kip jd 26-127) 12.06.14- 4 F765-F866 
01.07.15 

138. Dr Kipper test results 23 February 2016 (Kip 23.02.16 4 F867-F879 
jd 154-166) 

138(a). Dr Kipper medical notes regarding Claimant 23.02.16 4 F879.l-
(Kip jd 242) F879.2 

139. Medical records for Amber Heard dated 16 16.12.15- 4 F880-F880. I 
December 2015 to 21 December 2015 21.12.15 
(on pages marked AH_TPD_000J6955 and 
AH TPD 00016956) 

140. Left intentionally blank 4 F881 
141. Drug information from www.Qdr.net 4 F882 
141 (a). Images of injury to the Claimant's finger Undated 4 F882. l-

F882.17 
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22 July 2020 (PM) 

Tab No. Document Date File Page No. 
(dd/mm/yy) No. 

Emaf/.r 

142. Emails between Marty Singer and Amber 11.10.15 4 F883-F885 
Heard 

143. Email from Joshua Drew to Amber Heard 22.05.16 4 F886-F888 
attaching account of Joshua Drew and 
Raquel Pennington 

144. Email to Michael Mann from the Claimant 08.06.16 4 F889 
145. Email from Michael Mann from the Claimant 09.06.16 4 F890-F891 
146. Email from the Claimant to Rob Marshall 21.06.16 4 F892 
147. Email from Rob Marshall to the Claimant 22.06.16 4 F893 
Photographs 
148. Photographs with metadata where available Various 6 F894.001-

F894.010 
148(a). Photographs with metadata where available Various 6 F894.0l 1-

(The Defendants do not possess any metadata F894.048 
for the photograph at page F894.0I I of this 
Tab) 

148(b). Photographs with metadata where available Various 6 F894.049-
F894.091 

148(c). Photographs with metadata where available Various 6 F894.092-
F894.148B 

148(d). Photographs with metadata where available Various 6 F894.149-
F894.l54 

148(e). Photographs with metadata where available Various 6 F894.155-
F894.260 

148(t). Photographs of tabletops Various 6 F894.261-
(The Defendants have not provided metadata F894.263a 
for these images) 

148(g). Photograph of the Claimant and another man Undated 6 F894.264 
(The Defendants have not provided metadata 
for this image) 

148(h). Photographs of Amber Heard and the Various 6 F894.265-
Claimant F894.272A 
(The Defendants have not provided metadata 
for these images) 

148(i). Photograph of Amber Heard Undated 6 F894.273-
(The Defendants have not provided metadata F894.273A 
for this image) 

Videos, Recordings, Transcripts and Stills 
1480). "Boston Plane Freakout Incident'' 24.05.14 4 F894.261 
148U)(i). "Boston Plane Freakout Incident" transcript- 4 F894.262 

Claimant's version 
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22 July 2020 (PM) 

Tab No. Document Date File Page No. 
(dd/mm/yy) No. 

148U)(ii). "Boston Plane Freakout Incident" transcript - 4 F894.263-
Defendants' version F894.264 

I 48U)(iii). "Boston Plane Freakout Incident" metadata 4 F894.265-
tables F894.276 

148G)(iv). "Boston Plane Freakout Incident'' metadata 4 F894.277 
provided by the Defendants 

149. Hollywood Documentary Award: Johnny 18.11.14 4 F895 
Depp Presents 
(Drunk) I PubG Game 

149(a). Video of Claimant on 'Jimmy Kimmel Live' 09.09.15 4 F895.l 
150. Amber Heard has a Ballet Claw - Late Late 16.12.15 4 F896 

Show CBS 
151. Still from Late Late Show 16.12.15 4 F897 
15 l (a). Johnny Depp and Amber Heard Australia 18.04.16 4 F897.I 

apology 
152. Instagram video 22.04.16 4 F898 

(Exhibit 529 of Claimant's Divorce Exhibit) 

153. Recording of call between Katherine Kendall ~24.04.18 4 F899-F91 I 
and Zoe Nauman 

153(a). Transcript of recording of call between ~24.04.18 4 F9l 1.l -
Katherine Kendall and Zoe Nauman F911.7 

154. Tape recording of the Claimant and Ms ~**.••.15 4 F912-F963 
Heard (l) toeether with transcriot 

155. Tape recording of the Claimant and Ms ~15.06.16 4 F964-F977 
Heard (2) toJi:ether with transcript 

156. '20150308 115955' Australia audio file 08.03.15 4 F978-
together with transcript F978.61 
(Exhibit 9 of Amber Heard's Divorce 
Exhibit) 

156(a). '20150308 115955' Australia audio file 5 F978.62-
transcript- Claimant's version F978.134 

1S6(b). '2015030a 115955' Austr11lj11 audio file I 
s .. F978. 13): . 

transcript - Def end ants' version F978.20$ 
157, '20 I 50308 213330' Australia iiudio file Oij.03.15 5 F987· 

togc:ither with transcript · F987.24 
(Exhibit 9 of Amber Heard's Dfvorce 

Exhibit) . 
158. Clip entitled 'Video JD Speaking to AD JD ~0 .••.t6 5 F988 

video outburst with AH extended version' 
(Exhibit I 3 of Amber Heard's Divorce 
Exhibit) 

l58(a). Transcript of Clip entitled 'Video JD ~** ... .16 5 F988.I -
Speaking to AD JD video outburst with AH F988.2 
extended version' (Exhibit 13 of Amber 
Beard's Divorce Exhibit) 
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22 July 2020 (PM) 

Tab No. Document Date File Page No. 
(dd/mm/yy) No. 

159. 'ECL SF ITBM 63' Security video of the 21.05.16 5 F989 
elevator located at 849 S. Broadway, LA 
(Exhibit 16 of Amber Heard's Exhibit) 

160. LAPD phone recordings plus transcript 21.05.16 s F990-F1008 
(Exhibits 503-505 of Claimant's Divorce 
Exhibit) 

161. Clips of Amber Heard's 2016 Divorce 13.08.16 s FI009 
Deposition Video 
(Exhibits 11; 20; 21; 22; 25; 26; 28 and 31 
lo Amber Heard's Libel Declaration (2019)) 

16l(a). Video of Amber Heard made in association 26.11.16 s Fl009. l-
with Girl Gaze together with transcript Fl009.l.l 

16l(b). Clip from Amber Heard's interview by 18.10.18 s Fi009.2-
Dutch broadcaster R1L together with Fl009.2.2 
transcript 

161(c). Extract of video of deposition of Claimant in 12.12.18 s Fl009.3 
Bloom Her2ott Liti2ation 

16l(d). CTRL00071905 s Fl009.4 
16l(e). CTRL00071906 s Fl009.S 
161(f). CTRL00071907 s F1009.6 

16l(g). CTRL00071908 s F1009.7 

16l(h). CTRL00071910 s Fl009.8 

161 (i). CTRL0007191 l 5 F1009.9 

161 G). CTRL00071913 5 Fl009.10 

161G)(i). Combined transcripts for CTRL0007190S, s Fl009.10.l-
CTRL00071906,CTRL00071907, Fl009.10.4 
CTRL00071908,CTRL00071910, 
CTRL0007 I 911 and CTRL00071913 

16l(k). CTRL00058193 and accompanying 5 F1009.l l.l-
transcript Fl009.11.19 

161(1). CTRL00058195 and accompanying 5 Fl009.12.l-
transcript Fl009.12.24 

16l(m). CTRL00058198 5 F1009.13 

16l(n). CTRL00058198 transcript- Claimant's 5 Fl009.14-
version Fl009.26 

161(0). CTRL00058198 transcript-Defendants' 5 Fl009.27-
version Fl009.39 

Press Articles • .t· . :· 

ltil, 
, 

Teen heart-throb Johnny Depp, who plays an 09.03.89 5 FIOI0.1-
undercover policeman ... I UPI FIOI0.2 

163. Depp Stuck I United Press International I 10.03.89 5 Fl0I 1 
William C Trott 

12 

[SCHILLINGS] 



22 July 2020 (PM) 

Tab No. Document Date File Page No. 
(dd/mm/yy) No. 

164. Johnny Depp starts laughing when his friend 08.04.93 5 Ft012-Fl0l7 
chokes I Times - Picayune (New Orleans, 
LA) 

165. Police arrest Johnny Depp at hotel I The 13.09.94 5 FI018-Fl020 
Associated Press 

166. Depp to pay for trashing room I St. 14.09.94 5 FI021-Fl023 
PetersbUN Times (Florida) 

167. Johnny Be Bad; Depp tosses fit, trashes hotel 14.09.94 5 Fl024-Fl027 
I Newsdav (New York) 

168. Johnny Depp goes to jail for trashing hotel 14.09.94 5 Fl028-Fl030 
room I The Record (Ontario) 

169. Cops: Johnny busted for Depp-lorable 01.02.99 5 FI031-Fl033 
conduct I The New York Post I Bill Hoffinan 

170. Johnny Depp fends off paparazzi I Associated 01.02.99 5 FI 034-F I 035 
Press 

171. Johnny Depp: The ultimate outsider profile 20.06.03 5 Fl035.l-
of Johnny Depp I ABC News Transcripts I Fl046 
Elizabeth Vargas 

172. Johnny Depp: a candid conversation with the 01.05.04 5 F1047-Fl061 
brooding actor about growing up, getting 
sober, being a middle-aged sex symbol and 
smacking the hell out of the paparazzi; 
Playboy interview I Playboy I Bernard 
Weinraub 

172(a). Johnny Depp Giving $150 Million To 21.06.12 5 F1061.l 
Vanessa Paradis in Split Settlement- Report 
I Hollywoodlife.com 

I 72(b). Vanessa Paradis to 'receive £100million pay- 21.06.12 5 FI061.2-
off' from ex-partner Johnny Depp I Fl06l.12 
DailvMail.co.uk 

172(c). Did Johnny Depp and Vanessa Paradis split 21.06.12 5 Fl061.13-
over Amber Heard? I Metro.co.ulc Fl061.14 

172(d). Johnny Depp and Amber Heard romance 21.06.12 5 Fl06l.15 
rumours hot up I Marieclaire.co.ulc 

172(e). Vanessa Paradis Opens Up (a Little) after 12.08.12 5 Fl061. I 6-
Johnny Depp Split I People.com Fl061.17 

172(e)(i). 'Bisexual Amber Heard and rumoured French 16.01.13 5 Fl061.17.1-
Girlfriend Marie de Villepin touch down in the fl061.17.5 
City of Love and Lie:hts' I Mai/Online 

172(e)(ii) 'Scooting all over town: Amber Heard and l8.0 l.13 5 F106l.l7.6-
rumoured French Girlfriend Marie de Villepin 
enjoy a cinema date night in Paris ... before 

F 1061.17.20 

riding off into the night on a scooter' I 
Mai/Online I 
Louise Saunders 

172(f). Johnny Depp: An Outlaw Looks at 50 I 18.06.13 5 F 1061.18-
Rollingstone.com Fl06128 
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Tab No. Document Date File Page No. 
(dd/mm/yy) No. 

173. 'I'm not very good at this thing!' Johnny 15.11.14 5 Fl062-
Depp slurs and swears his way through Fl069A 
presenting at the Hollywood Film Awards I 
MailOnline I Chelsea White 

173(a). Johnny Depp Divorce: His Family 'Hated' 26.05.16 5 FI069.l-
Amber Heard I TMZ Fl069.2 

l 73(b). Johnoy Depp's sister speaks about his divorce 27.05.16 5 Fl069.3-
from Amber Heard J Mail Online I Emma FI069.12F 
Foster 

I 73(c). Amber Heard Claims Domestic Violence, 27.05.16 5 Fl069.13 -
Seeks Restraining Order Against Johnny Fl069.15 
DeoolTMZ 

174. Amber Heard is pictured smiling hours after 27.05.16 5 Fl070-Fl 128 
Depp's 'iPhone attack': Actress claims 
'cocaine and booze binges turned Johnny 
into an abusive monster who left her fearing 
for her life' - but why was this image 
deleted before court appearance? I 
MailOnline I Chris Spargo, Hanna Parry and 
Anthony Joseph 
(including photograph of Amber Heard, 
Amanda De Cadenet (IJld Amber Valletta) 

175. Johnny Depp: Inside his volatile relationship 30.05.16 5 Fll29.l-
with Kate Moss I People I Kara Warnera Fll29.3 

176. Johnny Depp Assistant Says Texts Were 02.06.16 5 Fl 130-Fl 132 
Doctored j 1MZ 
(including screenshot of text messages 
between Stephen Deuters and Amber Heard) 

l 76(a). Amber Heard Arrested for Domestic 07.06.16 5 Fll32.l-
Violence Against Girlfriend I TMZ Fl 132.2 

177. Why I Called 911 j Refinery29.com I Io 08.06.16 5 Fll33-Fl139 
Tillett Wriirht 

178. Amber Heard's Ex-Girlfriend Tasya van Ree 08.06.16 5 Fll40-
Speaks Out Following Domestic Abuse Fll40.5 
Alleiations I e-online.com 

l 78(a). Amber Heard: 'Homophobic' 'Misogynistic' 09.06.16 5 Fl 140.6-
Cop ... A Gay Woman I TMZ Fll4_0,7 

I 78(b). 'Homophobic' and 'misogynistic' cop who 09.06,1~ 5 Fl l-40:8~ 
arres~ed Amber J-Ioard ln 2009 Is openly gay Fl 140.13 
woman I New Y~rk Daily News I Meera 
Jaiannathan and Nancv Dillon 

179. Amber Heard I'm Too Skinny for 'Justice 16.06.16 5 Fl 141 
League' Costume Fitting Rescheduled I TMZ 
I 
(Exhibit 528 of Claimant's Divorce Exhibit) 
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Tab No. Document Date File Page No. 
(dd/mm/yy) No. 

l 79(a). Johnny Depp's estranged wife Amber Heard 22.07.16 5 Fll41.l-
'spending time' with billionaire Elon Musk as Fl 141.8 
divorce battle rages on I irishmirror.ie I 
Rebecca Merriman 

179(b). PICTURE EXCLUSIVE: Amber Heard 03.08.16 5 Fll41.9-
parties the night away in London with Fl 141.35A 
'rumoured billionaire boyfriend' Elon Musk 
and model Cara Delevin1me I MailOnline 

179(c) Elon Musk Had Been Chasing Girlfriend 25.08.16 5 Fl 141.36-
Amber Heard For 4 Years I World Fl 141.39 
Entertainment News Network I 

179(d). Heard over the moon about Musk I The Star 16.0J.l 7 5 Fl 141.40 
l 79(e). Amber Heard Donated Over $1 Million Of 10.04.18 5 Fl 141.41-

Her Divorce Settlement To A Cause That's Fl 141.46 
Close To Her Heart I Bustle I Parry 
Ernsberger 

180. The Trouble With Johnny Depp: Inside 21.06.18 5 Fl 142. l-
Trials of Johnny Depp: Lawsuits, Drinking, Fl 142.39 
Marriage Gone Wrong I Rolling Stone I 
Stephen Rodrick 

181. Johnny Depp 'punched crew member in 10.07.18 5.1 Fl 143-Fll44 
drunken tirade' I BBC News 

182. DEPP SUED Johnny Depp 'attacked crew 10.07.18 5.1 FJJ45-Fll47 
member and screamed "I'll give you Sl00k 
to punch me in the face" on Biggie Smalls 
set'; Gregg 'Rocky' Brooks has filed a 
lawsuit against the actor claiming he was 
allegedly attacked by the 55-ycar-old actor I 
The Sun I Gemma Mullin 

183. 'City of Lies' crew member allegedly 16.07.18 5.1 Fl 148-Fl150 
attacked by Johnny Depp on set swings back 
with 10-count suit I JD Supra I Fox ... '. · ... --t~ ' .~ . ~ ' . \ Rnthschilct LLP . -. . .. .... -

184. Johnny Depp will not be buried I 02.10.18 5.1 Fl 151.l-
_cl ,.ww.gqll!agazifle.co.ulc j Jon11than Heaf Ft 1sr.is . ~... . . 

l8~. Johnny Depp breaks silence on Fantastic 11.10.18 S. l FJJS2·fllS~ '. 
i ·.:. ae~~ts sequel role I J3}>Ent.~,:tailll11ent :. .,- '. :~ '¾ ., 

.. Wooldv I Tames Hlbbord .~•·-=· •"} . ' ': :., '. ,!'!.)•> 

186. Johnny Depp_ Will Not be Buried - ••.11.18 5.1 Fl IS~•FI 171 
Npvember Issue I GQ !Jonathan HeafHard .. , 
COPY 

187. Opinion I Amber Heard: I spoke up against 18.12.18 5.1 Fll72-Fll75 
sexual violence - and faced our culture's 
wrath. That has to change I Amber Heard I 
Washingtonpost.com 

187(a). "Johnny Depp Still Feuding With Amber 28.01.19 5.1 Fl 175.1-
Heard: Who ls Telling The Truth?" I Fl 175.7 
Forbes.com 
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Tab No. Document Date File Page No. 
(dd/mm/yy) No. 

188. Johnny Depp Left With A Black Eye After 08.03.19 5.1 Fl 176-Fll86 
Allegedly Being Punched in the Face by 
Amber Heard I The Blast I The Blast Staff 
(includinf! photo of Johnny Deoo) 

189. Amber Heard's 'Friend' Goes on the Record: 15.07.19 5.1 Fll87-Fl 191 
'f Never Saw Amber Injured in Any Way' at 
the Hands of Johnny Depp I TheBlast.com I 
Mike Walters 
(includinf! statement-from Laura Divenere) 

190. Johnny Depp Says Amber Heard Put A 26.07.19 5.1 Fl 192-FI 196 
Cigarette Out on Hjs Face During Infamous 
Fight' I TheBlast.com I Daniel Goldblatt 
(including photo of Johnny Depp and X-ray 
ohoto) 

l90(a). Amber Heard's Father Accused Of 30.11.19 5.1 F1196.l-
Threatening To Shoot Johnny Depp I Fll96.10 
TheBlastcom (including quotes from 
declaration of David Killackev Sr) 

190(b). 'I can't promise I won't get physical again, I 31.01.20 5.1 F1196.l l-
get so mad I lose it.' I MailOnJine Fll96.33 

190(c). EXCLUSIVE: 'See how many people believe 05.02.20 5.1 Fl 196.34-
you.' Listen as Amber Heard scoffs at Johnny Fll96.63-
Depp for claiming he's a domestic violence 
victim, suggesting court would take her side 
because she's a slender woman in explosive 
audio I MailOnline 

190(d). Amber Beard's Ex-Assistant Testifies that l 1.03.20 5.1 Fl 196.64-
Actress Was Mentally And Verbally Abusive Fl 196.67 
I TheBlast.com (includingquotesfrom 
declaration of Kate James) 

190(e). Winona Ryder Defends Johnny Depp, Calls 12.03.20 5.1 Fl 196.68-
Amber Heard Accusations 'Impossible to Fl 196.71 
Believe' I TheBlast.com (including quotes 
from declaration of Winona Rvder) 

190(f). Johnny Depp's Ex-Wife, Vanessa Paradis, 16.03.20 5.1 Fl 196.72-
Calls Amber Heard's Violent Allegations Fl 196.73 
'False Facts' I TheBlast.com (including 
auotes from declaration of Vanessa Paradis) 

~~O(g). Petition To Remo,ve Amt>er .Heard ·From 17.03.20 5. 1 f1l96.74 · 
• Aquamarl; Gamers 400K Signatures Amjd 
Second Audio Leaka2e I ibtlmes.com 

!~0.(lll, EXGL.USJYf;: S't'lm~ult•c.1~~ ,wltie,r Ho@rcl ~6.03.20 S, I Fl 196.75-
Is caught on sw-vetuan'cc tape cuddling up to Ft 196,85C 
Elon Musk in Johnny Depp's private 
penthouse elevator, as actor accuses her of 
starting affair with billionaire a month into 
their marriage I MailOnline I Ben Ashford 

190(i) Vanessa Paradis interview extract I Elle Undated 5.1 Fl 196.86 
Sweden 
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Tab No. Document Date File Page No. 
(dd/mm/yy) No. 

Phone Records 
191. 911 Phone Records 21.05.19 5.1 Fl 197-

Fl 197.3 
Fl91(a). New York Police Department report 21.05.16 5.1 Ft 197.4-

Fl 197.5 
192. 21 May 2016 Photograph - Kevin Murphy's 21.05.16 5.1 Fl 198-Fll99 

telephone call log 
(Exhibit 526 to Claimant's 2016 Exhibit List 
- clean version) 

192(a). Extract of telephone cal] records of Amber 21.05.16 5.1 Fl 199.1 
Heard 

192(b). Telephone call records of iO Tillet Wright 25.04.16- 5.1 Fl 199.2-
24.05.16 Fl 199.28 

CCTV/Surveillance Footage and Stills 

193. Left intentionally blank 5.1 Fl200-Fl202 

194. CCTV footage exhibited to first witness Various 5.1 Fl203 
statement of Brandon Patterson 

195. CCTV stills (still images taken by SMB) Various 5.1 F\204-
Fl204.l 

Journal entries 
196. Journal entries by the Claimant and Ms 29.09.15- 5.1 Fl205-

Heard in the Claimant's journal together with 04.10.15 F1207F 
transcript 

196(a). Journal entry of Amber Heard 10.06.15 5.1 Fl207.l-
Fl207.4 

196(b). Journal entry of Amber Heard 27.07.15 5.1 Fl207.5-
Fl207.10 

197. Journal entries by the Claimant and Ms 03.04.16 5.1 F1208.l-
Heard in the Claimant's journal together with Fl208.5 
transcript 

Tweets 
198. iO Tillett Wright Tweets 06.06.16 5.1 Fl209-

Fl209.4 

198(a). Tweet by Amber Heard containing full joint 08.12.17 5.1 F1209.5-
divorce press release statement from Fl209.7 
16.08.16 

198(b). Tweet by Amber Heard (ACLU ambassador 19.12.18 5.1 Fl209.8-
announcement) Fl209.10 

Documents relating to other proceedings 
199. Port of Seattle Police Department Sept.14 26.10.09- 5.1 Fl210-F1218 

2009- Arrest and Prosecution Records of Ms 30.1 l.l l 
Heard in State of Washington v Amber Van 
Ree 
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Tab No. Document Date File Page No. 
(ddlmmlyy) No. 

(Exhibit 507 to Claimant's Divorce Exhibit 
List) 

200. April 18, 2016 Order- Petitioner- Australia Various 5.1 Fl 219-F 1302 
Criminal Case 
(Exhibit 508 to Claimant's Divorce Exhibit 
List} 

201. Letter from Amber Heard regarding 28.09.14 5.1 F1303 
Savannah McMillan 
(Exhibit S to Claimant's Dec/oration (2019)) 

20l(a). Kevin Murphy Statement (Australia) 13.10.15 5.1 Fl303.l-
Fl303.2 

20l(b). Sentencing remarks of Magistrate I 8.04.16 5.1 Fl303.3-
B. Callaghan (Australia) Fl303.8 

202. Complaint Eugene Arreola and Sanchez v 01.05.18 5.1 Fl304-Fl327 
Depp& Ors 

Miscellaneous 
203. Diagram of the location of Penthouse 3 in the NIA 5.1 Fl328-Fl329 

Eastern Columbia Building 

204. South Broadway Apartment Floor plan NIA 5.1 Fl330 

205. Floor plan of 849 S Broadway NIA 5.1 Fl331 

206. Diagram of layout of private aeroplane NIA 5.1 Fl332 
206(i). Los Angeles Police Department Guidance on 31.01.10 5.1 Fl332.I-

Domestic Violence Fl332.4 

206(a). Children's Hospital of Los Angeles Honor **.••.17 5.1 Fl333-
Roll ofFriends 2017 Fl393 

206(b). Los Angeles Office of the Chiefof Police 23.02.17 5.1 Fl393.1-
Administrative Order No. 3 Fl393.10 

Section G: Corresnondence - "' --· 
~·l ,. ;ic· 

207. Relevant court correspondence 5.1 Gl 

208. Miscellaneous correspondence 5.1 G2 

209. Relevant inter partes correspondence 5.1 G3.0.1- G40 
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Claim No: QB-2018-006323 
IN THE IDGH COURT OF JUSTICE 
QUEEN'S BENCH DIVISION 

MEDIA AND COMM1JNICATIONS LIST 

BETWEEN 

JOHN CHRISTOPHER DEPP 11 

and 

(3) NEWS GROUP NEWSPAPERS LTD 
(4) DAN WOOTTON 

SUPPLEMENTARY TRIAL BUNDLE INDEX 

Claimant 

Defendants 

DOCUMENTS DISCLOSED PURUSANT TO DISCLOSURE ORDER OF 6 MARCH 
2020; 

DOCUMENTS DISCLOSED IN THE US LIBEL CLAIM IN BATCHES AH014, 
AH0IS AND AH016; AND 

DOCUMENTS DISCLOSED BY THE PARTIES IN JUNE & JULY 2020 

Tab No. Document Date File Page No. 
(dd/mm/yy) No. 

Section H: Text Messaf!es 
l. Text messages between Amber Heard and 26.07.12- 7 Hl-H21 

Stephen Deuters 03.06.16 

l(a). Text messages between lhe Claimant and 06.03.13- 7 H21.l 
various recipients 07.03.13 

l(b). Text messages between Amber Heard and Various . 7 H21A.l· 
Paige Heard H21A.J0 

l(c). Text messages between Amber Heard and Various 7 H21A.1 l-

' 
i·' Whitney Heard H21A,16 

l(d). Text messages between Amber Heard and Various 7 H21,"t.17 
Rocky Pennington 

• ,,t • { • 

. ''" 
l(e). Text messages between Amber Heard and Various 7 H21A.17a 

Nathan Holmes -
H21A.22 
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Tab No. 

I(t). 

l(g), 

2. 

2(a). 

2(b). 

2(b)(i). 

2(b)(i)(A). 
2(b)(ii). 

2(b)(iii). 

2(c). 

2(d). 

3. 

3(a). 

3(b). 

ilo), 

s. 

S(a). 

5(b). 

6. 

7. 

8. 

22 July 2020 (PM) 

Document Date 
(dd/mm/yy) 

Text messages between Amber Heard and Various 
Christi Dembrowski 
Text messages between Amber Heard and Various 
Christian Carino 
Text message between Amber Heard and Kate 09 .03. I 3 
James 
Text messages between Amber Heard and the 11.03.13-
Clairnant 22.08.14 

Text messages between Amber Heard and the 09.07.13 
Claimant 

Text message exchange between the Claimant 22.09. 13 
and Paige Heard 
Text message from unknown to Mr Hop 31.05.13 

Text messages between Whitney Henriquez l 1.02.14-
and the Claimant 25.02.15 

Text messages between the Claimant and 
various recipients 

Text message from Kate James to Amber 
Heard 

18.05.14-
03.08.15 

24.05.14 

Text messages between Kate James and 25.05.14 
Amber Heard 
Text messages between Amber Heard and 24.05.14-
Kate James 29.05.14 

Texf ~essp.ges·be~e~ Anthe; Heard an~ the 75.0~. l~ 
Claimant . · 71.0~.14 

File 
No. 
7 

7 

7 

7 

7 

7 

7 
7 

7 

7 

7 

7 

7 

Text messagCl! betwe~n Amper Heard and 79.10.14 7 
Kevin Murphy 

Tei(hioii~gei' llctwcon·Ainticr·Hearii and· 15.11.f4''··· ·;· ~..,,, 
Kate 1nmcs · .'. "· . ·· 
Text message fro111 IO Tillet-Wright to 02.12.14 7 
~~rHcard · " · ··, · ' 

Text messages between Amber Heard and the 18.12.14 

Claimant 
Text messages between Amber Heard and the 09.01.15 -
Claimant 12.01.15 

Text messages between the Claimant and 25.02.15-
various recipients 
Text messages between Amber Heard and 

' Joshua Drew 
Text messages between Amber Heard and 
Nathan Holmes 

12.03.15 

12.03.15 

02.05.16 

Text messages between Amber Heard and the 29.06.1 S 
Claimant 

20 
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7 

7 

7 

7 

7 

Page No. 

H21A.23-
H21A26 
H21A.27-
H21A.30 
H22-H23 

H23.l 

H23.2-
H23.4 
H23.4A 

H23.4Ai 
H23.4B­
H23.4D 

H23.4E­
H23.4N 

H23.5 

H23.6 

H24-H27 

H27.l 

H27.~­
H27.3 

H28 .. . ,. .. ~ ' . 

JB0.I 

fi30.2-
tf30.7 
H31 

H32 

H33 
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Tab No. Document 

8(a). Text messages between Amber Heard and the 
Claimant 

9. Text messages between Amber Heard and the 
Claimant 

10. Text messages between Amber Heard and the 
Claimant 

L0(a). Extract of text message exchange 
I0(b). Text messages exchanged between Amber 

Heard and Connell Cowan 
I0(c). Text messages between Amber Heard and 

Connell Cowan 
l0(d). Text messages between Amber Heard and 

Erin Boeurum 

I l. Text messages between Amber Heard and the 
Claimant 

12. Text messages between Amber Heard and the 
Claimant 

13. Text messages between Amber Heard and 
Raquel Pennington 

J3(a). Text messages between Amber Heard and 
Connell Cowan 

14. Text message from Amber Heard to(?) 

15. Text messages between Amber Heard and 
Kevin Murphy 

16. Text messages between Amber Heard, Rock 
and Carly Kuhn 

17. Text messages between Amber Heard and iO 
Tillett-Wright 

l7(a). Text messages between Amber Heard and iO 
Tillett-Wri!!ht 

18. Text message from Amber Heard to iO 
Tillett-Wright and Raquel Penni.ogton with 
photographs 

19. Text messages between Amber Heard and 
Paige Heard ' 

19(4): foxi.mc-.s~s b~~n AmbcrHeard an4 
. !~i:, ! BrUl BOC1lf:Ulll . .• 
20. Text messages between Amber Heard and iO 

Tillett-Wright 

20(a). Text messages between Amber Heard and 
Connell Cowan 

21 

22 July 2020 (PM) 

Date File Page No. 
(dd/mm/yy) No. 
02.07.15 7 H33.1 

02.07.15 7 H34 

17.08.15 7 H35-H36 

19.08.15 7 H37 
20.08.15 7 H38-39 

19.08.15 7 H39.1-
H39.2 

13.09.15 7 H39.3-
H39.4 

26.09.15 7 H40-H44 

22.10.15 7 H45-H54 

16.12.15- 7 H55-H8l 
22.05.16 
16.12.15 7 H8l.1-

H8l.4 
16.12.15 7 H82-

HI0I 
16.12.15 7 Hl02 

16.12.15 7 Hl03 

16.12.15 7 Hl04-
Hl05 

10.02.16 7 Hl05.1 

17.12.15 7 Hl06-
H115 

17.12.15 7 Hll6-
, .. "• .. : m2:t. 
17.12.JS Hl27,1_• 

Hi2?.2 
18.12.15 7 Hl28-

H129 

20.12.15 7 Hl29.1 
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Tab No. Document Date File Page No. 
(dd/mm/yy) No. 

20(b). Text messages between Amber Heard and 20.12.15 7 H129.2-
Raquel Pennington Hl29.5 

20(c). Text messages between Amber Heard and 21.12.15 7 Hl29.6-
Raquel Pennington Hl29.8 

20(d). Text messages between Amber Heard and iO 22.12.15 7 H129.9 
Tillett-Wril!'ht 

20(e), Text messages between Amber Heard and iO 29.12.15 7 F129.10 
Tillett-Wrirnt 

21. Text messages between Amber Heard and 28.01.16 7 Hl30 
Joshua Drew 

2l(a) Text messages between Amber Heard and iO 10.02.16 Hl30.l 
Tillett- Wri2ht 

22. Text message exchange between Amber 04.02.16 7 Hl31-
Heard and the Claimant Hl34 

22(a). Text messages between Amber Heard and iO 11.02.16 7 Hl34.l 
Tillett Wright 

23. Page left intentionally blank 7 Hl35 
24. Text messages between Amber Heard and the 16.03.16 7 Hl36-

Claimant Hl38 

24(a). Text messages between the Claimant and 15.04.16- 7 Hl38.l-
various recipients 28.04.16 Hl38.9 

25. Text messages between Amber Heard and the 19.04.16 7 Hl39 
Claimant 

25(a). Text messages between Amber Heard and the 21.04.16 7 Hl39.l-
Claimant Hl39.3 

26. Text messages between Amber Heard and iO 26.04.16 7 H140-
Tillet Wright Hl41 

26(a). Text messages between Amber Heard and 02.05.16 7 Hl41.1 
Nathan Holmes 

26(a)(i). Text messages between the Claimant and 15.05.16- 7 Hl41.1A-

various recipients 27.06.15 Hl41.11 

26(b). Text messages between Amber Heard and 19.05. 16 7 Hl41.2-
Melanie Inglessis Hl4l.3 

26(c). Screenshot of text messages between Amber 21.05.16 7 Hl41.4-
Heard and Kevin Murphy Hl4l.6 

26(d). Text messages between Amber Heard and 21.05.16- 7 Hl4l.7-
Savannah McMillan and screenshot of text 22.05.16 Hl41.8 
messages between Amber Heard and 
Savannah 
McMillan 

26{e). Text messages between Amber Heard and iO 21.05.16 7 Hl41.9 
Tillet Wri11:ht 

27, Text messages between Amber Heard and iO 21.05.16 7 Hl42 
Tillet-Wright 
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28. Text messages between Amber Heard and 21.05.16 7 Hl43-
Kevin Murphy Hl44.4 

28(a). Text messages between Amber Heard and 21.05.16- 7 Hl44.5-
Erin Boeurum and screenshot of text 22.05.16 Hl44.7 
messages between Amber Heard and Erin 
Boeurum 

28(b). Text messages between Amber Heard and the 21.05.16- 7 HJ44.8-
Claimant 23.05.16 Hl44.I0 

29. Text messages between Amber Heard and the 22.05.16 7 Hl45 
Claimant 

30. Text messages between Amber Heard and 22.05.16 7 Hl46-
Amanda de Cadenet Hl47 

31. Text messages between Amber Heard and 22.05.16 7 Hl48-
Savannah McMillan Hl49 

32. Text messages between Amber Heard and 22.05.16 7 H150 
Melanie Inglessis 

33. Text messages between Amber Heard, Paige 22.05.16 7 Hl51-
Heard and David Heard Hl53 

34. Text messages between Amber Heard and 22.05.16 7 H154-
Paige Heard H158 

35. Text messages between Amber Heard and 22.05.16 7 Hl59-
Joshua Drew Hl60 

36. Text messages between Amber Heard and 22.05.16 7 Hl61 
unknown recipient 

37. Text messages between Amber Heard and 22.05.16 7 Hl62 
"Rocketman" 

38. Text messages between Amber Heard and iO 22.05.16 7 Hl63-
Tillet-Wrigbt H165 

39. Text messages between Amber Heard and 23.05.16 7 Hl66 
Melanie Inglesis 

40. Text messages between Amber Heard and 24.05.16 7 Hl67 
Paige Heard 

41. Text messages between Amber Heard and 24.05.16 7 HJ68-
Amanda de Cadenet H169 

42. Text messages between Amber Heard and iO 24.05.16 7 Hl70-
Tillet-Wrigbt Hl71 

42(a). Text messages exchanged between Amber 24.05.16 7 Hl72 
Heard and Melanie Inglessis 

42(b). Text messages exchanged between Amber 25.05.16 7 Hl73 
Heard and Laura Divenere dated 25 May 
2016 

42(c). Text messages between Amber Heard and 26.05.16 7 Hl73.1-
Laura Divenere Hl73.2 
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43. Text messages between Amber Heard and 26.05.16 7 Hl74-
Paige Heard Hl75 

43(a). Text messages between Amber Heard and 27.05.16 7 Hl75.1-
Amanda de Cadenet Hl75.2 

44. Text messages between Amber Heard and iO 29.05.16 7 Hl76 
Tillet Wright 

45. Text messages between Amber Heard and 30.05.16 7 Hl77-
Savannah McMillan Hl78 

45(a). Text messages between Amber Heard and 30.05.16 7 Hl78.l 
Lisa Beane 

45(b). Text messages between Amber Heard and 08.06.16 7 Hl78.2 
Tasva van Ree 

46. Text messages between Amber Heard and iO 07.06.16 7 H179-
Ti11et-Wright with three photographs Hl83 

47. Text messages between Amber Heard and 08.06.16 7 Hl84-
Paige Heard Hl88 

47(a). Text messages between the Claimant and 03.01.16- 7 Hl88.l 
Amber Heard 10.06.16 

47(b). Text messages between Amber Herd and 16.06.16 7 Hl88.2 
Malcolm Connelly 

47(c). Text messages between Amber Heard and 02.07.16 7 Hl88.3-
Laura Divenere and articles referred to in Hl88.14 
messae:es 

48. Text messages between Amber Heard and 27.07.16 7 Hl89-
Melanie lnglesis Hl90 

49. Text messages between Amber Heard and iO 31.07.16 7 Hl91-
Tillet Wright Hl92 

49(a). Text messages between Claimant and Paul 05.09.16- 7 Hl92.l-
Bettany 07.09.16 Hl92.3 

49(b). Text messages between Claimant and Paul 28.10.16- 7 Hl92.4-
Bettany 30.10.16 Hl92.5 

50. Page left intentionally blank 7 Hl93 
51. Text messages from Amber Heard to Lisa 04.06.17 7 Hl94 

Beane 
5l(a). Text messages between Amber Heard, 22.06.17 7 Hl94.l-

Whitney Heard, Raquel Pennington, Melanie Hl94.13 
Inglessis, Amanda de Cadenet and article 
referred to in messae:es 

52. Page left imentionally blank 7 Hl95 

53. Text from Amber Heard to unknown 08.06.16 7 Hl97 

54. Text messages between Amber Heard and 10.08.16 7 Hl98-
Christian Carino H202 

55. Group chat messages -Amber Heard, 17.08.16 7 H203.l-
Amanda De Cadenet, iO Tillett Wright, H203.6 
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Raquelle Pennington, Melanie Inglessis, 
Whitney Heard 

55{a). Text messages between Amber Heard and 01.08.18 7 H203.7-
Kristina Sexton H203.8 

56. Text messages between Amber Heard and 16.11.18 7 H204-
Danie Streisand H205 

56(a). Text message from Laura Divenere to Amber 16.07.19 7 H206 
Heard 

56{b). Text message exchange between Whitney Various 7 H206.l-
Henriquez and Kevin Murphy H206.2 

56(c). Text message exchanges between the Various 7 H206.3-
Claimant and others H206.8 

57. Various text messages exchanged between Various 8 H207-
Elizabeth Marz and Raquel Pennington H377 

58. Various text messages exchanged between iO Various 8 H378-
Tillett Wright and Raquel Pennington H425 

59. Composite text messages Various 8 H426-
H679 

59(a). Text message exchange between the Undated 8 H679.1 
Claimant 

60. Screenshot of text messages between Amber Undated 8 H680-
Heard and Kevin Murphy H681 

61. Screenshots of text messages between Amber Undated 8 H682-
Heard and the Claimant (documents titled H686 
"ALH_00003764.png, ALH_00003765.png, 
ALH 00003767.png, ALH 00003768.png) 

62. Screenshots of texts between 'Amber' and an Undated 8 H687-
unidentified other referring to the divorce H697 
proceedings 

Seaion I: Emails 

62(a). Emails between Claimant and Stephen 22.01.12 8 10.1-I0.2 
Deuters 

62(b). Email from Claimant to David Koepp, cc 07.02.12 8 10.3-10.4 
Infinitum Nihil 

62(c). Emails between Claimant, Andre Paradis and 02.01.12- 8 10.5-10.6 
Mathias Bocquillon 08.02.12 

62(d). Emails between Claimant and Elton John 22.03.12 8 10.7-10.8 
62(e). Emails between Claimant and Stephen 19.04. 12 8 10.9-

Deuters 10.12 
62(f). Email from Claimant to Elton John 30.04.12 8 10.13 
63. Email from Kate James to Amber Heard with 14. 10.12 8 11 

schedules of tasks 
63(a). Emails between Claimant and Jane Rose 20.03.13 8 Il.1- Il.3 
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63(b). Email from Amber Heard to Kate James 27.05.13 8 Il.4-Il.5 
64. Draft email from Amber Heard 11.06.13 8 12-13 
64(a). Emails between Claimant and Elton John 06.07.13- 8 13.1 

13.07.13 
65. Emails between Amber Heard and Kate 15.11.13- 8 14-15 

James 17.11.13 
66. Email from Amber Heard to Kate James 23.12.13 8 16 

67. Email from Amber Heard to Kate James 27.12.13 8 17 
67(a). Email from Amber Heard to Kate James 03.02.14 8 17.1 
68. Emails between Amber Heard and Kate 15.02.14- 8 18 

James 16.02.14 

69. Emails between Amber Heard and Kate 03.03.14 8 19-IlO 
James 

70. Email from Kate James to Amber Heard 05.03.14 8 Ill 

71. Emails between Amber Heard and Kate 10.03. 14 8 Il2 
James 

7l(a). Emails between Claimant and Shep Gordon 25.03.14 8 Il2. l-
112.2 

7l(b). Draft email from Amber Heard 25.05.14 8 Il23 

72. Emails between Amber Heard and Kate 08.05.14 8 113 
James 

73. Email from Amber Heard to Kate James 10.05.14 8 114 
73(a). Emails exchanged between Amber Heard and 27.05.14 8 115-116 

Whitney Heard 
73(b). Handwritten notes from Connell Cowan MD ** .08.14- 8 Il7-I18 

0 .09.14 

73(c). Draft email from Amber Heard 26.05.14- 8 Il8.l-
28.05.14 Il8.4 

74. Emails between Amber Heard and iO Tillett 11.08.14- 8 Il9- 120 
Wright 15.08.14 

75. Emails between Amber Heard and Raquel 14.08. 14- 8 121 
Pennington 16.08.14 

75(a). Emails between Amber Heard and Paige 18.08.14 8 121.l 
Heard 

76. Email from Amber Heard to Kate James 17.01.15 8 122 
76(a)(i). Email from Amber Heard to James Merifield 01.02.15 8 122A 

andLHPCay 
76(a). Emails between Amber Heard and Kate 09.02.15- 8 122.1 

James 10.02.15 

77. Emails between Amber Heard and Kate 13.02.15 8 123-125 
James 
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77(a). Emails between Amber Heard and Kate 13.02.15 8 125.1 
James 

77(a)(i). Email from Kate James to Amber Heard 18.02.15 8 125.IA 
77(b). Email from Amber Heard to Connell Cowan 14.03.15 8 125.2 
77(c). Emails between Claimant and Tracey Jacobs 29.08.15 8 125.3-

125.4 
78. Emails between Amber Heard, Whitney 16.03.15 8 126-128 

Heard and Kate James 
78(a). Emails from Amber Heard to Jodi Gottlieb 16.12.15 8 128.1-

and Jessica 128.3 
Kovacevic 

78(a)(i). Email from Robert Todd to Kevin Murphy 18.02.16 8 128.3A 
78(b). Email from David Kipper to Amber Heard 22.02.16 8 128.4 
78(c). Emails between Marty Singer and Kevin 08.04.16 8 128.5 

Murphy 
79. Extract from email between Amanda De 08.06.16 8 129 

Cadenet and Amber Heard 
80. Email from unknown to unknown re 'Feb 21.02.16 8 130-131 

2Qth• 

81. Email from unknown to unknown re 'It's the 14.04.16 8 132-135 
hypocrite. The character flaw. It is.that's most 
heartbreaking' 

82. Email and attachments from Joshua Drew to 22.05.16 8 136-139 
Amber Heard 

83. Email from iO Tillet-Wright to Amber Heard 22.05.16 8 140 
84. Emails between Amber Heard and Stephen 27.05.16 8 141-143 

Deuters 
85. Email from Tasya van Ree to Amber Heard 07.06.16 8 144 
85(a). Emails exchanged between Amber Heard and 11.08.16 8 145-147 

Raquel Pennington drafting Amber Heard's 
statement 

85(b). Email from Melanie Inglessis to Amber 31.07.16 8 147.1-
Heard 1472 

85(c). Emails between Amber Heard and Tasya van 28.12.18- 8 147.3 
Ree 29.12.18 

86. Email from Adam Waldman to Louis 05.02.20 8 148 
Charalambous 

86(a). Emails between Lee Sherman and Jennifer 28.02.20- 8 148.1-
Robinson 05.03.20 148.4 

86(b). Email from Lee Sherman to Laura Divenere, 02.03.20 g 148.5-
148.8 

86(c). Email from Lee Sherman to Laura Divenere, 05.03.20 8 148.9 
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86(d). Emails between Lee Shennan and Laura 05.03.20- 8 148.10-
Divenere 10.03.20 148.13 

86(e). Email from Laura Divenere Kevin Murphy 10.03.20 8 148.14-
148.17 

Section J: Photographs/Images 
86(e)(i). Photographs of Amber Heard, the Claimant 07.04.13 9 J48.14-

and others J48.16 

86(f). Photograph of Amber Heard and the 13.04.13 9 J48.17 

Claimant 

86(g). Photograph of Amber Heard and the 18.04.13 9 J48.18 

Claimant 
87. Photographs of broken glass/mug [No 05.05.14 9 J1 .1-11.3 

metadata available) 

87(h). Photograph of Amber Heard and the 18.12.14 9 Jl.4 

Claimant 
87(h)(i). Photograph of the Claimant's finger injury 08.03.15 9 Jl.4A 
87(h)(ii). Photograph of lampshade 08.03.15 9 Jl.4B 

87(h)(iii). Photograph of the Claimant in hospital 09.03.15 9 Jl.4C 

87(h)(iv). Photograph of the Claimant with bruise with 23.03.15 9 Jl.4D 
metadata 

87(i). Photograph of Amber Heard and the 28.07.15 9 Jl.5 
Claimant 

87(j). Photographs of Amber Heard and the 30.07.15 9 Jl.6-Jl .9 

Claimant 

87(k). Photograph of hair on floor with metadata 16.12.15 9 11.10 
87(1). Photograph of bed with meta data 16.12.15 9 Jl.11 

87(m). Photograph of bed with meta data 16.12.15 9 Jl.12 

87(n). Stills of Amber Heard on the James Cordon 16.12.15 9 Jl.13-

show Jl.14 

88. Photograph of Amber Heard [No metadata 16.12.15 9 J2 

available] 

89. Images of Amber Heard [No metadata 17.12.15 9 13 
available] 

90. Photographs of Amber Heard 17.12.15 9 J4.l-J4.5 

90(a). Photograph of Amber Heard 26.12.15 9 14.6 

91. Photograph of Amber Heard with metadata 06.01.16 9 JS 

9l(a). Photograph of Amber Heard with friends at 23.04.16 9 J5. l-J5.2 

Coachella 

92. Photograph of Amber Heard [No metadata 21.05.16 9 J6-J8 

available] 

93. Left intentionally blank 9 J9 

94. Photograph of Amber Heard 22.05.16 9 110 
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94(a)(i). Photograph of the Claimant and Rocky 13.04.17 9 Jl0A 
Brooks 

94(a). Various photographs including Keith Undated 9 Jl0.1-
Richards Jl0.5 

95. Photographs of Amber Heard to the extent Undated 9 Jll-142 
that they are not already included in the trial 
bundle 

96. Photograph of a handwritten note on a Undated 9 143 
coaster [No metadata available] 

97. Photograph of wine on floor [No metadata Undated 9 144 
available] 

98. Photograph of broken candelabra [No Undated 9 145 
metadata available] 

99. Screenshots of Splash news image of Amber Undated 9 J46-J47 
Heard and Rocky Pennington 

100. Images of the Claimant with bruise to left Undated 9 J48-J5 l 
cheekbone [No metadata available for pages 
l to 4] 

Section K: Medical Records and related doc11ments 
101. Letter from Bonnie Jacobs 06.11.12 9 Kl 
l0l{a). Handwritten notes from Connell Cowan MD 0 .••.14 9 K2-K79 
102. Universal Diagnostic Laboratories results 27.08.14 9 K80-K87 
103. Emails between Dr Kipper, Erin Boerum and 02.09.14 9 K88-K89 

Lisa Beane 
104. Letter from Dr Kipper with enclosure 22.09.14 9 K90-K91 
105. Dr Kipper patient progress record for Amber 11.12.14 9 K92-K93 

Heard 
106. Progress Note for Amber Heard 24.01.15 9 K94 
107. Universal Diagnostic Laboratories results 23.02.15 9 K95-

KlOl 
108. Dr Kipper patient progress record for Amber 23.02.15 9 Kl02-

Heard K.103 
109. Images of Johnny Depp from hospital in ••.03.15 9 Kl04-

Australia Kl06 
110. Text messages between the Claimant and Dr Various 9 Kl07-

Kipper Kl17 

111. X-Rays of damage to the Claimant's finger 30.04.15 9 Kl18 
112. Image of injury and stitches to the Claimant's Undated 9 K119 

hand 
113. Letter from Dr Kipper 30.05.15 9 Kl20 
114. Text messages between Amber Heard and 20.08.15- 9 K12L-

Connell Cowan MD 15.12.15 K!22 
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115. Dr Kipper telephone consultation report 05.11.15 9 Kl23-

Kl24 

116. Integrative Psychiatry lab test results 17.12.15 9 K125-
Kl29 

117. Dr Kipper telephone consultation report 17.12.15 9 K130-

Kl31 

118. Note from Dr Kipper's office to Amber 17.12.15 9 Kl32-

Heard K133 

119. Text messages between Amber Heard and 31.12.15 9 K134-
Erin Boeurum Kl35 

120. Universal Diagnostic Laboratories results 15.01.16 9 Kl36 

121. Treatment record for Amber Heard 15.01.16 9 K137 

122. Universal Diagnostic Laboratories results 15.01.16 9 Kl38-
Kl40 

123. Treatment record for Amber Heard 01.02.16 9 Kl41-

Kl45 

124. Text messages between Amber Heard and 31.12.15- 9 Kl46-

Erin Boeurwn 26.02.16 Kl50 

125. Text messages between Amber Heard and Dr 11.02.16 9 Kl51 

Kipper 

126. Email from Amber Heard to Dr Kipper 27.08.14 9 Kl52 

127. Progress Note for Amber Heard 31.05.16 9 Kl53 

128. Dr Kipper patient record for Amber Heard 07.06.16 9 Kl54 

129. Letter from Dr Kipper 25.07.16 9 Kl55 

130. Dr Sugerman prescription 14.11.16 9 Kl56 

131. Combinatorial Phannacogenomic Test by Dr 13.02.18 9 Kl57-

Banks for Amber Heard Kl81 

132. Nursing Notes for Amber Heard Various 9 Kl82-
K212 

133. Dr Cowan notes for Amber Heard Various 9 K213-
K296 

Section L: Documents from US divorce proceedings 
134, Letter from Spector Law to Bloom Hergott 24.05.16 9 Ll-L2 

Diemer Rosenthal La Violette Feldman 
Schenlanan Goodman LLP re In re Marriage 

of Depp 

134(a). Declaration of Samantha Spector 27.05.16. 9 L3-L9 

135. Opposition to Petitioner, Amber Laura 27.05.16 9 LLO-Ll5 

Depp's Ex Part Application; and Declaration 
of Laura A. Wasser, Esq. 
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136. Further Declaratfon of Amber Laura Depp in 17.06.16 9 Ll6- L21 
support of Domestic Violence Restraining 
Order, together with Exhibit A and Proof of 
Service 

137. Respondent's Notice of Motion and Motion 09.08.16 9 L22-L70 
in Limine, together with: 

i. Declaration of Laura A. 
Wasser, together with Exhibit A 
(Request for Restraining Order dated 
25.07.16) 
ii. Memorandum of Points and 
Authorities dated 25.07.16 
iii. Declaration of Laura A. 
Wasser dated 25.07.16 
iv. Exhibits G, Q, and R 

138. Exhibits P and Q to Deposition of Amber 13.08.16 9 L71 
Laura Depp Volume 2 

138(a). Transcript of Exhibit P to Deposition of 13.08.16 9 L71.l 
Amber Laura Depp Volume 2 

138(b). Transcript of Exhibit Q to Deposition of 13.08.16 9 L71.2-
Amber Laura Depp Volume 2 L71.3 

139. Marriage of Depp Deal Point Memorandum 15.08.16 9 L72-L85 
Section M: Audio flies 
140. Audio recording with the filename 26.03.15 9 Ml-

'201503326 040115.m4a', recorded on 26 Ml.14 
March 2015 at l l:01:16pm (UTC+o) 
together with transcript 

141. Audio recording with the filename 04.01.16 9 M2.l-
'20160103 183858.m4a'. recorded on 4 M2.30 
January 2016 at 2:38:58pm (UTC+0) 
together with transcript 

142. Audio recording of conversation between 9 M3-Ml3 
Laura Divenere and Amber Heard together 
with transcript 

Section N: Journal entries 
143. Amber Heard's manuscriptjoumal entry 06.02.16 9 Nl-N8 
143(a). Amber Heard's manuscript journal entry 30.03.16 9 N9 

Section 0: Miscellaneous 
143(b). Tour Jet flight itinerary report and invoice 19.04.15 9 NI0-NI 1 
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144. Handwritten letter from the Claimant to Ms 03.04.16 9 01 
Heard 

145. Business Card for Officer Hadden and 21.05.16 9 02-03 
Officer Saenz with timestamp of 9. 16pm 

146. Page from handwritten letter between Ms Undated 9 04 
Heard and the Claimant 

147. Dr Blaustein' s handwritten medical notes Various 9 O5-O16G 
together with transcript with unagreed track 
changes 

147(a). 505-page extraction report Various 10 017-
0521 

Section P: Miscellaneous Documents 
Documenu relating to March 2013 
148. Ian McLagan Travel Document I -22.03.13- 11 Pl 

-24.03.13 
149. Ian McLagan Travel Document 2 21.03.13 11 P2 

150. Ian McLagan Travel Document 3 -22.03.13- 11 P3 
-24.03.13 

151. ''Happy'' - Day 1 Script Notes 21.03.13 11 P4-Pll 

152. "Happy" - Day 2 Script Notes 22.03.13 11 Pl2-Pl9 

153. "Happy" - Day 3 Script Notes 23.03.13 11 P20-P28 

154. "Happy" - Schedule 23.03.13 11 P29-P30 

155. Screcnshot of group photograph from the set 23.03.13 11 P31 
of"Happy" 

156. Screenshot ofa photograph of the Claimant 23.03.13 11 P32 
onstage during Nickelodeon's Kids' Choice 
A wards in Los Angeles 

Text messages 

157. Text messages from Kevin Murphy 21.03.13 to 11 P33 
22.03.13 

158. Text message from Amber Heard to Kevin Undated 11 P34 
Murphy 

158(a). Text messages between Unknown and Mr Various 11 P34.l-
Hop P34.2 

159. Text messages between Lily Rose Depp and Various 11 P35-P41 
the Claimant 

160. Text messages between Whitney Heard and Various 11 P42-P43 
the Claimant 
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Photographs 
160(a). Photographs and metadata from 2013 08.03.13- II P43.l-

22.03.13 P43.6 
160(a)(i). Screenshot of Amazon receipt ••.10.14 ]I P43.6A 

160(b). Photograph of master bedroom in Australia Undated 11 P43.7 
property 

161. Photograph of bedroom in Australia 08.03.15 11 P44 

16l(a). Plan of Australia house Undated 11 P45-P47 

162. Photographs of Amber Heard and others on 27.11.15 JI P48-P51 
Thanksgiving 2015 

163. Photographs of Amber Heard in the Bahamas ••. 12.15 11 P52-P54 

163(a). Photographs and metadata from 21 May 2016 21.05.16 11 P54.l-
P54.24 

164. Photograph from Amber Heard's Instagram 12.0320 11 P55-P56 
account 

165. Screenshot of video from Amber Beard's 14.0520 11 P57 
Instagram account 

165(a). Group photograph of the Claimant and others Undated 11 P57.I 

165(b). Photographs of Keith Richards Undated 11 P57.2-
P57.7 

166. Photographs of the Bahamas property Undated 11 P58-P64 

167. Photographs of the Eastern Columbia Undated 11 P65-P79 
Building apartments 

168. Photograph of Amber Heard and the Undated 11 P80 
Claimant 

169. Screenshot from video Undated 11 P81 

Videos 

170. Video of Thanksgiving 1 together with 27.11.15 11 P82-
transcript P82.l 

171. Video of Thanksgiving 2 together with 27.11.15 ll P83-
Claimant's transcript P83.2 

171.1 Video of Thanksgiving 2 together with 27.11.15 11 P83.2.l-
Defendants' transcript P83.2.2 

171(a). Video of Amber Heard leaving Court 27.05.16 11 P83.1 

172. Video of the Bahamas property l Undated 11 P84 

173. Video of the Bahamas property 2 Undated 11 P85 
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174. Amber Heard says birth on US Mexico Undated 11 P86-87 
border sparked rights activism II Video cLlp 
from Reuters, together with transcript 

175. Amber Heard makes out with Johnny Depp II Undated 11 P88-P90 
Video clip from She Knows, together with 
transcript 

176. Amber Heard hearts Johnny Depp II Video Undated 11 P9I-P94 
clip from Young Hollywood, together with 
transcript 

177. The Rum Diary London Premiere, Amber Undated 11 P95-P98 
Heard interview video clip, together with 
transcript 

178. Amber Heard Interview for the Rum Diary II Undated 11 P99-P102 
Video clip from Empire Magazine 

179. • Amber Heard al One Young World 2018 Undated 11 PI03-
summit a The Hague' video clip, together PI08 
with transcript 

180. Amber Heard su Sky News, in direetta dal Undated 11 P109-
One Young World II Sky News video clip, Pll0 
together with transcript 

181. Amber Heard intervistate da Sky News al Undated 11 Pl 11-
One Young World summit II Sky News video Pl 12 
clip, together with transcript 

182. Audio clip of Amber Heard's court hearing Undated 11 Pl 13-
in Washington (from 1MZ article), together Pll4 
with transcript 

Articles 

183. Did Amber Heard Pull Off This Matte Red 18.10.11 11 Pl 15-
Lipstick? II Glamour Pll7 

184. Amber Heard: Look Book II Glamour 13.03.13 11 P118-
Pl41 

185. Amber Heard Left Home at 16: 'I needed to 20.08.13 11 Pl42-
go' II Extratv.com Pl43 

186. Amber Heard has charmed Johnny Depp and 19.02.14 11 P144-
the rest of us too II Daily News Pl46 

187. Amber Heard is more complicated than you 01.07.15 11 Pl47-
think II Elle Pl66 

188. Amber ascendant II Marie Claire 0l.12.15 11 Pl67-
Pl69 

189. How to get Amber Heard's pristine Golden I 1.01.16 11 Pl70-
Globes pout II Hollywood Reporter Pl72 
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190. Charges dropped against Amber Heard for 18.04.16 11 P173-
bringing dogs to Australia with Johnny Depp Pl76 
II The Guardian 

191. Johnny Depp: Amber Heard files for divorce 25.05.16 11 P177-
on the heels of his Mom's death II TMZ P178 

192. Johnny Depp Speaks Out After Ambe.r Heard 26.05.16 11 Pl79-
Files for Divorce, Says He Hopes 'This Shot Pl83 
Marriage Will Be Resolved Quickly' II 
People.com 

193. Amber Heard leaves meeting with lawyers 29.05.16 11 Pl84-
a.fter split from husband Johnny Depp II Daily P210 
Mail 

194. Amber Heard looks worryingly thin as she 24.06.16 11 P21 l-
jets back to Los Angeles II Daily Mail II by P233 
Kayla Caldwell 

195. Amber Heard Shows Up Late for Deposition 06.08.16 11 P234-
in Johnny Depp Divorce Case II Just Jared P239 

196. Amber Heard Lands in Los Angeles for her 13.08.16 11 P240-
deposition II Just Jared P245 

197. Amber Heard and new boyfriend Elon Musk 24.04.17 11 P246-
go ziplining P283 

198. Amber Heard gets cost with Spanish hunk 24.08.17 11 P284-
after split from Elon Musk II News CoIJ> P288 
Australia Network 

199. Amber Heard on the Border Crisis, growing 18.04.18 11 P289-
up in South Texas & ICE Checkpoints II P297 
Refinery29.com 

200. Amber Heard wore a $30 headdress made 08.05.18 11 P298-
with zip ties to the Met Gala II Insider P304 

201. James Franco subpoenaed in Johnny Depp's 02.07.19 11 P305-
$50m suit against Amber Heard: report II P306 
Pagesix.com 

202. Surveillance Video Shows James Franco 02.07.19 11 P307-
with Amber Heard one day after blowout P321 
fight with Johnny Depp II The Blast 
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF FAIRF'AX COUNTY, VIRGINIA 

JOHN C. DEPP, II 

Plaintiff, 

V. 

AMBER LAURA HEARD, 

Defendant. 
Civil Action No.: CL-2019-0002911 

PLAINTIFF JOHN C. DEPP, Il,S FIRST SET OF DOCUMENT REQUESTS TO 
DEFENDANT AMBER LAURA HEARD 

Pursuant to Rule 4:9 of the Rules of the Supreme Court of Virginia, Plaintiff John C. 

Depp, II, by and through his undersigned counsel, requests that Defendant Amber Laura Heard 

produce the documents identified below for inspection and copying at the offices of Brown 

Rudnick LLP, 601 Thirteenth Street NW Suite 600, Washington, DC 20005, within twenty-one 

(21) days of service. 

DEFINITIONS 

1. "Action" shall mean this litigation pending in the Circuit Court for Fairfax County 

captioned, John C. Depp, II v. Amber Laura Heard, Case No. CL-2019-0002911. 

2. "Communication" shall mean every written or oral manner of transmitting or 

receiving facts, ideas, information and opinions, including, without limitation: correspondence; 

telexes; telecopies; electronic mail; all attachments and enclosures thereto; text messages; 

computer tapes; discs; telephone tape recordings; recordings of any other type in any medium of 

written or oral communications; phone logs; message logs; and notes and memoranda of, 

referring to, or relating to, written or oral communications. 

Plt.@cw. a, 
Date -:J ·::: Jo2:I 
Judge -:-:--L.:~'-':-'---­

Case It CL-tq, aA II 



3. "Complaint" shall mean the complaint filed by Ph1intiff against Defendant in the 

Action. 

4. "Declaration" shall mean the document titled "Declaration of Amber Laura 

Heard", dated April 10, 2019, which was filed by you in this proceeding on April 11, 2019. 

5. "Document" and "Documents" are used in their broadest possible sense within the 

meaning under law and shall include by way of example, but not lirnitation, any written, printed, 

typed, spoken, computerized, or other graphic, phonic, or recorded matter of any kind or nature, 

however produced or reproduced, whether sent or received or neither, including drafts and copies 

bearing notations or marks not found on the original, including the following: 

a. all contracts, agreements, representations, warranties, ce1tificates, and 

opinions; 

b. all letters or other forms of correspondence or communication, including 

electronic mail, facsimiles, envelopes, notes, memoranda, telegrams, cables, text messages, 

voice-mail messages, messages sent or received via social media platform, and messages 

(including reports, notes, notations, diary entries, and memoranda or other records of or relating 

to telephone conversations or conferences); 

c. all memoranda, reports, financial statements, valuations, notes, transcripts, 

tabulations, studies, analyses, evaluations, projections, work papers, notebooks, corporate or 

other records or copies thereof, lists, comparisons, questionnaires, surveys, charts, curves, 

graphs, summaries, extracts, statistical records, and compilations; 

d. all desk and pocket calendars, appointment books, diaries, and logs; 

e. all books, scrapbooks, articles, speeches, press releases, magazines, 

newspapers, booklets, circulars, bulletins, notices, instructions, brochures, and manuals; 
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f. all transcripts or records of meetings, discussions, or conferences, 

including tape recordings and minutes; 

g. all photographs, microfilm, microfiche, phonogr~phs, tapes or other 

records, punch cards, magnetic tapes, disks, data cells, drums, printouts, and other electronic, 

computerized, or other data compilations from which information can or may be obtained; and 

h. all presentation materials, including computer generated or other 

electronic presentation pages, slides, overhead projections overlays, handouts, pamphlets, charts, 

posters, films, and videos. 

6. "Mr. Depp" shall mean Plaintiff John C. Depp, II and all persons acting on bis 

behalf. 

7. 

her bebaJf. 

"Ms. Heard" shall mean Defendant Amber Laura Heard and all persons acting on 

8. "Op-ed" shall mean the writing submitted by Ms. Heard in December 2018 for 

publication in the Washington Post. 

9. "Person" shall mean any naturaJ person or any business, legal, or government 

entity, or association. 

10. "You," "your," or "Defendant" means Defendant Amber Laura Heard. 

11. The terms "concerning," "relating to," "referring to," "pertaining to," "reflecting," 

"evidencing," and "constituting" are used, for purposes of these requests, as equivalent terms, 

each including the others. 

12. In order to bring matters within the scope of these requests which might otherwise 

be construed lo be outside their scope: 

a. "each" includes the word "every," and "every" includes the word "each"; 
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b. "any" includes the word "all," and "all" includes the work "any"; 

c. "and," "or" or "and/or" shall be construed conjunctively or disjunctively 

as necessary to make the request inclusive rather than exclusive; 

d. "all" shall also include "each of' and vice-versa; and 

e. the singular jocludes the plural and vice-versa. 

13. All words, terms and phrases not specifically defined in these requests are to be 

given their normal and customary meaning in the context in which they are used herein. 

INSTRUCTIONS 

1. You are requested to produce all responsive documents in your possession, 

custody or control, wherever located, including, without limitation, those in the custody of your 

attorneys, agents, representatives and affiliates. 

2. You shall provide a written response to each request herein. 

3. The request shall be deemed to be continuing and you are required to promptly 

produce in the form of a supplemental document production any document requested berein that 

is unavailable to you at the time of the production called for, but which becomes available to you 

or your attorneys, agents or representatives up to the conclusion of the proceedings herein. The 

date such additional documents came into your possession shall be specified, as well as the 

identity of the individuals who furnished such additional documents to the person preparing the 

response. 

4. If any part of the following requests cannot be responded to in full, please respond 

to the extent possible, specifying the reason(s) for your inability to respond to the remainder and 

stating whatever information or knowledge you have concemin& the portion to which you do not 

respond. 
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5. If an objection is made to any request contained herein, for each item or category 

objected to: 

a) State the specific ground for each objection; 

b) Identify each such document by giving its date, the name of each author, 
the name of each addressee (and each recipient, if different), and by giving any 
other information necessary to identify such document or part thereof; and 

c) Proyide a description of the subject matter of each document or item. 

Any ground not stated in an objection within the time frame provided by the relevant rule, or any 

extensions thereof, shall be waived. 

6. If there are no documents in existence that are requested in a particular paragraph 

of these requests, the Response must include a statement to that effect in writing. 

7. Where any copy of any document whose production is sought herein, whether a 

draft or final version, is not identical to any copy thereof, by reason of alterations, notes, 

comments, initials, underscoring, indication of routing, or other material contained thereon or 

attached thereto, all such non-identical copies are to be produced separately. 

8. If any document requested herein was formerly in your possession, custody or 

control (or that of your representative) and has been lost or destroyed or otherwise disposed of, 

you are requested to submit in lieu of any such document a written statement (a) describing in 

detail the nature of the document and its contents, including the document's date, subject matter, 

number of pages, and attachments and appendices, (b) identifying the ·person( s) who prepared or 

authored the document and, if applicable, the person(s) to whom the document was sent, 

distributed, shown, or explained, (c) specifying the date on which the document was prepared or 

transmitted, (d) specifying the date on which the document was lost or destroyed and, if 

destroyed, the conditions of and r!!asons for such destruction and the person(s) requesting and 

performing the destruction, and (e) where the document was maintained prior to its destruction. 
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9. Hard copies of all documents should be produced; in addition, copies of aJl 

documents available electronically should be delivered on a DVD 01· CD-ROM. 

IO, A request for any document shall be deemed to include a request for any and all 

transmittal sheets, cover letters, exhibits, enclosures, or attachments to such document, in 

addition to the document in its fuJI and unexpurgated form. 

11. Documents should be segregated according to the number of the request to which 

you are responding or produced in tbe manner they are kept in the ordinary course of business. 

Documents attached to each other should not be separated. 

12. With the exception of any spreadsheets or database documents (e.g. documents 

created on software such as Microsoft Excel or Microsoft Access), which shall be produced in 

their native format, all electronically-slored information ("ESI") images shalJ be produced in one 

of the following formats: CCITT Group 4, Single-Paged TIFF files or Single-Paged JPG files 

with an Opticon image load file. A Concordance DAT metadata load file of all such ES] shall 

also be provided with a link to the text files and shall contain extractable metadata, including at 

least the following: Beginning Bates, Ending Bates, Beginning Bates Attachment, Ending Bates 

Attachment, Custodian, File Name, From, Recipient, CC, BCC, Subject, Date Sent, Ti.me Sent, 

Last Modified Date, Author, Title, Date Created, Time Created, Document Extension, Page 

Count, MDSHash, Text Path and Native File Path. The text file format shall be Multi-Paged 

Document level text files. ln addition, if documents are produced with slip-sheets, please 

include the native file, as well as links to the natives in the DAT file. Hard copy documents or 

any documents or things that do not qualify as ESI shall be scanned and produced in single page 

TIFF format with separate OCR files for each document, and shall be included in the load file for 

ESI. 
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13. If any privilege is claimed as to any communication requested or sought to be 

identified herein: 

herein: 

a) State the nature of the privilege of the claim (i.e., attorney/client, work 
product, etc.), 

b) State the name of the party claiming privilege and the name of the 
attorney, if any, with respect to whom the privilege is claimed, 

c) State the basis for claiming the privilege as to the specific communication, 

d) Identify all persons present at any communication to which privilege is 
claimed and aU persons to whom the subject matter of the communication was 
discussed or disclosed, and 

e) State the date of each such communication. 

14. If any privilege is claimed as to any document requested or sought to be identified 

a) State the nature of the privilege claimed (i.e., attorney/client, work 
product, etc.), 

b) State the basis for claiming the privilege as to the specific information or 
documents, and 

c) State the date of such document, identify the type of document (i.e., letter, 
memo, etc.), set forth the subject matter thereof, identify each person who 
prepared it and each person (if any) who signed it, identify each person to whom 
it was directed, circulated or shown, and identify each person now in possession 
of the document. 

15. For purposes of each document request, each such request for documents to be 

produced by you expressly includes documents in the possession of your attorneys, and any 

consultants or experts retained by you or your attorneys in connection with this action. 

16. Produce all responsive documents as they are kept in the usual course of business 

or organize and label them to correspond with the categories in this request. 

17. Plaintiff hereby reserves the right to expand or supplement all requests for 

information and documents set forth herein. 

7 



REQUESTS FOR PRODUCTION 

1. All Documents and Communications by and between you and any person relating 
to the purpo1ted incident in Los Angeles, California in late 2012 or early 2013, as described in 1 
5 of your Declaration. 

RESPONSE: 

2. All Documents and Communications by and between you and any person relating 
to the purported incident in Los Angeles, California on March 8, 2013, as described in~ 6 of 
your Declaration. 

RESPONSE: 

3. All Documents and Communications by and between you and any person relating 
to the purported incident occurring on a flight from Boston, Massachusetts to Los Angeles, 
California on or about May 24, 2014, as described in 117-8 of your Declaration. 

RESPONSE: 

4. All Documents and Communications by and between you and any person relating 
to the purported incident in the Bahamas on August 17, 2014, as described in 11 9-lJ of your 
Declaration. 

RESPONSE: 

5. All Documents and Communications by and between you and any person relating 
to the purported incident in Los Angeles on December 17, 2014, as described in 1 12 of your 
Declaration. 

RESPONSE: 

6. All Documents and Communications by and between you and any person relating 
to the purported incident taking place in a hotel room in Tokyo, Japan on January 25, 2015, as 
described in 13 of your Declaration. 

RESPONSE: 
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7. All Documents and Communications by and between you and any person relating 
to the purported incident in Australia on March 3 through March 5, 201 S, as described in 1~ 14-
18 of your Declaration. 

RESPONSE: 

8. All Documents and Communications by and between you and any person relating 
to the purported incident in Los Angeles, California in March 2015, as described in 1~ 19-20 of 
your Declaration. 

RESPONSE: 

9. AU Documents and Communications by and between you and any person relating 
to the purported incident in Thailand and Malaysia in August 2015, as described in~ 21 of your 
Declaration. 

RESPONSE: 

l 0. All Documents and Communications by and between you apd any person relating 
to the purported incident in Los Angeles, California on November 26, 2015, as described in 122 
of your Declaration. 

RESPONSE: 

11. All Documents and Communications by and between you and any person relating 
to the purported incident in Los Angeles, California on December 15, 2015, as described in 1~ 
23-33 of your Declaration. 

RESPONSE: 

12. All Documents and Communications by and between you and any person relating 
to the purported incident in Los Angeles, California on April 21, 2016, as described in ~134-35 
of your Declaration. 

RESPONSE: 
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13. All Documents and Communications by and between you and any person relating 
to the purported incident in Los Angeles, California on May 21, 2016, as described in 11 3 6-42 
of your Declaration. 

RESPONSE: 

14. All Documents and Communfoations by and between you and any person relating 
lo the purported injuries that appeared on your face on May 27, 2016, as described in 11143-44 of 
your Declaration, including any Documents or Communications !'elating to how you came to 
have those purported injuries on your face on May 27, 2016. 

RESPONSE: 

15. All Docwnents and Communications by and between you and any person relating 
to any domestic abuse incidents in which you assaulted Mr. Depp. 

RESPONSE: 

16. All Documents and Communications by and between you and any person relating 
to the incident between you and Tasya van Ree that occurred at the Seattle-Tacoma International 
Airport on September 14, 2009, which resulted in your arrest. 

RESPONSE: 

17. All Documents and Communications by and between you and any person relating 
to any other domestic abuse allegations against Mr. Depp not identified in Request Nos. 1 
through 14. 

RESPONSE: 

18. All Documents and Communications by and between you and any person relating 
to your relationship with Elon Musk. 

RESPONSE: 

19. All Documents and Communications by and between you and any person relating 
to your requesting Ms. Trinity Esparza and Mr. Brandon Patterson of the Eastern Columbia 
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Building to give a statement to People Magazine approximately one week after you made your 
domestic abuse allegations against Mr. Depp on May 27, 2016. 

RESPONSE: 

20. All Documents, including but not limited to original· Documents-with 
metadata-that you presented to the Los Angeles County Superior Court to obtain a temporary 
restraining order against Mr. Depp. 

RESPONSE: 

21. All Documents relating to your appearance at the Los Angeles County Superior 
Court on May 27, 2016. 

RESPONSE: 

22. All Documents and Communications by and between you and Raquel Pennington, 
iO Tillett Wright, Elizabeth Marz, Whitney Heard, and/or any other person relating to any of 
your domestic abuse allegations against Mr. Depp or your temporary restraining order against 
Mr. Depp. 

RESPONSE: 

23. All Communications with Raquel Pennington and iO Tillett Wright concerning 
the affidavits they submitted in support of your temporary restraining order against Mr. Depp. 

RESPONSE: 

24. All Communications that you had with any person concerning your domestic 
abuse allegations against Mr. Depp or the temporary restraining order that you obtained against 
Mr. Depp, including but not limited to any requests to any person to provide an affidavit in 
support of your temporary restraining order, regardless of whether such person ultimately 
provided an affidavit. 

RESPONSE: 
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25. All Communications that you bad with any person concerning your domestic 
abuse allegations against Mr. Depp, including but not limited to any requests to any person to 
make public statements concerning your allegations, to report on your allegations in the media, 
or to comment on your allegations on any social media platform. 

RESPONSE: 

26. All Communications with Jodi Gottlieb, Blaine Zuckerman, or People Magazine 
relating to your domestic abuse allegations against Mr. Depp, your temporary restraining order 
against Mr. Depp, or public reaction to the same. 

RESPONSE: 

27. All Documents and Communications reflecting your in-person interactions with 
Elon Musk at or near May 27, 2016 when you obtained the temporary restraining order against 
Mr. Depp. 

RESPONSE: 

28. All Communications concerning Elon Musk visiting you at any time at the 
Eastern ColumbiaBuilding, Located at 849 South Broadway Los Angeles, CA 90014. 

RESPONSE: 

29. All Documents and Communications regarding the Op-Ed, including all drafts, 
notes, outlines, and communications with employees and agents of the Washington Post and 
American Civil Liberties Union ("ACLU"). 

RESPONSE: 

30. All Documents and Communications concerning the events described m 
paragraph 54 oftbe Declaration. 

RESPONSE: 
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Dated: July 9, 2019 

Respectfully submitted, 

1,jamin G. Chew (VSB #29113) 
Elliot J. Weingarten (pro hac vice) 
Camille M: Vasquez (pro hac vice application pending) 
Andrew C. Crawford (VSB #89093) 
BROWN RUDNICK, LLP 
601 Thirteenth Street NW, Suite 600 
Washington, DC 20005 
Phone: (202) 53 6-1785 
Fax: (617) 289-0717 
bcbew@brownrudnick.com 

- and -

Robert B. Gilmore 
Kevin L. Attridge 
S1EIN MITCHELL BEA TO & MISSNER LLP 
901 15th Street NW, Suite 700 
Washington, DC 20005 
Phone: (202) 601-1589 
Fax: (202) 296-8312 
rgilmore@steinmitchell.com 

Adam R. Waldman 
THE ENDEAVOR GROUP LAW FIRM, P.C. 
1775 Pennsylvania Avenue NW, Suite 350 
Washington, DC 20006 

Counsel for Plaintiff John C. Depp, JI 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that on this 9th day of July, 2019, l caused a copy of the foregoing 
document to be served by band pursuant to Rule 1 :12 of the Supreme Court of Virginia to the 
following: 

Timothy J. McEvoy, Esq. 
Sean Patrick Roche, Esq. 
CAMERON/McEVOY, PLLC 
4100 Monument Comer Drive, Suite 420 
Fairfax, VA 22030 

. Phone: (703) 273-8898 
Fax: (703) 273-8897 
t1nccvoy@cameronmcevoy.com 
sroche(@.cameronmcevoy.com 

1 hereby certify that on this 9th day of July, 2019, I caused a copy of the foregoing 
document to be served by email and first-class mail, postage prepaid pursuant to Rule 1: 12 of the 
Supreme Court of Virginia to the following: 

Eric M. George, Esq. 
Richard A. Schwartz, Esq. 
BROWNE GEORGE ROSS LLP 
2121 Avenue of the Stars, Suite 2800 
Los Angeles, CA 90067 
Phone: (310)274-1700 
Fax: (310) 275-5697 
cgeorge@bgrfirm.com 
rschwartz@bgrfirm.com 
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VIRGINIA: 

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF FAIRFAX COUNTY, VIRGINIA 

JOHN C. DEPP, ll 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

AMBER LAURA HEARD, 

Defendant. 
Civil Action No.: CL-2019-0002911 

PLAINTIFF JOHN C. DEPP, II'S SECOND SET OF REQUESTS FOR PRODUCTION 
TO DEFENDANT AMBER LAURA HEARD 

Pursuant to Rule 4:9 of the Rules of the Supreme Court of Virginia, Plaintiff John C. 

Depp, II, by and through bis undersigned counsel, requests that Defendant Amber Laura Heard 

produce the documents identified below for inspection and copying at the offices of Brown 

Rudnick LLP, 601 Thirteenth Street NW Suite 600, Washington, DC 20005, within twenty-one 

(21) days of service. 

DEFINITIONS AND INSTRUCTIONS 

Definitions 

1. "Action" shall mean this litigation pending in the Circuit Court for Fairfax County 

captioned, John C. Depp, II v. Amber Laura Heard, Case No. CL-2019-0002911. 

2. "Chat Application" shall mean any electronic program or application, usable on 

any device or platform, that allows the usel' to communicate with another person by way of 

exchange of text messages and/or images, including, but not limited to, iMessage, Facebook 

Plt.~cw.~ 
oate ~Jl• AQa.l 
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Messenger, WhatsApp, WeChat, Slack, TwitteJ, Skype, Instagram, Kile, Signal, Telegram, Viber, 

Threema, Dust, and Wicl<r. 

3. "Communication" shall mean every written or oral manner of transmitting or 

receiving facts, ideas, information and opinions, including, without limitation: correspondence; 

telexes; telecopies; electronic mail; all attachments and enclosures thereto; text messages; 

computer tapes; discs; telephone tape recordings; recordings of any other type in any medium of 

written or oral communications; phone logs; message logs; and notes and memoranda of, 

referring to, or relating to, written or oral communications. 

4. "Complaint" shall mean the complaint filed by Plaintiff against Defendant in the 

Action. 

5. ''Declaration" shall mean the documents titled "Declaration of Amber Laura 

Heard", dated April 10, 2019, which was filed by you in this proceeding on April 1 I, 2019. 

6. "Document" and "Documents" are used in their broadest possible sense within the 

meaning under law and shall include by way of example, but not limitation, any written, printed, 

typed, spoken, computerized, or other graphic, phonic, or recorded matter of any kind or nature, 

however produced or reproduced, whether sent or received or neither, including drafts and copies 

bearmg notatjons or marks not found on the original, inclucting the following: 

a. all contracts, agreements, representations, warranties, certificates, and 

opinions; 

b. all letters or other forms of correspondence or communication, including 

electronic mail, facsimiles, envelopes, notes, memoranda, telegrams, cables, text messages, 

voice-mail messages, messages sent or received via social media platfonn, and messages 

(including reports, notes, notations, diary entries, and memoranda or other records of or relating 
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to telephone conversations or conferences); 

c. all memoranda, reports, financial statements, valuations, reports, notes, 

transcripts, tabulations, studies, analyses, evaluations, projections, work papers, notebooks, 

corporate or other records or copies thereof, lists, comparisons, questionnaires, sw-veys, charts, 

curves, graphs, summaries, extracts, statistical records, and compilations; 

d. all desk and pocket calendars, appointment books, diaries, and logs; 

e. all books, scrapbooks, articles, speeches, press releases, magazines, 

newspapers, booklets, circulars, bulletins, notices, instructions, brochures, and manuals; 

f. all transcripts or records of meetings, discussions, or conferences, 

including tape recordings and minutes; 

g. all photographs, microfilm, microfiche, phonographs, tapes or other 

records, punch cards, magnetic tapes, disks, data cells, drums, printouts, and other electronic, 

computerized, or other data compilations from which information can or may be obtained; and 

h. all presentation materials, including computer generated or other 

electronic presentation pages, slides, overhead projections overlays, handouts, pamphlets, charts, 

posters, films, and videos. 

7. "Mr. Depp" shall mean Plaintiff. John C. Depp, TI and all persons acting on his 

behalf, including but not limited to his agents, representatives, employees, and assigns. 

8. "Ms. Heard" shall mean Defendant Amber Laura Heard and all persons acting on 

her behalf, including but not limited to her agents, representatives, employees, and assigns. 

9. "Op-ed" shall mean the writing submitted by Ms. Heard in December 2018 for 

publication in the Washington Post. 

I 0. "Person" shall mean any natural person or any business, legal, or government 
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entity, or association. 

11. "Romantic Partner" shall mean any persons You have touched in a sexual manner 

in the past ten (10) years, meaning: (a) direct contact between any part of Your body and another 

person's genitalia, anus, groin, breast, inner thigh, or buttocks; or (b) direct contact between any 

party of a third party's body and Your genitalia, anus, groin, breast, inner thigh, or buttocks. 

12. "You," "your," or '1Defendant" means Defendant Amber Laura Heard, as well as 

all persons and entities over which Ms. Heard has "control" as understood by the Rules of this 

Court. 

13. The terms "concerning," "relating to," "referring to," "pertaining to," "reflecting," 

"evidencing," and "constituting" are used, for purposes of these requests, as equivalent terms, 

each including the others. 

14. In order to bring matters withln the scope of these requests which might otherwise 

be construed to be outside their scope: 

a. "each" includes the word "every," and "every" includes the word "each"; 

b. "any" includes the word "all," and "all" includes the work "any"; 

c. "and," "or" or "and/or" shall be construed conjunctively or disjunctively 

as necessary to make the request inclusive rather than exclusive; 

d. "all" shall also include "each of' and vice-versa; and 

e. the singular includes the plural and vice-versa 

15. All words, terms and phrases not specifically defined in these requests are to be 

given their normal and customary meaning in the context in which they are used herein. 

Instructions 

1. You are requested to produce all responsive docwnents m your possession, 
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custody or control, wherever located, including, without limitation, those in the custody of your 

attorneys, agents, representatives and affiliates. 

2. You shall provide a written response to each request herein. 

3. The request shall be deemed to be continuing and you are required to promptly 

produce in the form of a supplemental document production any document requested herein that 

is unavailable to you at the time of the production called for, but which becomes available to you 

or your attorneys, agents or representatives up to the conclusion of the proceedings herein. The 

date such additional documents came into your possession shall be specified, as well as the 

identity of the individuals who furnished such additional documents to the person preparing the 

response. 

4. If any part of the following requests cannot be responded to in full, please respond 

to the extent possible, specifying the reason(s) for your inability to respond to the remainder and 

stating whatever information or knowledge you have concerning the portion to which you do not 

respond. 

5. If an objection is made to any request contained herein, for each item or category 

objected to: 

a) State the specific ground for each objection; 

b) Identify each such document by giving its date, the name of each author 
(and each address or, if different), the name of each addressee (and each recipient, 
if different), and by giving any other infonnation necessary to identify such 
document or part thereof; and 

c) Provide a description of the subject matter of each document or item. 

Any ground not stated in an objection within the time frame provided by the relevant rule, or any 

extensions thereof, shall be waived. 

6. If there are no documents in existence that are requested in a particular paragraph 
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of this request, the Response must include a statement to that effect in writing. 

7. Where any copy of any document whose production is sought herei.n, whether a 

draft or final version, is not identical to any copy thereof, by reason of alterations, notes, 

comments, initials, underscoring, indication of routing, or other material contained thereon or 

attached thereto, all such non-identical copies are to be produced separately. 

8. If any document requested herein was formerly in your possession, custody or 

control (or that of your representative) and has been lost or destroyed or otherwise disposed of, 

you are requested to submit in lieu of any such document a written statemen~ (a) describing in 

detail the nature of the document and its contents, including the document's date, subject matter, 

number of pages, and attachments and appendices, (b) identifying the person(s) who prepared or 

authored the document and, if applicable, the person(s) to whom the document was sent, 

distributed, shown, or explained, (c) specifying the date on which the document was prepared or 

transmitted, (d) specifying the date on which the document was lost or destroyed and, if 

destroyed, the conditions of and reasons for such destruction and the person(s) requesting and 

performing the destruction, and ( e) where the document was maintained prior to its destruction. 

9. Hard copies of all documents should be produced, in addition, copies of all 

documents available electronically should be delivered on a DVD or CD-ROM. 

10. A request for any document shall be deemed to include a request for any and all 

transmittal sheets, cover letters, exhibits, enclosures, or attachments to such document, in 

addition to the document in its full and unexpurgated form. 

11. Documents should be segregated according to the number of the request to which 

you are responding or produced in the manner they are kept in the ordinary course of business. 

Documents attached to each other should not be separated. 
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12. With the exception of any spreadsheets or database documents (e.g. documents 

created on software such as Microsoft Excel or Microsoft Access), which shall be produced in 

their native format, all electronically-stored information ("EST") images shall be produced in one 

of the following formats: CCITT Group 4, Single-Paged TIFF files or Single-Paged JPG files 

with an Opticon image load file. A Concordance DAT metadata load file of all such ES[ shall 

also be provided with a link to the text files and shall contain extractable metadata, including at 

least the following: Beginning Bates, Ending Bates, Beginning Bates Attachment, Ending Bates 

Attachment, Custodian, File Name, From, Recipient, CC, BCC, Subject, Date Senf, Time Sent, 

Last Modified Date, Author, Title, Date Created, Time Created, Document Extension, Page 

Count, MD5Hash, Text Path and Native File Path. The text file format shall be Multi-Paged 

Document level text files. In addition, if documents are produced with slip-sheets, please 

include the native file, as well as links to the natives in the DAT file. Hard copy documents or 

any documents or things that do not qualify as ESI shall be scanned and produced in single page 

TIFF fonnat with separate OCR files for each document, and shall be included in the load file for 

ESL 

13. If any privilege is claimed as to any communication requested or sought to be 

identified herein: 

a) State the nature of the privilege of the claim (i.e., attorney/client, work 
product, etc.), 

b) State the name of the party claiming privilege and the name of the 
attorney, if any, with respect to whom the privilege is claimed, 

c) State the basis for claiming the privilege as to the specific communication, 

d) Identify all persons present at any communication to which privilege is 
claimed and all persons to whom the subject matter of the communication was 
discussed or disclosed, and 

e) State the date of each such communication. 
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14. If any privilege is claimed as to any document requested or sought to be identified 

herein: 

a) State the nature of the privilege claimed (i.e., attorney/client, work 
product, etc.), 

b) State the basis for claiming the privilege as to the specific information or 
documents, and 

c) State the date of such document, identify the type of document (i.e., letter, 
memo, etc.), set forth the subject matter thereof, identify each person who 
prepared it and each person (if any) who signed it, identify each person to whom 
it was directed, circulated or shown, and identify each person now in possession 
of the docwnent. 

15. For purposes of each document request, each such request for documents lo be 

produced by you expressly includes documents in the possession of your attorneys, and any 

consultants or experts retained by you or your attorneys in connection with this action. 

16. Produce all responsive documents as they are kept in the usual course of business 

or organize and label them to correspond with the categories in this request. 

17. Plaintiff hereby reserves the right to expand or supplement all requests for 

information and documents set forth herein. 

REQUESTS FOR PRODUCTION 

1. All Documents and Communications between You and any person employed by 

You or working on your behalf pertaining to any act of violence, or attempted acts of violence by 

You or Mr. Depp in the past 10 years. 

RESPONSE: 

2. All Documents and Communications between You and any person employed by 

You or working on your behalf pertaining to the use of narcotics by You or Mr. Depp from 2013 

to present. 

RESPONSE: 
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3. All Documents and Communications pertaining to any treatment for alcohol or 

drug use or abuse by You or Mr. Depp from 2013 to present. 

RESPONSE: 

4. Documents sufficient to show payments You or anyone acting on your behalf 

made to any firm or entity that provides services related to print, television, newspaper or other 

traditional media from 20 l S to present, not including for services related to marketing films .. 

RESPONSE: 

5. All Documents and Communications by and between you and Raquel Pennington, 

iO TiUett Wright, Elizabeth Marz, Whitney Heard, or Josh Drew that mention Mr. Depp or any 

of Your other Romantic Partners from 2010 to April, 2019 . 

RESPONSE: 

6. All Documents and Communications exchanged between You or anyone ac~g 

on Your behalf and Dr. David Kipper that mention Mr. Depp or any of Your other Romantic 

Partners from 20 l O to present. 

RESPONSE: 

7. Documents sufficient to show each time You were arrested and the reason(s) for 

the arrest. 

RESPONSE: 

8. A complete copy of all medical records, charts and files from any mental and/or 

physical health care providers who have seen, consulted, examined or provided treatment or 

services to You from 20 IO to the present, including but not limited to Dr. David Kipper. 

RESPONSE: 

9. Copies of all of Your personal journals and/or diaries from 2010 to the present. 
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RESPONSE: 

10. Copies of any and all correspondence or other records that You or anyone acting 

on Your behalf received from or sent to: (1) any mental and/or physical health care providers 

from 2010 to the present; and (2) any health insurer providing you coverage for any medical, 

psychiatric, counseling, rehabHitation or other care from 2010 to the present. 

RESPONSE: 

11. Documents sufficient to show any prescription drugs You have obtained from 

January 20 IO to the present, including any prescription drugs that You currently take. 

RESPONSE: 

12. Copies of any reports, written memoranda or notes prepared by each expert 

witness that You will or may call as a witness at the trial of this matter. 

RESPONSE: 

13. Copies of all journal articles, learned treatises, periodicals, pamphlets, or any 

other type of publication that each of Your expert witnesses or speciaUsts has used or relied upon 

in forming his or her opinion in this case, or that You otherwise will or may use at trial. 

RESPONSE: 

14. Copies of all exhibits or demonstrative exhibits You or Your attorneys will or 

may use, introduce or attempt to introduce at the trial of this matter. 

RESPONSE: 

15. Copies of all written statements taken or assembled in connection with this Action 

or with Your investigation, formal or informal, of the matters at issue in this Action, and all 

drafts and redlines/blacklines or edits thereof. 

RESPONSE: 
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16. All documents viewed by, relied upon, or referred to in answering any 

Interrogatory propounded by Mr. Depp. 

RESPONSE: 

17. To the extent not provided in response to other requests, all non-privileged 

documents, notes, records, tape recordings, video recordings, or other written or recorded 

materials prepared by You or on Your behalf concerning the occurrences described in the 

Complaint, Your Declaration, Your Op-Ed, and Your 2016 declaration submitted in support of 

your request for a temporary restraining order. 

RESPONSE: 

18. All Documents and Communications by and between you and any person relating 

to the claims or defenses in this Action. 

RESPONSE: 

19. All Docwnents and Communications by and between You and any person 

working or purporting to work on behalf of the American Civil Liberties Union ("ACLU") 

related to the Op-Ed, Your Declaration, and any claims or defenses in this Action. 

RESPONSE: 

20. All Documents and Communications by and between You and any person 

working or purporting to work on behalf of the Washington Post related to tlie Op-Ed, Your 

Declaration, and any claims or defenses in this Action. 

RESPONSE:· 

21. All Documents and Communications by and between You and any person 

working or purporting to work on behalf of the Virginia Press Association related to the Op-Ed, 
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Your Declaration, and any claims or defenses in this Action, including the Virginia Press 

Association's motion for leave to file an arnicus brief in this Action. 

RESPONSE: 

22. All Documents and Communications by and between You and any person related 

to the ACLU's email to Plaintiffs counsel on September 13, 2019 containing a request to file an 

amicus brief in this Action. 

RESPONSE: 

23. All Documents and Communications by and between You and any person 

working or purporting to work on behalf of The Sun related to the Op-Ed, Your Declaration, and 

any claims or defenses in this Action, and any claims or defenses in the action currently pending 

in London between Mr. Depp and The Sun. 

RESPONSE: 

24. All Documents and Communications that You produced either voluntarily or 

pursuant to subpoena or Court order in the action pending in London between Mr. Depp and The 

Sun. 

RESPONSE: 

25. All Documents and Communications by and between You and any person 

working or purporting to work on Your behalf and any third party regarding providing You with 

financial assistance with this Action and/or paying Your legal fees and costs related to this 

Action. 

RESPONSE: 

26, All Documents obtained by way of subpoena, threat of subpoena, and/or 

'{Oluntarily in relation to this Action. 
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RESPONSE: 

Dated: November 4, 2019 

Respectfully submitted, 

B:i.f ~ (VSB #29113) 
Elliot J. Weingarten (pro hac vice) 
Camille M. Vasquez (pro hac vice) 
Andrew C. Crawford (VSB #89093) 
BROWN RUDN1CK, LLP 
601 Thirteenth Street NW, Suite 600 
Washington, DC 20005 
Phone: (202) 536-1785 
Fax: (617) 289-0717 
bchew@brownrudnick.com 

- and -

Robert B. Gilmore (pro hac vice) 
Kevin L. Attridge (pro hac vice) 
STEIN MITCHELL BEATO & MfSSNER LLP 
901 15th Street NW, Suite 700 
Washington, DC 20005 
Phone: (202) 601-1589 
Fax: (202) 296-8312 
rgilmore@steinmitchell:com 

Adam R. Waldman (pro hac vice) 
THE ENDEAVOR GROUP LAW FIRM, P.C. 
1775 Pennsylvania Avenue NW, Suite 350 
Washington, DC 20006 

Counsel for Plaintiff John C. Depp, JI 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on this 4th day of November 2019, I caused copies of the 

foregoing to be served via email (per written agreement between the Parties) on the following: 

Roberta A. Kaplan (pro hac vice) 
Julie E. Fink (pro hac vice) 
John C. Quinn (pro hac vice) 
KAPLAN HECKER & FINK, LLP 
350 Fifth Avenue, Suite 7110 
New York, New York 10118 
Telephone: (212) 763-0883 
rkaplan@kaplanhecker.com 
jfink@kaplanhecker.com 
jquinn@kaplanllecker.com 
jmatz@kaplanhecker.com 

A. Benjamin Rottenbom (VSB No. 84796) 
Joshua R. Treece (VSB No. 79149) 
WOODS ROGERS PLC 
10 S. Jefferson Street, Suite 1400 
P.O. Box 14125 
Roanoke, Virginia 24011 
Telephone: (540) 983-7540 
brottenbom@woodsrogers.com 
jtreece@woodsrogers.com 

Counsel for Defendant Amber Laura Heard 

63548702 
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Eric M. George (pro hac vice) 
Richard A. Schwartz (pro hac vice) 
BROWNE GEORGE ROSS LLP 
2121 Avenue of the Stars, Suite 2800 
Los Angeles, California 90067 
Telephone: (310) 274-7100 
Facsimile: (310) 275-5697 
egeorge@bgrfirm.com 
rschwartz@bgrfirm.com 

BenJamin G. Chew 
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF FAIRFAX COUNTY, VIRGINIA 

JOHN C. DEPP, Il 

Plaintiff. 

v. 

AMBER LAURA HEARD, 

Defendant. 
Civil Action No.: CI.r2019-000291 l 

PLAINTIFF JOHN C. DEPP, 11'S FIRST SET OF INTERROGATORIES TO 
DEFENDANT AMBER LAURA HEARD 

Pursuant to Rule 4:8 of the Rules of the Supreme Court of Virginia, Plaintiff John C. 

Depp, II, by and through his undersigned counsel, serves the following First Set of 

lnterrogatories upon Defendant Amber Laura Heard. Each Interrogatory must be answered 

separately, fully, in writing, under oath, and a copy served upon counsel for Mr. Depp within the 

time period set forth by the Rules of the Virginia Supreme Court. 

DEFINITIONS 

1. "Action" shall mean this litigation pending in the Circuit Court for Fairfax County 

captioned, John C. Depp, fl v. Amber Laura Heard, Case No. CL-2019-0002911. 

2. "Communication" shall mean every written or oral manner of transmitting or 

receiving facts, ideas, information and opinions, including, without limitation: correspondence; 

telexes; telecopies; electronic mail; all attachments and enclosures thereto; text messages; 

computer tapes; discs; telephone tape recordings; recordings of any other type in any medium of 

written or oral communications; phone logs; message logs; and notes and memoranda of, 

referring to, or relating to, written or oral communications. 

Plt.~CW. Y 
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3. "Complaint" shall mean the complaint filed by Plaintiff against Defendant in the 

Action. 

4. "Declaration" shaII mean the document titled "Declaration of Amber LaW'a 

Heard", dated April I 0, 2019, which was filed by you in this proceeding on April 11, 2019. 

5. "Document" and "Documents" are used in their broadest possible sense within the 

meaning under law and shall include by way of example, but not limitation, any written, printed, 

typed, spoken, computerized, or other graphic, phonic, or recorded matter of any kind or nature, 

however produced or reproduced, whether sent or received or neither, including drafts and copies 

bearing notations or marks not found on the original, including the following: 

a. all contracts, agreements, representations, warranties, certificates, and 

opinions; 

b. all letters or other forms of correspondence or communication, including 

electronic ma.ii, facsimiles, envelopes, notes, memoranda, telegrams, cables, text messages, 

voice-mail messages, messages sent or received via social media platform, and messages 

(including reports, notes, notations, diary entries, and memoranda or other records of or relating 

to telephone conversations or conferences); 

c. all memoranda, reports, financial statements, valuations, notes, transcripts, 

tabulations, studies, analyses, evaluations, projections, work papers, notebooks, corporate or 

other records or copies thereof, lists, comparisons, questionnaires, surveys, charts, curves, 

graphs, summaries, extracts, statistical records, and compilations; 

d. all desk and pocket calendars, appointment books, diaries, and logs; 

e. all books, scrapbooks, articles, speeches, press releases, magazines, 

newspapers, booklets, circulars, bulletins, notices, instructions, brochures, and manuals; 
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f. all transcripts or records of meetings, discussions, or conferences, 

including tape recordings and minutes; 

g. all photographs, microfilm, microfiche, phonographs, tapes or other 

records, punch cards, magnetic tapes, disks, data cells, drums, printouts, and other electronic, 

computerized, or other data compilations from which information can or may be obtained; and 

h. all presentation materials, including computer generated or other 

electronic presentation pages, slides, overhead projections overlays, handouts, pamphlets, charts, 

posters, films, and videos. 

6. The terms "identify," "identifying," "identity" and "identification," when used to 

refer to any enlity other than a natural person, mean to state its full name, the present or last 

known address of its principal office or place of doing business, and its entity type (e.g. 

corporation, partnership, unincorporated association). 

7. The terms "identify," "identifying," "identity" and "identification," when used to 

refer to a natural person, mean to state the following: 

a. the person's full name and present or last known home address, home 

telephone number, business address, and business telephone number; 

b. the person's present title and employer or other business affiliation; 

c. the person's home address, home telephone number, business address, and 

business telephone number at the time of the actions at which each interrogatory is directed; and 

d. the person's employer and title at the time of the actions at which each 

interrogatory is directed. 

8. The terms "identify," "identifying," "identity" and "identification," when used to 

refer to a document, mean to state the following: 
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a. the subject of the document; 

b. the title of the document; 

c. the date the document was produced, generated and/or published; or if the 

specific date thereof is unknown, the best approximation of such date; 

d. the identity of the pers~n(s) who wrote, contributed to, prepared or 

originated such document; and 

e. the present or last known location and custodian of the document. 

9. The terms "identify," "identifying," "identity" and "identification." when used to 

refer to a communication, mean to state the following: 

a. the subject and content of the communication; 

b. the type of communication (e.g., in-person or telephone conversation, 

letter, memorandum, email, etc.); 

c. the date the communication occurred or if the specific date thereof is 

unknown, the best approximation of such date; 

d. the identity of the person(s) who made wrote, contributed to, or prepared 

such communication; and 

behalf. 

11. 

her behalf. 

12. 

e. the identity of the person(s) who received such commwrication. 

"Mr. Depp" shall mean Plaintiff John C. Depp, II and all persons acting on his 

"Ms. Heard" shall mean Defendant Amber Laura Heard and all persons acting on 

"Op-ed" shall mean the writing submitted by Ms. Heard in December 2018 for 

publication in the Washington Post. 
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13. "Person" shall mean any natural person or any business, legal, or government 

entity, or association. 

14. "You," "your," or "Defendant" means Defendant Amber Laura Heard. 

15. The terms "concerning," "relating to," "refe1Ting to," "pertaining to," ''reflecting," 

"evidencing," and "constituting" are used, for purposes of these requests, as equivalent tenns, 

each including the others. 

16. In order to bring matters within the scope of these requests which might otherwise 

be construed to be outside their scope: 

a. "each" includes the word "every," and "every" includes the word "each"; 

b. "any" includes the word "all," and "all" includes the work "any"; 

c. "and," "or" or "and/or" shall be constmed conjunctively or disjunctively 

as necessary to make the request inclusive rather than exclusive; 

d. "all" shall also include "each of' and vice-versa; and 

e. the singular includes the plural and vice-versa. 

J 7. All words, terms and phrases not specifically defined in these requests are to be 

given their nmmal and customary meaning in the context in which they are used herein. 

INSTRUCTIONS 

1. These Interrogatories should be construed to require answers based upon the 

knowledge of, and information available to, the responding party as well as its agents, 

representatives, and, unless privileged, attorneys. It is intended that the following 

Jntenogatories will not solicit any material protected either by the attorney/client privilege or 

work product doctrine which was created by, or developed by, counsel for the responding party 

after the date on which this litigation was commenced. 
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2. The fact that investigation is continuing or that discovery is not complete 

shall not be used as an excuse for failure to respond to each interrogatory below as fully as 

possible. 

3. No part of an inten-ogatory should be left unanswered merely because an 

objection is interposed to another part of the interrogatory. If a partial or incomplete answer 

is provided, the responding party shall state that the answer is partial or incomplete. 

4. These Interrogatories are continuing in nature and therefore require you to file 

supplementary answers immediately after you obtain any additional information up to, 

including, and after the time of trial. 

5. Whenever you are requested to give specific information, such as a date or 

figure, if you cannot give the exact information, you shall state that you cannot give the exact 

information and you shall give your best estimate. 

6. If you refer to documents that you produce to Plaintiff, you shall 

identify the document(s) with specificity (by Bates number, etc.). 

7. In responding to these discovery requests, you must provide all requested 

information known or available to you, regardless of whether that information is obtained 

directly by you or otherwise known to you, or whether that information is obtained or 

otherwise known to any of your attorneys, agents, affiliates, or other representatives. 

8. Objection will be made at tbe time of trial to any attempt to introduce 

evidence which is directly sought by these Interrogatories and to which no disclosure has 

been made. 

9. If any part of an Interrogatory requests information that is claimed by you to be 

privileged or otherwise protected from disclosure, set forth with particularity at the time of 
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answering these Interrogatories the pa1t of the Interrogatory with respect to which you assert 

that claim and the basis for each such claim, together with the following information: 

a. If an attorney-client privilege, work product assertion, or any other 

privilege or protective rule is asserted with respect to an oral communication, please identify 

the date of the communication, the subject matter of the communication, the name and place of 

employment of each person present during the communication, and the name and place of 

employment of each person to whom the substance of the communication has been disclosed. 

b. If an attorney-client privilege, work product assertion, or any other 

privilege or protective rule is asserted with respect to a document, please identify the type of 

each such document, the date of the document, each individual who authored the document and 

place of employment of such individual, each individual who received a copy of the document 

and place of employment of such individual, each individual to whom any portion of the 

contents of the document was disclosed and the place of employment of such individual, and 

lhe subject matter of the document. 

10. If you believe that any Interrogatory is unclear, unintelligible, or because of its 

wording otherwise prevents you from responding fully to that interrogatory, you should seek 

immediate clarification from Plaintiff. It shall be insufficient to object to a particular 

interrogatory on the grounds that it is vague, ambiguous, or otherwise unclear, and withhold 

discoverable information on that basis without seeking clarification from Plaintiff. 

INTERROGATORlES 

1. Identify all persons with knowledge, documents, or information concerning the 

Op-Ed, including but not limited to any employees, agents or representatives of the ACLU or 

Washington Post, and any editors. 
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ANSWER: 

2. Identify all persons with lmowledge, documents or infonnation regarding the 

events described in paragraph 54 of the Declaration. 

ANSWER: 

3. Identify and describe in detail each and every communication you had relating to 

the Op-Ed with anyone Identified in response to Interrogatories No. 1 and 2. 

ANSWER: 

4. Identify all persons who provided the knowledge, documents, or information 

used, reviewed, or referenced in answering these Interrogatories. 

ANSWER: 

Dated: July 9, 2019 

Respectfully submitted, 

amin G. Chew (VSB #29113) 
·• liot J. Weingarten (pro hac vice) 
Camille M. Vasquez (pro hac vice application pending) 
Andn:w C. Crawford (VSB #89093) 
BROWN RUDNICK, LLP 
601 Thitteenth Street NW, Suite 600 
Washington, DC 20005 
Phone: (202) 536-1785 
Fax: (617) 289-0717 
bchew@brownrudnick.com 

- and -

Robe1t B. Gilmore 
Kevin L. Attridge 
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STEIN MITCHELL BEATO & MISSNER LLP 
901 15th Street NW, Suite 700 
Washington, DC 20005 
Phone: (202) 601-1589 
Fax: (202) 296-8312 
rgilmore@steinmitchell.com 

Adam R. Waldman 
THE ENDEAVOR GROUP LAW FIRM, P.C. 
1775 Pennsylvania A venue NW, Suite 350 
Washington, DC 20006 

Counsel for Plaintiff John C. Depp, II 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that on this 9th day of July, 2019, I caused a copy of the foregoing 
document to be served by hand pursuant to Rule 1:12 of the Supreme Cow1: of Virginia to the 
following: 

Timothy J. McEvoy, Esq. 
Sean Patrick Roche, Esq. 
CAMERON/McEVOY, PLLC 
4100 Monument Corner Drive, Suite 420 
Fairfax, VA 22030 
Phone: (703) 273-8898 
Fax: (703) 273-8897 
lmcevoy@ca111eronmcevoy.com 
srocl1el'@camcrorunccvoy.co1n 

I hereby certify that on this 9th day of July, 2019, I caused a copy of the foregoing 
document to be served by email and first-class mail, postage prepaid pursuant to Rule 1: 12 of the 
Supreme Court of Virginia to the following: 

Eric M. George, Esq. 
Richard A. Schwartz, Esq. 
BROWNE GEORGE ROSS LLP 
2121 Avenue of the Stars, Suite 2800 
Los Angeles, CA 90067 
Phone: (310) 274-1700 
Fax: (310) 275-5697 
egeorge@bgr:6.rm.com 
rschwartz(c~bgrfirm.com 
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VIRGINIA: 

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF FAIRFAX COUNTY, VIRGINIA 

JOHN C. DEPP, Il 

Plaintiff, 

V. 

AMBER LAURA HEARD, 

Defendant. 
Civil Action No.: CL-2019-0002911 

PLAINTIFF JOHN C. DEPP, II'S SECOND SET OF INTERROGATORIES TO 
DEFENDANT AMBER LAURA HEARD 

Pursuant to Rule 4:8 of the Rules of the Supreme Court of Virginia, Plaintiff John C. 

Depp, II, by and through his undersigned counsel, serve the following Second Set of 

Interrogatories upon Defendant Amber Laura Heard. Ench Interrogatory must be answered 

separately, fully, in writing, under oath, and a copy served upon counsel for Mr. Depp within the 

time period set forth by the Rules of the Supreme Court of Virginia. 

DEFINITIONS 

1. "Action" shall mean this litigation pending in the Circuit Court for Fairfax County 

captioned, John C. Depp, llv. Amber Laura Heard, Case No. CL-2019-0002911. 

2. "Chat Application" shall mean any electronic program or application, usable on 

any device or platform, that allows the user to communicate with another person by way of 

exchange of text messages and/or images, including, but not limited to, iMessage, Facebook 

Messenger, WbatsApp, WeChat, Slack, Twitter, Skype, Instagrarn, Kile, Signal, Telegram, Viber, 

Threema, Dust, and Wickr. 
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3. "Communication" shall mean every written or oral manner of transmitting or 

receiving facts, ideas, information and opinions, including, without limitation: correspondence; 

telexes; telecopies; electronic mail; all attachments and enclosures thereto; text messages; 

computer tapes; discs; telephone tape recordings; recordings of any other type in any medium of 

written or oral communications; phone logs; message logs; and notes and memoranda of, 

referring to, or relating to, written or oral communications. 

4. "Complaint" shall mean the complaint filed by Plaintiff against Defendant in the 

Action. 

5. "Declaration" shall mean the documents titled "D~claration of Amber Laura 

Heard", dated April 10,2019, which was filed by you in this proceeding on April 11, 2019. 

6. "Document" and "Documents" are used in their broadest possible sense within the 

meaning under law and shall include by way of example, but not limitation, any written, printed, 

typed, spoken, computerized, or other graphic, phonic, or recorded matter of any kind or nann·e, 

however produced or reproduced, whether sent or received or neither, including drafts and copies 

bearing notations OI marks not found on the original, including the following: 

a. all contracts, agreements, representations, warranties, certificates, and 

opinions; 

b. all letters or other forms of correspondence or communication, including 

electronic mail, facsimiles, envelopes, notes, memoranda, telegrams, cables, text messages, 

voice-mail messages, messages sent or received via social media platform, and messages 

(including reports, notes, notations, diary entries, and memoranda or other records of or relating 

to telephone conversations or conferences); 

c. all memoranda, reports, financial statements, valuations, reports, notes, 
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transcripts, tabulations, studies, analyses, evaluations, projections, work papers, notebooks, 

corporate or other records or copies thereof, lists, comparisons, questionnaires, surveys, charts, 

curves, graphs, summaries, extracts, statistical records, and compilations; 

d. all desk and pocket calendars, appointment books, diaries, and logs; 

e. aU books, scrapbooks, articles, speeches, press releases, magazines, 

newspapers, booklets, circulars, bulletins, notices, instructions, brochures, and manuals; 

f. all transcripts or records of meetings, discussions, or conferences, 

including tape recordings and minutes; 

g. all photographs, microfilm, microfiche, phonographs, tapes or other 

records, punch cards, magnetic tapes, disks, data cells, drums, printouts, and other electronic, 

computerized, or other data compilations from which information can or may be obtained; and 

h. all presentation materials, including computer generated or other 

electronic presentation pages, slides, overhead projections overlays, handouts, pamphlets, charts, 

posters, films, and videos. 

7. The terms "identify," "identifying," "identity" and "identification," when used to 

refer to any entity other than a naniral person, mean to state its full name, the present or last 

known address of its principal office or place of doing business, and its entity type .~ 

corporation, partnership, unincorporated association). 

8. The terms "identify," "identifying," "identity" and "identification," when used to 

refer to a natural person, mean to state the following: 

a. the person's full name and present or last known address, home telephone 

number, business address and business telephone number; 

b. the person's present title and employer or other business affiliation; 
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c. the person's home address, borne telephone number, business address and 

business telephone number at the time of the actions at which each interrogatory is directed; and 

d. his or her employer and title at the time of the actions at which each 

interrogatory is directed. 

9. The terms "identify," "identifying," "identity" and "identification," when used to 

refer to a doeument, mean to state the following: 

a. the subject of the document; 

b. the title of the document; 

c. the date the document was produced, generated and/or published; or if the 

specific date thereof is unknown, the best approximation of such date; 

d. the identity of the person(s) who wrote, contributed to, prepared or 

originated such document; and 

e. the present or last known location and custodian of the document. 

10. The terms "identify," "identifying," "identity" and "identification," when used to 

refer to a communication, mean to state the following: 

a. the subject and content of the communication; 

b. the type of communication ~ in-person or telephone conversation, 

letter, memorandum, email, etc.); 

c. the date the communication occurred or if the specific date thereof is 

unknown, the best approximation of such date; 

d. the identity of the person(s) who made wrote, contributed to, or prepared 

such communication; abd 

e. the identity of the person(s) who received such communication. 
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11. The terms "identify," "identifying," "identity" and "identification," when used to 

refer to tangible or intangible things, mean to describe, to the extent known, the (i) type of thing; 

(ii) any unique identifiers pertaining to that thing (including, for example, corporate registration 

number, registered name, account number, usemame, serial number, email address, or any other 

unique characteristic); and (iii) the owner or controller of the thing. 

12. "Mr. Depp" shall mean Plaintiff John C. Depp, II and all persons acting on his 

behalf including but not limited to his agents, representatives, employees, and assigns. 

13. "Ms. Heard" shall mean Defendant Amber Laura Heard and all persons acting on 

her behalf, including but not limited to her agents, representatives, employees, and assigns 

14. "Op-ed" shall mean the writing submitted by Ms. Heard in December 2018 for 

publication in the Washington Posl 

15. "Person" shall mean any natural person or any business, legal, or government 

entity, or association. 

16. "You," "your," or "Defendant" means Defendant Amber Laura Heard. 

17. The terms "concerning," "relating to," "referring to," "pertaining to," "reflecting," 

"evidencing," and "constituting" are used, for purposes of these requests, as equivalent terms, 

each including the others. 

18. In order to bring matters within the scope of these requests which might otherwise 

be construed to be outside their scope: 

a. "each" includes the word "every," and "every" includes the word "each"; 

b. "any" includes the word "all," and "all" includes the work "any"; 

c. "and," "or" or "and/or" shall be construed conjunctively or disjunctively 

as necessary to make the request inclusive rather than exclusive; 
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d. "all" shall also include "each of'' and vice-versa; and 

e. the singular includes the plural and vice-versa. 

19. "Romantic Partner" shall mean any persons You have touched in a sexual manner 

in the past ten (10) years, meaning: (a) direct contact between any part of Your body and another 

person's genitalia, anus, groin, breast, inner thigh, or buttocks; or (b) direct contact between any 

pruty of a third party's body and Your genitalia, anus, groin, breast, inner thigh, or buttocks. 

20. Ali words, terms and phrases not specifically defined in these requests are to be 

given their normal and customary meaning in the context in which they are used herein. 

INSTRUCTIONS 

1. These Interrogatories should be construed to require answers based upon the 

knowledge of, and information available to, the responding party as well as its agents, 

representatives, and, unless privileged, attorneys. Il is intended that the following 

Interrogatories will not solicit any material protected either by the attorney/client privilege or 

work product doctrine which was created by, or developed by, counsel for the responding party 

after the date on which this litigation ~as commenced. 

2. The fact that investigation is continuing or that discovery is not complete 

shall not be used as an excuse for failure to respond to each interrogatory below as fully as 

possible. 

3. No part of an interrogatory should be left unanswered merely because an 

objection is interposed to another part of the interrogatory. If a partial or incomplete answer 

is provided, the responding party shall state that the answer is partial or incomplete. 

4. These Interrogatories are continuing in nature and therefore require you to file 

supplementary answers immediately after you obtain any additional information up to, 
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including, and after the time of trial. 

5. Whenever you are requested to give specific information, such as a date or 

figure, if you cannot give the exact information, you shall state that you cannot give the exact 

information and you shall give your best estimate. 

6. If you refer to documents that you produce to Plaintiff, you shall 

identify the document(s) with specificity (by Bates number, etc.). 

7. In responding to these discovery requests, you must provide all requested 

information known or available to you, regardless of whether that information is obtained 

directly by you or otherwise known to you, or whether that information is obtained or 

otherwise known to any of your attorneys, agents, affiliates, or other representatives. 

8. Objection will be made at the time of trial to any attempt to introduce 

evidence which is directly sought by these Interrogatories and to which no disclosure has 

beenmade. 

9. If any part of an Interrogatory requests information that is claimed by you to be 

privileged or otherwise protected from disclosure, set forth with particularity at the time of 

answering these Interrogatories the part of the Interrogatory with respect to which you assert 

that claim and the basis for each such claim, together with the following information: 

a. If an attorney-client privilege, work product assertion, or any other 

privilege or protective rule is asserted with respect to an oral communication, please identify 

the date of the communication, the subject matter of the communication, the name and place of 

employment of each person present during the communication, and the name and plaee of 

employment of each person to whom the substance of the communication has been disclosed. 

b. If an attorney-client privilege, work product assertion, or any other 
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privilege or protective rule is asserted with respect to a document, please identify the type of 

each such document, the date of the document, each individual who authored the document and 

place of employment of such individual, each individual who received a copy of the document 

and place of employment of such individual, each individual to whom any portion of the 

contents of the document was disclosed and the place of employment of such individual, and 

Lhe subject matter of the document. 

10. If you believe that any Interrogatory is unclear, unintelligible, or because of its 

wording otherwise prevents you from responding fully to that interrogatory, you should seek 

immediate clarification from Plaintiff. It shall be insufficient to object to a particular 

interrogatory on the grounds that it is vague, ambiguous, or otherwise unclear, and withhold 

discoverable information on that basis without seeking clarification from Plaintiff. 

INTERROGATORIES 

I. Identify all persons with knowledge, documents, or information concerning any of 

the claims or defenses in this case, including by not limited to Your or Mr. Depp's alleged: (a) 

substance abuse; (b) damage of property; (c) acts of violence; (d) abuse in any form of any 

Romantic Partner; and (e) relationship with each other. 

ANSWER: 

2. State whether You or anyone acting on Your behalf, including Your attorneys or 

investigator(s), have ever taken, received, or assisted in drafting or preparing any declaration, 

affidavit, or other written statement of any person relating to this lawsuit and/or the factuaJ 

allegations that are the substance of thls suit. If so, please provide the names, current addresses, 

telephone numbers and occupation of each such person giving such a statement, and the date of 

each such statement. 
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ANSWER: 

3. Identify all devices in Your possession, custody, or control in which EST that 

relates to the claims or defenses in this case, or is reasonably likely to lead to the discovery of 

admissible evidence, is or is reasonably likely to be stored. For the avoidance of doubt, include 

in your response all devices in your possession, custody, or contr~l that are or were owned or 

used by Mr. Depp. 

ANSWER: 

4. Identify all email addresses, social media accounts, and Chat Applications that 

You have used to communicate in relation to this Action or the claims and defenses therein. 

ANSWER: 

5. Identify each mental and/or physical health care provider (including drug and/or 

alcohol addiction/depen;:lency care or treatment providers, counselors or therapists) that You saw 

from January 1, 2010 to the present and state the reason and duration You saw or consulted or 

received treatment or services from each identified provider. The answer to this Interrogatory 

should include visits to emergency rooms; and addiction, drug or alcohol treatment or therapy 

session(s); and visits with or physical or mental health treatment from any doctor, surgeon, 

psychiatrist, nurse, psychologist, therapist, counselor, medical advisor, specialist, or other 

provider. 

ANSWER: 

6. For each prescription drug You have been prescribed to take since 2010 or that 

you currently talce: (a) identify the physician and/or health care provider who wrote the 

prescription; (b) state the name of the drug and the dosage to be taken; and (c) identify each 
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phaimacist who filled the prescription and sucb pharmacist's pharmacy and/or place of 

employment. 

ANSWER: 

7. Identify each Romantic Partner, other than Mr. Depp, that You have had in the 

past 1 0 years. 

ANSWER: 

8. Describe in detail any separation agreements, settlements, releases, tolling 

agreements, confidentiality and/or non-disclosure agreements, forbearance agreements, Mary 

Carter agreements, or any other agreements of any kind which You have negotiated with any 

Romantic Partner. Your answer should include any such agreements that have been negotiated in 

order to gain the assistance or compliance of another person and/or entity with regard to this or 

any other matter. 

ANSWER: 

9. Identify and describe facts relating to each instance where any person, other than 

Mr. Depp, alleged (publicly or privately) that You engaged in any act of physical violence, 

abuse, or destruction of property at any point in the past 15 years, including (1) the identity of the 

person(s) that accused You of such conduct; (ii) the person and/or property toward which Your 

alleged conduct was directed; (iii) whether You were, or were alleged to have been, under the 

influence of alcohol, medication or illegal drugs at the time of Your alleged conduct; (iv) the 

date, time and location(s) of each such instance; and (v) the identity of all persons present that 

the time of the alleged incident. 

ANSWER: 



10. Provide the name address, profession, and qualifications of each expert witness 

who You intend to call to testify at the trial of this case, including any rebuttal experts and/or 

experts to address any alleged new matters raised in Plaintiff's designation of experts. For each 

such expert, state the subject matter in which the expert is expected to testify; the substance of 

the facts as to which the expert is expected to testify; the substance of the opinions which the 

expert is expected to give; a summary of the grounds for each such opinion; the tenns of the 

expert's compensation, and attach to Your answers any available list of publications written by 

the expert and any written report made by the expert concerning the expert's finding and 

opinions in this matter. 

ANSWER: 

11. Identify each judicial or administrative proceeding (including all details needed to 

locate the docket) in which You have had any involvement (including as a party, witness, or non­

party) from January 1, 2010 to the present, and include a description of (i) the nature of each 

proceeding; (ii) the court in which the proceeding was/is maintained; (iii) Your involvement in 

the proceeding; (iv) the status of the proceeding; and (v) the result, if the proceeding has 

concluded 

ANSWER: 

12. Identify all persons You or anyone working on Your behalf has spoken to or 

communicated with regarding the claims or defenses in this Action, Your Op-Ed, and Your 

Declaration, including all persons spoken to or communicated with at the Washington Post, 

ACLU, and Virginia Press Association. 

ANSWER: 
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13. Identify all persons and entities that are providing You with financial assistance 

with this Action and/or payillg Your legal fees and costs related to this Action. 

ANSWER: 

Dated: November 4, 2019 

B amin G. Chew (VSB #29113) 
El iot J. Weingarten (pro hac vice) 
Cami!Je M. Vasquez (,pro hac vice) 
Andrew C. Crawford (VSB #89093) 
BROWN RUDNICK, LLP 

60 l Thirteenth Street NW, Suite 600 
Washington, DC 20005 
Phone: (202) 536-1785 
Fax: (617) 289-0717 
bchew@brownrudnick.com 

- and -

Robert B. Gilmore (pro hac vice) 
Kevin L. Attridge (pro hac vice) 
STEIN MITCHELL BEATO & MISSNER LLP 
901 15th Street NW, Suite 700 
Washington, DC 20005 
Phone: (202) 601-1589 
Fax: (202) 296-8312 
rgilmore@steinmitchell.com 

Adam R. Waldman 
THE ENDEAVOR GROUP LAW FIRM, P .C. 
1775 Pennsylvania Avenue NW, Suite 350 
Washington, DC 20006 

Counsel for Plaintiff John C. Depp, II 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on this 4th day of November 2019, r caused copies of the 

foregoing to be served via email (per written agreement between the Pruties) on the following: 

Roberta A. Kaplan (pro hac vice) 
Julie E. Fink (pro hac vice) 
John C. Quinn (pro hac vice) 
KAPLAN HECKER & FINK, LLP 
350 Fifth Avenue, Suite 7110 
New York, New York 10118 
Telephone: (212) 763-0883 
rkaplan@kaplanbecker.com 
jfink@kaplanhecker.com 
jquinn@kaplanhecker.com 
jmatz@kaplanbecker.com 

A. Benjamin Rottenborn (VSB No. 84796) 
Joshua R. Treece (VSB No. 79149) 
WOODS ROGERS PLC 
10 S. Jefferson Street, Suite 1400 
P.O. Box 14125 
Roanoke, Virginia 24011 
Telephone: (540) 983-7540 
brottenbom@wo'odsrogers.com 
jtreece@woodsrogers.com 

Counsel for Defendant Amber Laura Heard 

63548706 
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Eric M. George (pro hac vice) 
Richard A. Schwartz (pro hac vice) 
BROWNE GEORGE ROSS LLP 
2121 Avenue of the Stars, Suite 2800 
Los Angeles, California 90067 
Telephone: (310) 274-7100 
Facsimile: (3 I 0) 275-5697 
egeorge@bgrfirm.com 
rschwartz@bgrfirm.com 
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VIRGINIA: 

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF FAIRFAX COUNTY, VffiGINIA 

JOHN C. DEPP, II 

Plaintiff. 

v. 

AMBER LAURA HEARD, 

Defendant. 
Civil Action No.: CL-2019-0002911 

PLAINTIFF JOHN C. DEPP. D'S FIRST REQUESTS FOR ADMISSION TO 
DEFENDANT AMBER LAURA HEARD 

Pursuant to Rules 4: I and 4: 11 of the Rules of the Supreme Court of Virginia, Plaintiff 

John C. Depp, II, by and through his undersigned counsel, requests that Defendant Amber Laura 

Heard respond to the following Requests for Admission (each, a ''Request" and collectively, the 

"Requests"), dated November 25, 2019 within twenty-one (21) days of service hereof (t. e. by no 

later than December 16, 2019), in accordance with the Instrnctions and Definitions set forth 

below. 

INSTRUCTIONS 

I. In accordance with the Rules of this Court, You shall answer the following 

Requests separately and fully, in writing. 

2. When information in Your possession is requested, such request includes non-

privileged information in the possession of Your agcnt(s), employee(s). assign(s), 

representative(s), and all others acting on your behalf. 

Pit.~. CW. f? 
Date 1-~ · a)}l 
Judge ffs'8::: 
Case#Q..-[tf,J.~/ I 



3. Whenever appropriate in these Requests, the singular form of a word shall be 

interpreted as its plural to whatever extent is necessary to bring within the scope of these 

Requests any information which might otherwise be construed to be outside their scope. 

4. Unless otherwise indicated, these Requests refer to the time, place, and 

circumstances of the occurrences mentioned or complained of in the pleadings in this case. 

5. All references to an entity include the entity and its agents, officers, employees, 

representatives, subsidiaries, divisions, successors, predecessors, assigns, parents, affiliates, and 

unless privileged, its attorneys and accountants. 

6. If You perceive any ambiguities in an question, instruction, definition, or other 

aspect of these discovery requests, set forth the matter deemed ambiguous and the construction 

used in answering. 

7. If You assert a claim of privilege as to any of Your responses to the Requests, 

state the basis for the asserted privilege, specify the privilege claimed, and include in Your 

answer sufficient information to permit the Court to make an infonned ruling on the claim of 

privilege. If the claim relates to a privileged document, state the date, person or persons who 

prepared or participated in preparing tbe document, the name and address of any person to whom 

the document was shown or sent, the general subject matter of the document, the present or last 

known location and custodian of the original of the document, and the basis for the claim of 

privilege with respect to the document. If the claim of privilege relates to a communication, state 

the date(s), place(s) and person(s) involved in the communication, the subject matter of the 

communication, and the basis for the claim of privilege with respect to that communication. 

Reliance on any claim of privilege is subject to the Rules of this Court, including the production 

of a ptivilege log. 
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8. If You perceive any Request to be overly broad, unduly burdensome, or 

objectionable for any other reason, respond to the fullest extent possible and clearly note any 

objection so that the Court will be permitted to make an informed ruling on the objection. 

9. These Requests are continuing in character so as to require You to promptly 

amend or supplement Your responses in accordance with the Rules of the Supreme Court of 

Virginia within a reasonable time if You obtain or become aware of any further information 

responsive to these Requests. Mr. Depp reserves the right to propound additional Requests. 

I 0. If you do not admit a Request, you should then set forth in detail the reasons why 

the matter cannot be admitted. 

11. A denial of these requests should fairly meet the substance of the requested 

admission, and when good faith and the Rules require that you qualify your answer or deny only 

a part of the matter of which an admission js requested, you should specify so much of it as is 

true and qualify or deny the remainder. 

12. You may not gjve lack of information or knowledge as a reason for failure to 

admit or deny unless you state that you have made a reasonable inquiry and that the information 

known or readily obtainable by you is insufficient to enable you to admit or deny. 

13. You may not deny any matter on which an admission bas been requested on the 

sole ground that the matter represents a genuine issue for trial. 

14. If you fail to admit the genuineness of any document or truth of any matter 

requested and the truth of the matter are subsequently proved, you may be requested to pay the 

expenses incurred in making the proof, including reasonable attorney's fees. 

DEFINITIONS 

1. Action. The Term "Action" means the above-captioned action. 
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2. And/or. The use of "and/or" shall be interpreted in every instance both 

conjunctively and disjunctively in order to bring within the scope of these discovery requests any 

information which might otherwise be construed to be outside their scope. 

3. Communication. The term "communication" means any oral or written exchange 

of words, thoughts, or ideas to another person, whether person-to-person, in a group, by phone, 

text (SMS), letter, fax, e-mail, internet post or correspondence, social networking post or 

correspondence or by any other process, electric, electronic, or otherwise. All such 

Communi~ations are included without regard to th~ storage or transmission medium 

(electronically stored information and hard copies are included within this definition). 

4. Complaint The term "Complaint" shall mean the Complaint filed by Plaintiff in 

this matter, currently pending before this Court. 

5. Concerning. The term "concerning" means relating to, referring to, describing, 

evidencing, or constituting. 

6. Correspondence. The term "correspondence" means any document(s) and/or 

communication(s) sent to or received from a11otber entity and/or person. 

1. Defendant and/or Ms. Heard. The terms "Defendant" and/or "Ms. Heard" refer 

to Defendant Amber Laura Heard, including her agents, representatives, employees, assigns, and 

unless privileged, all persons acting on her behalf. 

8. Document. The term "document'' is defined in its broadest terms currently 

recognized. The term shall include, without limitations: any written or other compilation of 

information (whether printed, handwritten, recorded, or encoded, produced, reproduced, or 

reproducible by any other process), drafts (revisions or finals), original or preliminary notes, and 

summaries of other documents, commw1ications of any type ( e-mail, text messages, blog posts, 
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social media posts or other similar communications or correspondence), computer tape, 

computer files, and including all of their contents and attached files. The term "document" shall 

also include but not be limited to: correspondence, memoranda, contractual documents, 

specifications, cµ·awings, photographs, images, aperture cards, notices of revisions, test reports, 

inspection reports, evaluations, technical reports, schedules, agreements, reports, studies, 

analyses, projections, forecasts, summaries, records of conversations or interviews, minutes or 

records of conferences or meetings, manuals, handbooks, brochures, pamphlets, advertisements, 

circulars, press releases, financial statements, calendars, diaries, trip reports, etc. A draft of a 

non-identical copy is a separate document within the meaning of this term. 

9. Eastern Columbia Building. The term "Eastern Columbia Building" refers to the 

building located at 849 S. Broadway, Los Angeles, CA 90014. 

10. ESI. "ESI" means electronically stored information. 

11. Including. The tenn "including" means including but not limited to. 

12. Op-ed. The term "Op-ed" shall mean the writing submitted by Ms. Heard in 

December 2018 for publication in the Washington Post 

13. Person. The term "person" is defined as any natural person, business, company, 

partnership, legal entity, govemmental entity, and/or association. 

14. Plaintiff and/or Mr. Depp. The terms "Plaintiff and/or "Mr. Depp" refer to 

Plaintiff John C. Depp, II, including his agents, representatives, employees, assigns, and all 

persons acting on his behalf. 

15. Romantic Partners. The term "Romantic Partners" shall mean any persons you 

have touched in a sexual manner in the past ten (10) years, meaning: (a) direct contact between 

any part of your body and another person's genitalia, anus, groin, breast, inner thigh, or buttocks; 
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or (b) direct contact between any part of a third party's body and your genitalia, anus, groin, 

breast, inner thigh, or buttocks. 

16: You and/or Your. The terms "You" and/or "Your" refer to the recipient(s) of 

these discovery requests, as well as all persons and entities over which said recipient has 

"control" as understood by the Rules of this Court 

REQUESTS FOR ADMISSION 

1. Admit that you are paying the legal fees and expenses for Joshua Drew in connection 
with this Action. 

ANSWER: 

2. Admit that you are paying the legal fees and expenses for Elizabeth Marz in conne-0tion 
with this Action. 

ANSWER: 

3. Admit that you are paying the legal fees and expenses for Ellen Barkfo in connection 
With this Action. 

ANSWER: 

4. Admit that you are paying the legal fees and expenses for iO Tillet Wright in connection 
with this Action. 

ANSWER: 

5. Admit that you are paying the legal fees and expenses for Raquel Pennington in 
connection with this Action. 

ANSWER: 

6. Admit that you are paying the legal fees and expenses for Tasya Van Ree in connection 
with this Action. 

ANSWER: 

7. Admit that Susman Godfrey LLP represents you in this Action and also represented Ellen 
Barkin at her deposition in this Action of Friday, November 22, 2019. 

ANSWER: 

8. Admit that you called Mr. Depp a "pussy" while you were married to him. 
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ANSWER: 

9. Admit that during the course of your marriage to Mr. Depp you used marijuana. 

ANSWER: 

I 0. Admit that during the course of your marriage to Mr. Depp you used illegal dmgs. 

ANSWER: 

11. Admit that during the course of your marriage to Mr. Depp you abused alcohol. 

ANSWER: 

12. Admit that you sought treatment for prescription drug abuse during your relationship with 
Mr.Depp. 

ANSWER: 

13. Admit that you sought treatment for illegal drug abuse during your relationship with Mr. 
Depp. 

ANSWER: 

14. Admit that you sought treatment for alcohol abuse during your relationship with Mr. 
Depp. 

ANSWER: 

15. Admit that you have physically struck at least one other Romantic Partner of yours. 

ANSWER: 

16. Admit that you have been arrested. 

ANSWER: 

17. Admit that you were arrested in 2009 for committing domestic violence against your then 
wife Tasya Van Ree. 

ANSWER: 

18. Admit that you were incarcerated in 2009 for committing domestic violence against your 
then wife Tasya Van Ree. 

ANSWER: 

19. Admit that you publicly claimed you were actually arrested and incarcerated in 2009 for 
being "mouthy" with the arresting police officer. 
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ANSWER: 

20. Admit that during your marriage to Mr. Depp you punched Mr. Depp on at least one 
occasion. 

ANSWER: 

21. Admit that during your marriage to Mr. Depp you punched Mr. Depp on more than one 
occasion. 

ANSWER: 

22. Admit that during your marrjage to Mr. Depp you kicked Mr. Depp on at least one 
occasion. 

ANSWER: 

23. Admit that during your marriage to Mr. Depp you kicked Mr. Depp on more than one 
occasion. 

ANSWER: 

24. Admit that during your marriage to Mr. Depp you hit Mr. Depp on at least one occasion. 

ANSWER: 

25. Admit that during your marriage to Mr. Depp you hit Mr. Depp on more than one 
occasion. 

ANSWER: 

26. Admit that during your marriage to Mr. Depp, you once threw a can of paint thinner into 
the head of Mr. Depp on his island in the Bahamas. 

ANSWER: 

27. Admit that during your marriage to Mr. Depp, you threw objects at Mr. Depp's body and 
head, including heavy bottles, soda cans, burning candles, television remotes, and paint 
thinner cans. 

ANSWER: 

28. Admit that during your marriage to Mr. Depp, you once kicked a door into Mr. Depp's 
head. 

ANSWER: 

29. Admit that during your marriage to Mr. Depp, you once threw a bottle at Mr. Depp that 
hit and severed part of his finger. 
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ANSWER: 

30. Admit that you confessed to a third party soon after throwing the bottle that severed part 
of Mr. Depp's finger that you "were so angry you just lost it" when you threw the bottle 
at Mr. Depp. 

ANSWER: 

31. Admit that Mr. Depp did not sever part of his own finger. 

ANSWER: 

32. Admit that you punched Mr. Depp's head and face repeatedly after he was late to your 
birthday party on April 21, 2016. 

ANSWER: 

33. Admit you punched Mr. Depp in the face on December 15, 2015. 

ANSWER: 

34. Admit that during your marriage to Mr. Depp, your friends Elizabeth Marz, Raquel 
Pennington, and Joshua Drew, and your sister Whitney Heard lived in apartments owned 
by Plaintiff and Plaintiff did not charge them rent 

ANSWER: 

35. Admit that during your marriage to Mr. Depp, your friend iO Tillett Wright lived in a 
house owned by Plaintiff and Plaintiff did not charge him/her rent. 

ANSWER: 

36. Admit that you consulted with your divorce lawyer Samantha Spector before police 
arrived at Penthouse 1 of the Eastern Columbia Building on May 21, 2016. 

ANSWER: 

37. Admit that you consulted with your publicist Jodi Gottlieb before police arrived at the 
Penthouse at the Eastern Columbia Building on May 21, 2016. 

ANSWER: 

38. Admit that you did not donate the entirety of your divorce settlement with Mr. Depp to 
charity. 

ANSWER: 

39. Admit that Raquel Pennington v.:as hiding in Penthouse 3 of the Eastern Columbia 
Building when Mr. Depp arrived on May 21, 2016. 
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ANSWER: 

40. Admit iO Tillett Wright slapped Raquel Pennington during your wedding weekend in the 
Bahamas. 

ANSWER: 

41. Admit that you asked Brandon Patterson and Trinity Esparza to communicate with a staff 
member of People magazine. 

ANSWER: 

42. Admit that you were in the presence of Isaac Baruch on one or more occasions between 
May 22 and May 25, 2016. 

ANSWER: 

43. Admit that you were in the presence of Laura Divenere on one or more occasions 
between May 22 and May 25, 2016. 

ANSWER: 

44. Admit you confessed to Kevin Murphy defecating on the bed in Penthouse 3 of the 
Eastern Columbia Building was a "harmless prank." 

ANSWER: 

45. Admit that you met with Cornelius Harrell in the Eastern Columbia Building on May 22, 
2016. 

ANSWER: 

46. Admit that you attended Amanda de Cadenet's birthday party on May 22, 2016. 

ANSWER: 

47. Admit that you have been diagnosed with borderline personality disorder. 

ANSWER: 

48. Admit that you never saw a medical doctor or nurse regarding injuries you claimed to 
have suffered on May 21, 2016. 

ANSWER: 

49. Adm.it that you never saw a medical doctor or nurse regarding injuries you claimed to 
have suffered on December 15, 2015. 

ANSWER: 



50. Admit that Mr. Depp did not harmfully touch you the night before you taped the James 
Cord en show on December 16, 2015 .. 

ANSWER: 

51. Admit you worked with Samantha McMillen on December 16, 2015 prior to the James 
Corden Show taping. 

ANSWER: 

52. Admit that you represented to the US Government in a letter that Samantha McMillen 
was merely your "friend" and not your assistant. 

ANSWER: 

53. Admit you violently attacked Mr. Depp in the Bahamas in 2014. 

ANSWER: 

54. Admit that in your wedding vows, you promised to be faithful to Johnny Depp. 

ANSWER: 

55. Admit that you had a sexual relationship with at least one other person while married to 
Mr.Depp. 

ANSWER: 

56. Admit that you had a sexual relationship with more than one other person while married 
to Mr. Depp. 

ANSWER: 

57. Admit that you bad other Romantic Partners while married to Mr. Depp. 

ANSWER: 

58. Admit that you had sexual relations with Cara Delevingne while still married to Mr. 
Depp. 

ANSWER: 

59. Admit that Elon Musk came up to Mr. Depp's penthouse at the Eastern Columbia 
Building in March 2015. 

ANSWER: 

60. Admit that yon had sexual relations with Elon Musk while still married to Mr. Depp. 
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ANSWER: 

61. Admit that you never disclosed to Johnny Depp prior to your divorce from him that you 
had sexual relations with Elon Musk while still married to Johnny Depp. 

ANSWER: 

62. Admit that you never disclosed to Mr. Depp prior to your divorce from him that you had 
sex with Caril Delevingne while still married to Mr. Depp. 

ANSWER: 

63. Admit that James Franco came to Mr. Depp's penthouse at the Eastern Columbia 
Building on or after May 21, 2016. 

ANSWER: 

64. Admit that James Franco came to Mr. Depp's penthouse at the Eastern Columbia 
Building before May 21, 2016. 

ANSWER: 

65. Admit that you had sexual relations with James Franco while still married to Mr. Depp. 

ANSWER: 

66. Admit that you never disclosed to Mr. Depp prior to your divorce from him that you had 
sex with James Franco while still married to Mr. Depp. 

ANSWER: 

67. Admit that you traveled to or through either Dulles International Airport or Ronald 
Reagan Washington National Airport prior to April 10, 2019. 

ANSWER: 

68. Admit that Mr. Depp has never physically harmed you. 

ANSWER: 

69. Admit that Mr. Depp has never intended to physically harm you. 

ANSWER: 

70. Admit that no third person bas witnessed Mr. Depp in the act of physically harming you. 

ANSWER: 
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71. Admit that you are unaware of any third person witnessing Mr. Depp in the act of 
physically hanning you, 

ANSWER; 

72. Admit that no photographs show Mr. Depp in the act of physically harming you. 

ANSWER: 

73. Admit that you are unaware of any photographs that show Mr. Depp in the act of 
physically harming you. 

ANSWER: 

74. Admit that no video recordings show Mr. Depp in the act of physically harming you. 

ANSWER: 

75. Admit that you are unaware of any video recordings showing Mr. Depp in the act of 
physically harming you. 

ANSWER: 

76. Admit that no audio recordings exist of any incident of Mr. Depp in the act of physically 
harming you. 

ANSWER: 

77. Admit that you are unaware of any audio recordings of Mr. Depp in the act of physically 
harming you. 

ANSWER: 

78. Admit that Mr. Depp has never told you that he physically harmed you. 

ANSWER: 

79. Admit that Mr. Depp has never told any third person that he physically harmed you. 

ANSWER: 

80. Admit that you are unaware of any instance where Mr. Depp told any third person that be 
physically harmed you. 

ANSWER: 

81. Admit that Mr. Depp has never admitted in writing that he has physically harmed you. 

ANSWER: 
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82. Admit that you are unaware of any instance where Mr. Depp admitted in writing that he 
physically harmed you. 

ANSWER: 

83. Admit that Mr. Depp bas never sexually assaulted you. 

ANSWER: 

84. Admit that you have never asserted that Mr. Depp bas sexually assaulted you. 

ANSWER: 

85. Admit that no third person has witnessed Mr. Depp in the act of sexually assaulting you. 

ANSWER: 

86. Admit that you are unaware of any third person witnessing Mr. Depp in the act of 
sexually assaulting you. 

ANSWER: . 

87. Admit that no photographs show Mr. Depp in the act of sexually assaulting you. 

ANSWER: 

88. Admit that you are unaware of any photographs that show Mr. Depp in the act of sexually 
assaulting you. 

ANSWER: 

89. Admit that no video recordings show Mr. Depp in the act of sexually assaulting you. 

ANSWER: 

90. Admit that you are unaware of any video recordings showing Mr. Depp in the act of 
sexually assaulting you. 

ANSWER: 

91. Admit that no audio recordings exist of any incident of Mr. Depp in the act of sexually 
assaulting you. 

ANSWER: 

92. Admit that you are unaware of any audio recordings of Mr. Depp in the act of sexually 
assaulting you. · 

ANSWER: 
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93. Admit that Mr. Depp bas never told you that he sexually assaulted you. 

ANSWER: 

94. Admit that Mr. Depp has never told any third person that he sexually assaulted you. 

ANSWER: 

95. Admit that you are unaware of any instance where Mr. Depp told any third person that he 
sexually assaulted you. 

ANSWER: 

96. Admit that Mr. Depp has never admitted in writing that he has sexually assaulted you. 

ANSWER: 

97. Admit that you are unaware of any instance where Mr. Depp admitted in writing that he 
sexually assaulted you. 

ANSWER: 

98. Admit that Mr. Depp has never physically banned a third person who was a Romantic 
Partner of his. 

ANSWER: 

99. Admit that you are unaware of a third person Romantic Partner of Mr. Depp's who he has 
physically harmed. 

ANSWER: 

100. Admit that no third person who was a Romantic Partner of Mr. Depp has claimed that 
Mr. Depp physically harmed her. 

ANSWER: 

101. Admit that you are unaware of any third person who was a Romantic Partner of Mr. Depp 
claiming that Mr. Depp physically assaulted her. 

ANSWER: 

102. Admit that no third person has witnessed Mr. Depp physically harming a third person 
who was a Romantic Partner ofhls. 

ANSWER: 

103. Admit that you are unaware of any third person witnessing Mr. Depp in the act of 
physically harming a third person who was a Romantic Partner of his. 
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ANSWER: 

104. Admit that no photographs show Mr. Depp in the act of physically harming a third person 
who was a Romantic Partner of bis. 

ANSWER: 

l 05. Adlpit that you are unaware of any photographs that show Mr. Depp in the act of 
physically harming a third person who was a Romantic Partner of his. 

ANSWER: 

l 06. Admit that no video recordings show Mr. Depp physically harming a third person who 
was a Romantic Partner of his. 

ANSWER: 

107. Admit that you are unaware of any video recordings showing Mr. Depp physically 
harming a third person who was a Romantic Partner of his. 

ANSWER: 

108. Admit that no audio recordings exist of any incident of Mr. Depp physically harming a 
third person who was a Romantic Partner of his. 

ANSWER: 

109. Admit that you are unaware of any audio recordings of Mr. Depp physically harming a 
third person who was a Romantic Partner of ms. 

ANSWER: 

110. Admit that Mr. Depp has never told you that he physically harmed a third person who 
was a Romantic Partner of his. 

ANSWER: 

111. Admit that Mr. Depp has never told any third person that he physically harmed a third 
person who was a Romantic Partner of his. 

ANSWER: 

112. Admit that you are unaware of any instance where Mr. Depp told any third person that he 
physically harmed a third person who was a Romantic Partner of his. 

ANSWER: 

113. Admit that Mr. Depp has never admitted in writing that he has physically harmed a third 
person who was a Rpmantic Partner of his. 
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ANSWER: 

114. Admit that you are unaware of any instance where Mr. Depp admitted in writing that he 
physically harmed a third person wno was a Romantic Partner of his. 

ANSWER: 

I 15. Admit that no third person who was a Romantic Partner of Mr. Depp has claimed that 
Mr. Depp physically harmed her. 

ANSWER: 

116. Admit that you are unaware of any third person who was a Romantic Partner of Mr. Depp 
claiming that Mr. Depp physically harmed her. 

ANSWER: 

117. Admit that Mr. Depp hac; never sexually assaulted a third person who was a Romantic 
Partner of his. 

ANSWER: 

118. Admit that no third person has witnessed Mr. Depp sexually assaulting a third person 
who was a Romantic Partner of his. 

ANSWER: 

119. Admit that you are unaware of any third person witnessing Mr. Depp sexually assaulting. 
a third person who was a Romantic Partner of his. 

ANSWER: 

120. Adm.it that no photographs show Mr. Depp sexually assaulting a third person who was a 
Romantic Partner of his. 

ANSWER: 

121. Admit that you are unaware of any photographs that show Mr. Depp sexually assaulting a 
third person who was a Romantic Partner of his. 

ANSWER: 

122. Admit that no video recordings show Mr. Depp sexually assaulting a third person who 
was a Romantic Partner of his. 

ANSWER: 

123. Admit that you are unaware of any video recordings showing Mr. Depp sexually 
assaulting a third person wl10 was a Romantic Partner of his. 
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ANSWER: 

I 24. Admit that no audio recordings exist of any incident of Mr. Depp sexually assaulting a 
third person who was a Romantic Partner of his. 

ANSWER: 

125. Admit that you are unaware of any audio recordings of Mr. Depp sexually assaulting a 
third person who was a Romantic Partner of his. 

ANSWER: 

126. Admit that Mr. Depp has never told you that he sexually assaulted a third person who 
was a Romantic Partner of his. 

ANSWER: 

127. Adroit that Mr. Depp has never told any third person that be sexually assaulted a third 
person who was a Romantic Partner of his. 

ANSWER: 

128. Admit that you are unaware of any instance where Mr. Depp told any third person that he 
sexually assaulted a third person who was a Romantic Partner of his. 

ANSWER: 

129. Admit that Mr. Depp has never admitted in writing that he has sexually assaulted a third 
person who was a Romantic Partner of his. 

ANSWER: 

130. Admit that you are unaware of any instance where Mr. Depp admitted in writing that he 
sexually assaulted a third person who was a Romantic Partner of his. 

ANSWER: 

131. Admit that no third person who was a Romantic Partner of Mr. Depp has claimed that 
Mr. Depp sexually assaulted her. 

ANSWER: 

132. Admit that tou are unaware of any third person who was a Romantic Partner of Mr. Depp 
claiming that Mr. Depp sexually assaulted her. 

ANSWER: 

133. Admit that you have never sought medical treatment for any injuries that you claim were 
caused by Mr. Depp. 
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ANSWER: 

134. Admit that you have never received medical treatment for any injuries that you claim 
were caused by Mr. Depp. 

ANSWER: 

135. Admit that you have never sought medical treatment relating to any sexual assault you 
claim was committed by Mr. Depp. 

ANSWER: 

136. Admit that you have never received medical treatment relating to any sexual assault you 
claim was committed by Mr. Depp. 

ANSWER: 

137. Admit that you have never sought psychological treatment for any physical injuries you 
claim were caused by Mr. Depp. 

ANSWER: 

138. Admit that you have never received psychological treatment for any physical injuries you 
claim were caused by Mr. Depp. 

ANSWER: 

139. Admit that after you and Mr. Depp divorced, you withdrew your allegations that Mr. 
Depp abused you. 

ANSWER: 

140. Admit that after yo.u and Mr. Depp divorced, you issued a statement that your and Mr. 
Depp's relationship was intensely passionate and at times volatile, but always bound by 
love. 

ANSWER: 

141. Admit that after you and Mr. Depp divorced, you issued a statement that in your and Mr. 
Depp's relationship there was never any intent of physical or emotional harm. 

ANSWER: 

142. Admit tbat you drafted the Op-ed. 

ANSWER: 

14 3. Admit that you approved the final version of the Op-ed prior to publication. 
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ANSWER: 

144. Admit that you approved the title of the Op-ed prior to publication. 

ANSWER: 

145. Admit that in the Op-Ed, you claimed you became a public figure representing domestic 
abuse. 

ANSWER: 

146. Admit that the domestic abuse you referred to in the Op-Ed was your claim that Mr. 
Depp abused you. 

ANSWER: 

147. Admit that readers oftbe Op-Ed understood that your Op-~d was refen-ing to Mr. Depp. 

ANSWER: 

148. Admit that readers of tb:e Op-Ed understood that your Op-Ed was referring to your claim 
that Mr. Depp abused you. 

ANSWER: 

149. Admit that other media sources reported that the Op-Ed was understood to be referring to 
your claim that Mr. Depp abused you. 

ANSWER: 

150. Admit that you have pnblicly claimed that Mr. Depp committed domestic abuse against 
you. 

ANSWER: 

151. Admit that after the Op-Ed was published, Disney announced that Mr. Depp no longer 
would play the role of Captain Jack Sparrow in future Pirates of the Caribbean films. 

ANSWER: 

152. Admit that the Op-Ed was a substantial cause of Disney firing Mr. Depp from future 
Pirates of the Caribbean films. 

ANSWER: 

153. Admit that Mr. Depp's income from films has declined since the publication of the Op-
Ed. . 

ANSWER: 
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154. Admit that the public service announcement you made with Girlgaze in November 2016 
about "this" was about abuse you claim to have suffered. 

ANSWER: 

155. Admit that when you said "when it happens behind closed doors, with someone you 
love" in the Girlgaze PSA, you were referring to Mr. Depp. 

ANSWER: 

156. Admit that other individuals besides you are funding your legal expenses in this lawsuit 

ANSWER: 

157. Admit that other organizations are funding your legal expenses in this lawsuit. 

ANSWER: 
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Dated: November 25, 2019 

Respectfully submitted, 

~~(;~' 
Benj~in G. Chew (VSB #29113) 
Elliot J. Weingarten (pro hac vice) 
Camille M. Vasquez (pro hac vice) 
Andrew C. Crawford (VSB #89093) 
BROWN RUDNICK, LLP 
601 Thirteenth Street NW, Suite 600 
Washington, DC 20005 
Phone: (202) 536-1785 
Fax: (617) 289-0717 
bchew@brownrudnick.com 

- and -

Robert B. Gilmore (pro hac vice) 
Kevin L. Attridge (pro hac vice) 
STEIN MITCHELL BEATO & MISSNER LLP 
901 15th Street NW, Suite 700 
Washington, DC 20005 
Phone: (202) 601-1589 
Fax: (202) 296-8312 
rgilmore@steinmitchell.com 

Adam R. Waldman 
THE ENDEAVOR GROUP LAW FIRM, P.C. 
1775 Pennsylvania Avenue NW, Suite 350 
Washington, DC 20006 

Counsel for Plaintiff John C. Depp, II 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that on this 25th day of November 2019, I caused copies of the foregoing 
to be served via email (per written agreement between the Parties) on Lhe following: 

Roberta A. Kaplan (pro hac vice) 
Julie E. Fink (pro hac vice) 
John C. Quinn (pro hac vice) 
KAPLAN HECKER & FINK, LLP 
350 Fifth Avenue, Suite 7110 
New York, New York 10118 
Telephone: (212) 763-0883 
rkaplan@kaplanhecker.com 
jfink@kaplanhecker.com 
jquinn@kaplanhecker.com 

Davida Brook (pro hac vice) 
SUSMAN GODFREY LLP 
1900 A venue of the Stars 
Suite 1400 
Los Angeles, California 
Telephone: (310) 789-3105 
dbrooke@susmangodfrey.com 

CoUJ1Sel for Defendant Amber Laura Heard 

63563086 

A. Benjamin Rottenbom (VSB No. 84796) 
Joshua R. Treece (VSB No. 79149) 
WOODS ROGERS PLC 
10 S. Jefferson Street, Suite 1400 
P.O. Box 14125 
Roanoke, Virginia 2401 l 
Telephone: (540) 983-7540 
brottenbom@woodsrogers.com 
jtreece@woodsrogers.com 

Timothy J. McEvoy, Esq. (VSB No. 33277) 
Sean Patrick Roche, Esq. (VSB No. 71412) 
CAMERON/McEVOY, PLLC 
4100 Monument Comer Drive, Suite 420 
Fairfax, Virginia 22030 
Telephone: (703) 273-8898 
Facsimile: (703) 273-8897 
tmcevoy@cameronmcevoy.com 
sroche@cameronmcevoy.com 



C 

C 

C C C 



VIRGINIA: 

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF FAIRFAX COUNTY, VIRGINIA 

JOHN C. DEPP, II 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

AMBER LAURA BEARD, 

Defendant. 

Civil Action No.: CL-2019-0002911 

PLAINTIFF'S DESIGNATION/IDENTIFICATION OF EXPERT WITNESSES 

Plaintiff John C. Depp, II, by and through his undersigned counsel, pursuant to Rule 

4:l(b)(4)(A)(i) of the Rules of the Supreme Court of Virginia, and the Court's Scheduling Order, 

dated June 27, 2019, hereby designates and identifies his expert witnesses. 

Given the preliminary state of discovery-in particular, that the parties have barely begun 

their document productions, non-parties have yet to make significant document productions, and 

no depositions have been taken-Plaintiff reserves the right to supplement these Expert Witness 

Designations, to include (1) identifying additional or different areas of expected testimony for 

the designated witnesses, (2) identifying additional or different bases for the expected testimony 

of the designated witnesses, and/or (3) designating additional or different expert witnesses. 

Rctnined Expcrt.s 

1. Richard Marks, Entertainment Industry Expert, The Point Media, 150 S. 

Rodeo Drive, Suite 220, Beverly Hills, California 90212. Mr. Marks has had a long career as 

an executive and business lawyer in the entertainment industry. 

Mr. Marks has served as a business and legal affairs executive at Universal, Disney and 

Paramount, in addition to working as a business attorney in private practice at Greenberg Traurig 

Plt.(De~ CW. _']4-_ 
Dat~· ¢';~ · dOa:\ 
Judge fSA 
Case# Cl-l~ -J.911 



and, for the past decade, The Point Media, a boutique entertainment law finn. Mr. Marks has 

represented clients such as New Regency, Legendary, ITV, IDW, Machinima, Electus, 

DirecTV, Relativity, Ovation, Fabrik, Shout Factory and MRC in connection with their 

deyelopment and production of programming for exploitation in all media and on all 

platforms. He also has a reputation in the industry for his expert witness services and has been 

engaged as such by clients as varied as Warner Bros., ICM, HMRC and Celador. He has 

brokered carriage agreements with AOL, MTV, and domestic and foreign radio and television 

broadcasters; negotiated nwnerous sponsorship agreements; and notably assisted Robert 

Sillerman in the acquisition of "American Idol." Early in his career, he was responsible for 

business and legal affairs relating to the development, production, post-production, marketing 

and advertising for such feature films as "Beverly Hills Cop II," "Tucker" and "The Golden 

Child," and such television series' as "Cheers" and "Family Ties." Mr. Marks earned both his 

Bachelor's Degree and his Juris Doctor from the University of California Los Angeles. He is a 

member of the Writers Guild of America, the California Bar Association, and the Beverly Hills 

Bar Association. 

Mr. Marks will testify concerning the impact of Ms. Heard's defamatory statements in 

her 2018 Washington Post Op-Ed on Mr. Depp's career. Specifically, Mr. Marks will draw on 

his experience and knowledge as a business executive with entertainment companies as well as 

his experience as an entertainment lawyer to testify as to the following facts and opinions: 

a. How film studios and production companies evaluate whether, and on what terms, to 

hire an actor for film roles; 

b. How companies looking to market products evaluate whether, and on what terms, to 

hire an actor to promote such products in advertising; 
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c. The importance of reputation on an actor's selection for film roles and advertising 

campaigns; 

d. The impact of negative personal statements, in particular allegations of violence or 

abuse, on an actor's film C{lreer and advertising campaign prospects; 

e. A review and assessment of the entertainment industry's reaction and response to Mr. 

Heard's December 2018 Op-Ed in the The Washington Post in which she falsely 

portrayed herself as a victim of domestic abuse by Mr. Depp; and 

f. The significance of a jury verdict in Mr. Depp's favor on his career and reputation in 

the film industry going forward. 

Mr. Marks' opinions will be based on a review of documentary evidence and deposition 

and trial testimony, as well as his extensive experience as an entertainment industry executive 

and attorney. Mr. Marks may also testify as to any fact or opinion rendered or attributed to 

another witness or party as identified by other parties' witnesses. Plaintiff reserves the right to 

designate or substitute other witnesses of the same disciplines to testify as to the facts and 

opinions described herein. Plaintiff further reserves the right to supplement this Expert Witness 

Designation based on additional facts Plaintiff learns during discovery and/or ms ongoing 

investigation of this matter. 

Mr. Marks' CV is attached hereto as Exhibit A. He is being compensated for his work at 

the rate of $975 per hour; none of his compensation is contingent on the opinions he ron~ers or 

the qutcome of the Uti~tion. 

2, ltryan Neumeister, TechnJc11l Forensics Expert, USA Forensics LLC, 44 W. 

Monroe St., 33rd Floor, Phoenix, Arizona 85003. Mr. Neumeister is an electronic forensics 

and technical expert with extensiye experience analyzing electronic evidence and data in law 
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enforcement and legal proceedings. As CEO of USA Forensics, Mr. Neumeister has over 34 

years of experience testifying and consulting for federal and state governments, prosecutors, 

companies, and individuals, in a variety of aspects concerning analysis of video, photographs, 

phone and text messages, and other electronic data. He has worked on over 200 cases since 

2010. He has worked as an Audio and Video Forensic Consultant for the U.S. Department of 

Defense, the U.S. Department of Justice, numerous large multinational companies such as 

Microsoft, Nike, Cox, Honeywell, U-Haul, Southwest Gas, Good Samaritan Hospitals, AvNet, 

Boeing, MD Helicopters, Intel, Weston Hotels, and various Las Vegas Casinos. 

Mr. Neumeister is expected to testify as to the characteristics of electronic data, in 

particular video, photographs, text messages and emails, produced by Ms. Heard and/or non­

parties during discovery in this case, on which Ms. Heard purports to rely for her allegations that 

Mr. Depp engaged in physjcal abuse or violence towards her. Specifically, Mr. Neumeister will 

use his extensive experience and technical know-how to assess the reliability and integrity of 

such data, whether any such data has been modified or altered, and the circumstances of such 

modifications or alterations. 
. .. 

Mf. NeQm13lster' s opinions will lle based on ft review of the electronic data and evidence 

produce~ ~n this case, Mr, Neumeister ~ay also testify as to any fact or opinion ren4e~ed or 

~ttri~~!~d fq another witness or party as ideptified by other parties' witnesses, Plaintiff reserve~ 
. ' ~ . '• 

*e ~gµt to ?esignate or substitute other witnesses of the same disciplines to testify as to the facts 
'•' -· . 
and oplnioµs desctjbed herein. Plaintiff further reserves the right to supplemeqt this Expert 

~ ' .. . . . 

Witness Designation based on additional facts Plaintiff learns during discovery ~d/or his 

ongoing investigation of this matter. 
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Mr. Neumeister's CV is attached hereto as Exhibit B. He is being compensated for his 

work at the rate of $550 per hour; none of his compensation is contingent on the opinions he 

renders or the outcome of the litigation. 

3. Michael Spindler, C.P.A., Economic Damages Expert, Glass Ratner Advisory 

& Capital Group LLC. Michael Spindler is a CPA and Certified Fraud Examiner who brings 

more than 3 8 years of experience to complex disputes including matters related to forensic 

accounting and business fraud investigations across a wide range of industries. He has provided 

expert testimony on dozens of occasions in bench trials, jury trials and m;bitration proceedings. 

He has provided Foreign Com:ipt Practices Act investigations and training services in various 

countries around the world, including China; Russia, India and Saudi Arabia. Having conducted 

numerous high-profile investigations of public company financial statement fraud and other 

matters, Mr. Spindler has presented his findings to special committees and various government 

agencies on behalf of clients, including the Department of Justice, Federal Bureau of 

Investigation, Internal Revenue Service and the Office of Thrift Supervision. His clients include 

law firms, corporations, individuals, government agencies and non-profit organizations. 

Prior to joining GlassRatner, Michael held senior leadership positions with several 

forensic accmmting firms and was a Partner at two national public accounting firms. An 

experienced public speaker, Mjchael has authored or co-authored a number of publications on 

fraud-related topics and developed and presented seminars and courses on forensic accounting 

and litigation support issues. He is a past President of the Los Angeles Chapter of CALCPA and 

of the Los Angeles Chapter of the Association of Certified Fraud Examiners. He is also a past 
-·· • • •• ,..~ . r,.._ ~ ·2 • , • ~-~~ .. 

momber ·of·the.~BO'tid <>f tTrustees ~f ·th;?CALC~A~,Educatio~ ~o~dation and of CALCPA 

Council. Michael is a Certified Public Accountant (licensed in California, New York, Nevada, 
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Arizona, Utah and Hawaii), is Certified in Financial Forensics, is Accredited in Business 

Valuation (both issued by the AICPA) is a Certified Fraud Examiner (issued by the Association 

of Certified Fraud Examiners) and is a Gertified Anti-Money Laundering Specialist ("CAMS"). 

Mr. Spindler graduated from the State University of New York at Albany with a Bachelor of 

Science degree in accounting. 

Mr. Spindler is expected to testify as to the economic damages Mr. Depp has suffered as 

a result of Ms. Heard's defamatory statements in her 2018 Washington Post Op-Ed. 

Specifically, Mr. Spindler is expected to draw upon his experience and expertise as a CPA and 

financial forensics professional to testify as to the following: 

a. Mr. Depp's earnings from his film career and product endorsements prior to Ms. 

Heard's defamatory statements; 

b. The lost earnings Mr. Depp suffered from being fired from the Pirates of the 

Caribbean Franchise in the wake of Ms. Heard's 2018 Washington Post Op-Ed; and 

c. The out of pocket costs Mr. Depp has incurred as a result of Ms. Beard's defamatory 

statements; and 

d. Any other economic and financial consequences Mr. Depp has suffered, and is likely 

to suffer going forward, as a resuft of Ms. Heard' s defamatory statements. 

Mr. Spindler is expected to perform calculations of the foregoing categories of damages 

to be presented at trial. While those calculations are still in process and will incorporate the 

results of information gathered from ongoing discovery and fact investigation efforts, it is 

expected that such damages calculations will be in excess of $50 millioJ'!, ~r. Spindler•~ 

opinions will be based on a review· bf documentary evidence, financial records, information 

conveyed from Mr. Depp's business manager and agent, and deposition and trial testimony, as 
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well as his extensive experience as a CPA and financial forensics professional. Mr. Spindler 

may also testify as to any fact or opinion rendered or attributed to another ~tness or party as 

identified by other parties' witnesses. Plaintiff reserves the right to designate or substitute other 

witnesses of the same disciplines to testify as to the facts and opinions described herein. Plaintiff 

further reserves the right to supplement this Expert Witness Designation based on additional 

facts Plaintiff learns during discovery and/or his ongoing investigation of this matter. 

Mr. SpindJer's CV is attached hereto as Exhibit C. He is being compensated for his 

work at the rate of $525 per hour; none of his compensation is contingent on the opinions be 

renders or the outcome of the litigation. 

Non-Retained Experts 

1. and 2. Jack Whigham and Christian Carino, Creative Artists Agency, 2000 

Avenue of the Stars, Los Angeles, CA 90067. Mr. Whigham and Mr. Carino have served as 

Mr. Oepp's agent since October 2016. Messrs. Whigham and Carino are regarded as two of the 

leading talent agents in Hollywood, with extensive experience in the film industry. Mr. 

Whigham and Mr. Carino are expected to testify on the negative impact of Ms. Heard's 

defamatory Op-Ed on Mr. :qepp's career- and that Ms. Heard's Op-Ed refer_red to Mr. Depp - as 

well as the impact of a jury verdict in Mr. Depp's favor on his career going forward. In so doing, 

Mr. Whigham and Mr. Carino may rely on their expertise in the entertainment industry and their 

experience as an agent and film industry executive. 

3. Edward White, C.P .A., Edward White & Co., LLP, Warner Center Towers, 

21700 Oxnard Street, Suite 400, Woodland Hills, California 91367. Mr. White has served as 

Mr. Depp's business manager and accountant since March 14, 2016. Mr. White is expected to 

testify on the negative impact of Ms. Heard's defamatory Op-Ed on Mr. Depp's career- and that 
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Ms. Heard's Op-Ed referred to Mr. Depp - and economic circumstances as well as the impact of 

a jury verdict in Mr. Depp's favor on his career going forward. In so doing, Mr. White may rely 

on his expertise in business and accounting and bis experience as a business manager in the 

entertainment industry. 

4. Robin Baum, Partner, SLATE PR, LLC, 901 North ffigbland Avenue, Los 

Angeles, California 90038. Ms. Baum is regarded as one of the leading publicists in 

Hollywood, with extensive experience in the film industry. She has served as Mr. Depp's 

publicist for over a decade. Ms. Baum is expected to testify on the negative impact of Ms. 

Heard's defamatory Op-Ed on Mr. Depp's career- and that Ms. Heard's Op-Ed referred to Mr. 

Depp - as well as the impact of a jury verdict in Mr. Depp's favor on his career going forward. 

In so doing, Ms. Baum may rely on her expertise in the entertainment industry and her 

experience as a publicist in that industry. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Robert B. Gilmore (pro hac vice) 
Kevin L. Attridge (pro hac vice) 
STEIN MITCHELL BEATO & MISSNER LLP 
901 15th Street NW, Suite 700 
Washington, DC 20005 
Phone: (202) 601-1589 
Fax: (202) 296-8312 
rgilmore@steinmitchell.com 
kattridge@steinmitchell.com 

Adam R. Waldman (pro hac vice) 
THE ENDEAVOR GROUP LAW FIRM, P.C. 
5163 Tilden Street, NW 
Washington, DC 20016 
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B~~B#29113) 
Camille M. Vasquez (pro hac vice) 
Elliot J. Weingarten (pro hac vice) 
Andrew C. Crawford (VSB #89093) 
BROWN RUDNICK LLP 
601 Thirteenth Street NW, Suite 600 
Washington, DC 20005 
Phone: (202) 536-1785 
Fax: (617) 289-0717 
bchew@brownrudnick.com 
eweingarten@brownrudnick.com 
cvasquez@brownrudnick.com 
acrawford@brownrudnick.com 

Jessica N. Meyers (pro hac vice) 



Phone: (202) 715-0966 
Fax: (202) 715-0964 
awaldman@theendeavorgroup.com 

Dated: November 4, 2019 
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On behalf of: Claimant 
Witness: John Christopher Depp II 

No: Second 
Exhibit JD2 

Date: 12 December 2019 

IN THE filGH COURT OF JUSTICE 

QUEEN'S BENCHDMSION 

CJaim No. HQ18M01923 

MEDIA AND COMMUNICATIONS LIST 

BETWEEN: 

JOHN CHRISTOPHER DEPP Il 

-and-

(1) NEWS GROUP NEWSPAPERS LTD 

(2) DAN WOOTTON 

SECOND WITNESS STATEMENT OF 

JOHN CHRISTOPHER DEPP II 

Claimant 

Defendants 

I, JOHN CHRISTOPHER DEPP Il, of Infinitum Nihil, 1472 N Sweetzer Avenue, LA 90069, 

USA, WILL SAY as follows: 

1. I am the Claimant in these proceedings. 

2. Unless stated otherwise, the facts and matters referred to in this witness statement are within 

my own knowledge and true or are true to the best of my knowledge, information aod belief 

based on sources stated within this witness statement. 

Pit.@[. CW. g 
Date J • ll · dQ.'.rl 
Judge A,;,r 
Case #CJ...-i q, J,q l I 



_zw .... ;a;:;z __ .. :_sw;z.,. :a: ... zia.msaa._m -~-"'· !!!!l!!,_!!'!!■."!!_zs!!9!1:fil-!l!!!!llll!llilll!ltsl'J!IJ ---~-&!!!■.!l!!!!"'!!!l'!!!!!!ZL!!!!!t. 

On behalf of: Claimant 
Witness: John Christopher Depp II 

No: Second 
Date: 12 December 2019 

36. I remember the flight from Boston to Los Angeles in detail. I had drunk alcohol prior to and 

on the flight, but my behavior was not as alleged at all. As I explained by tex:t message a few 

days later on May 2ih, 2014 to my sister, Christi Dembrowski, after Ms Heard had tried to 

suggest to Ms Dembrowski that I should see a doctor (page 7 of Exhibit ID2): 

"No reason for her to speak to anyone, let alone a doctor .. .I'm done. Her actions have added 

more drama than necessary and when was I unhealthy, exactly??? When I was not sober for 

a day??? Hmmm ... I guess that's what people call falling off the wagon ... lt's happened to a 

lot of my friends ... Their wives don't stop calling them" 

37. Ms Heard and I were seated at the central table in the cabin. I was drawing art sketches inmy 

notebook, as 1 like to do when travelling, when Ms Heard began to harangue me. I cannot 

remember exactly what she was saying but it was the usual abusive stuff. Ms Heard 

progressed into a continuous verbal barrage with which I did not engage and instead 

continued sketching. Throughout the course of our relationship, Ms Heard would often look 

to argue with me, berate me or abuse me verbally and physically. By the time at which the 

flight took place, I had worked out that the best way to deal with this was simply to not 

engage and to try to retreat from the situation, as I have stated above. 

38. Further, given where I was sitting and the layout of the plane, it was physically impossible 

for me to have kicked Ms Heard in the back causing her to fall over. In fact what happened is 

that when Ms Heard stood up at some stage during the flight, I stretched my leg out to tap her 

playfully on the bottom with my foot to non-verbally communicate something along the lines 
• 1\t 

· oi i, hey,:~ ;m·on ·let's get past. thts" in an attempt to i:rutlce light of th~ ergum~nt ~d to try to 

defuse the situation, but I do not believe I was able to reach her. Ms Heard saw my ~~~P~ 
~• ,. - > O • t:•;!1-.~.,: •A•· ~.t•;•: : . ..,,· ·• ·... '" O ···•'•• \~ 

how¥ver; and lnuned.lately took great offence·at this act and continued to verbally berate mo 
••••• : J - • i 

~ iestlcul!ltis al me. Ev~y, ~ Stephen Deuteis." my personal asslstant,,@lld Mr J~fl')' 

Judge, my security guard, intervened to calm down Ms Heard I believe that Mr Judge took 

her to a separate part of the plane and talked to her for the rest of the flight, and I had a brief 

conversation with Mr Deuters. I then took a pillow with me to the bathroom, locked the door 
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DEPP-WASS 

have it tum into an argumenL 

Q. And lose your temper? 

A. Well. be upset, yes.. 

Q. Lose it, is actually shon fur losing your temper, is it not? 

No? 

A. Yes. Ya But-yes. 

Q. You had a telephone call before Che night you met up with 

Ms. Heard to travel back to Los Angeles, and I think you 

amngcd to charter a plane., tlu11 was going 10 pick Ms. Heard 

up in Boston, where she had been filming with Mr. Franco, and 

you would be picked up by the same plane in New York, where 

you were filming. and the two of you would be flown back to 

LosAngeli!S? 

A. Actually, she was in New York and I was in Boston. 

Q. Sorry, I got that wrong. Let me stan again. Sile was in New 

York and you were picked up [n Boston, and the two of you flew 

baclc to Los Angeles? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And it was a private plane that had been cltanered? 

A. yes. ma'am. 

Q. The night before you were due 10 meet up, did you have a 

heated discussion on the telephone with Mt Heard about what 

was happening with James Franco, Che scenes she was doing with 

James Franco? 
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DEPP-WASS 

cigarette before I get on the plane, so I am sitting in the 

car smoking. Or maybe I was on the telephone, on a 
conversation \vith someone, any nwnbet of things. But to Just 

asslllllt natw'ally that I was doing drugs is a little b,t-

1 am ui.Ut& you -
A. - 1 chap shot, I would say 

Q. I am asking you - I am sorry you think it is a cheap sho~ 

bul I hope by the lime you hear wha1 has been said about this 

incident you will wanl 10 retract that suggestion. 

A. Thal would be great. 

Q. You were taking drugs on that tlme before the Boston planes, 

do you agree with that suggestion or not? 

A. I was in Boston, Is where Dr. Kipper and nurse Debbie Lloyd 

came. It hnd been agreed to, I had a_greed to and promised my 

stSterJ who h&d met ,,,d1 Dr. ~J thal I was going to Ioele 

the Ro:ucodone So, I was addicted to a very strong narcotic, 

and that was known by everyone, and it was also known by 

everyone that I had agreed to stop, and so we were: in 

prq,aration to go to the Bahamas for the detox. 

Q. Had )'OU bad alcohol before getting on the plane? 

A Not that I recall, but normally wbel! we get on a plane, 

cvaybooy has I drink, yes 

Q. Do you remember this at al~ this incident? 

A. I am afraid I do not specifically remember this incident 

[ Page 2 96] 
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A. l do not recall, but it is highly likely. 2 I can only say that there had been many tan:nacs and many 

Q. Whal happened was thar Ms. Htard got on the plane in New Yorlc, 3 planes, and many SUVs. 

a.s you said, the plane llew lo Boston, and you arrived in a 4 Q. All right. Let us sec if this plane journey is any diffcrtnt 

car, were driven in aw, but you did 1101 gcrout oftbe car, 5 from any of the others. Ms. H=d WDS already on the plnnc., 

did you; you stayed on the runway In tbal car for some 6 your swflhat travelled with you ,...-c Srepben Dcut=; yt:3? 

coosidcrablc lime? 7 A. Yes. 

A. How Ion& a c:oasiderablc rime? 8 Q. Jerry Judge? 

Q. Well, you lcoe\v rhc aeroplan.: was waiting to load and take of[ 9 A. Yes. 

A. As we arrived - any acroplan.:, when you allowed lnro the area l O Q. And Nathan Holmes? 

where the planes an, and they drop us II the plane, UIC!C is 11 A. Yes. 

U5Ually quite a bit of time to load U1e luggage Into the cargo 12 Q. The mon who you 1aid would supply drugs to you from time to 

area. So, there arc a 101 oftimes when I will stay, sit in 13 time, but who is not a witncs.s in this case; is that right? 

the car and continue smoking my cigarette, you know, before 14 A. Yes, ifhe was asked. 

I get on tl1c plane. As when you arc on the ground, you are 15 Q. And by the time you gol on to the plane, it was apparent to 

not allowed to smolce on the plane., until you ■re airborne, for 16 Ms. Heard thnt you were under tho influence of both drugs and 

obvious reasons. 1 7 alcohol? 

Q On llus occu,on, u )'OU wen: w1111n,oa the tanu1c in )OW' 18 MR. IUSTICENlCOL: WcJ~ I think the question has got to be wtre 

cbaufti:ur-drwen car, you \<'CfC t.wna di'U@. ,....,.. you 1101~ 19 you under the influence of, 6rst of all, alcohol, and then 

A. I an1 SOI'!)~ l lhouglu I JUii c,p1 ..... :c1 1110 )OU. As is rhc 2 0 dtugs, before you got on the plane. 

2 L habit I smoke bclorc, smol,-j"' rn dle CM - do you Wini to 21 MS. WASS; My Lord, I have~ lb.al. and Mr. Depp docs not 

2 2 talk. or - )'Oil can conunuc If you \I/IIIL 22 remember. I will ca\ainly ask it again. 

23 Q. Let us cllrify ~ the dispute Is between us. You say you 2 3 (To the witness) Were you Wl<lcr the influence of druJ1$ 

2 4 were smoking ciguettes? 2 4 and/or alcohol before you gol on the plane? 

I 
I 

25 A. I said I was smoking, normally I smolce, I am smoking a ~ 5 A. I do l\O( rccllll 1h11 I~ been dnnlm111. I do not rtall 1 

'---:-:: .. =-=--=·====--=------=---====--=-=-=-:-:. =--------:=:-=----'' 

MARTEN WALSH CHERER LTD 
TEL: (020) 7067 2900 
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DEPP-WASS 

dull 1 had been taking cocai~ if that is the dll!& )'OU are 

referring to. 1 was addic~ to Ute Roxicodmtc and 1 was 

going to kick those So, if there was~. if( set 

Ms Heard or, 1 do not deny llul Ms. Heard prob3bly saw thal 

with her eyes. 

Q. Whal, saw that .Y()U were dtc worse for ,vcar1 

}. I have no doubt d1a1 she believed Iha!. 

Q. All ril!lit 
A. And may have seen that nith lk!r eyes. but I believe that they 

were not telling her the t)'Ulh 

Q. Believing that, did you consider thal she was beingjudgmenlal 

towards you, judging you because she believed Uiat you were 

inebriated and under U1e innuence of drugs? 

A. I think Uiat she - judgmen!Jll is a very good word to use, 

yes, she was quite judgmental for many years over tl1is issue, 

y~s. 

Q. And on this occasion, you were spoiling for a fight, 

I suggest? 

A. 1 do not know why you would say that. I do not recall 

spoiling for a figh~ trying 10 start a fight? 

Q. Yes, spoiling for a fight 

A. No, 1 was not trying to spoil for a fight 

Q. You brought up the subject of her c1>-star, James Franco; do 

you remember that? 
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DEPP-WASS 

A. I do not remember that 

Q. You do not remember that Because James Franco was a subject 

that you felt quite strongly about, did you oot, you have 

explained that to us already? 

A. I was, 1 suspected that Ms. Heard was having an affair with 

Mr. Franco. 

Q. Right 

A. And it has since been confirmed that she was. 

Q. She was not having an affair with Mr. Franco at tllis time, was 

she? 

A. I believe that she was. 

Q. You believed that she was -

A. I have been told that sbe was. 

Q. You have been told she was. ls that why you got so angry'I 

A. I - we have not gotten lo the anger yet. I do not -

Q. You were screaming obscenities about James Franco to her on 

the plane? 

A. Screaming ol:lscenities about James Franco on the plane? 

Q. Yes. 

A. With my two assistants or people who work with, and my chief 

of security and two pilots and a stewardess? 

Q. Yes. 

A. And I am screaming al Ms. Heard with -

Q. Yes. 
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DEPP-WASS 

A. 1 would not do that 

Q. This was not the first time you had behaved atrociously on e.n 

airplane. 

A. I disagree with everydiiag you are saying. 

Q. When t say obscenities, you were talking about her gening 

fuck~ with James Franco and you were talking about how she 

liked getting fucked on the s~ and you were making vulgar 

references to her genitals? 

A. That is quite a stretch of her imagination. 

MR JUSTICE NICOL: Mr. Depp, all that you need to do is to say 

whed1cr you agree or disagree with the proposition that is 

being put 10 you. 

THE WITNESS: And I use the word, "I disagree"? Or -

Q. I do not want to limit how you give your evidence, but if you 

disagree, then by all means say so. 

A. Yes. 

Q. So, I take it that you disagree with what has just been put to 

you? 

A. Yes. I very much disagree with everything. 

MS. WASS: I suggest that the more offensive you becmne, the less 

that Ms. Heard would engage with you? 

A. Again, 1 disagree. 

Q. Your staff simply allowed you to conductyourselflike tl1is. 

They did not judge you. They did not admonish you. They did 
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nothing to protect Ms. Heard from this tirade of abuse. 

A. 111ey had ao reason lo protect Ms. Heard. 

Q. I suggest Ms. Heard moved seats on more than one occasion to 

get away from you, and you started by throwing ice cubes at 

her. At one stage, when she tried to move away from you, you 

kicked one of the chairs so hard thal it swivelled round and 

bit her? 

A. I-

Q. Y~u disagree? 

A. I have never seen anyone be able to push an airplane chair 

that could assault someone. Aeroplane chairs arc vc1y -

well, we all know what they are like. 

Q. You were in a blind rage, demanding to know bow much she liked 

getting off\vilh James Franco, and she refused io answer. And 

you ,vere so angry that site would not engage with you dwing 

this discussion, you slapped her across tl1e face in front of 

everybody? 

A. No,nia'am. 

Q. And you called her "a go-getter slut" and 'a whore"? 

A No, ma'am, 1 would nol, no. Nol under those circwnsraa.ces 

would I get that -

Q. And - canyon, finish. 

A 1 would not gel that, I would oot - there are possibilities 

that if Ms. Heard and I had a fight where that sort of thing 

[33) (Pages 297 to 300) 
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DEPP-WASS 

could come out of my mouth, depending on what came out ofber 

mouth prior to. But I did not go into a rage and start 

screaming at her in front of all these people. 

Q. During die course of the flight you were demanding more 

alcohol and oxygen from the flight attendant? 

A. The oxygen tank, I remember the pilot, a lot of these crews 

I have flown with before, so I did ask for an oxygen tank, 

just as a lark. 

Q. As a lark? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What is so funny a.bout an oxygen tank? 

A. When you pul the oxygen mask on, and you 111m the nozzle, you 

are hit witl1 pure oxygen. That is really it So, it was kind 

of; it is not oxygen, it is not a- I was not abusing a drug, 

I was breruhing oxygen and showing them, because l knew the 

crew we had flown with them a lo~ and the pilo~ nnd I hnd 

done that once before. 

Q. Ms, Heard got up again from her seat in order to move away 

from you, and you said lo her, extremely aggressively: • Ne 

you walking away from me?' And at that stage you kicked her 

in I.he back as she was uying to get away from you. 

A. Not lrUC. 

Q. And you were raging like a monster. 

A Not lJ'Uc. 
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DEPP-WASS 

Q. And you eventually went to the toilet, the bathroom. if you 

prefer, of the plane, and you passed out'I 

A After Ms. Heard, or as Ms. Heard was berating me, screaming at 

me, an<! whamot, as is her wont, she began 10 get pbysical, 

I did get up and !hen go to the bathroom. l grabbed a pillow 

from the couch and I slept on the bathroom floor. l have done 

I.hat on more than a couple of occasions. 

Q. You certainly step( on bathroom, toilet floors before. Has 

your assistant, Nathan Holmes, bad to break into locked doors 

to wake you up after you have passed out on tl1e toilet? 

A. I have never possed out on the toileL I have fallen asleep, 

not in the middle of; let's say, relieving oneself; but either 

sitting on the toilet and leaning against I.he wall to sleep or 

sleeping on the floor. 

Q. Can you go to lite 7, tab 3, please. I ought to have made it 

plain that Ibis flight from Boston to LA was on 24th May 2014; 

all right? 

MR. JUSTICE NICOL: Just a minute. (Pause) Yes. 

MS. WASS: Have you got file 7, tab 3? 

A. File 7, tab 3. Sony. (Pause) Yes, I have iL 

Q. This was a lext sent belWeen Ms. Heard and her assistant, Kate 

James, I.he one whom she asked not to send the film schedules 

for the film schedules to. "I have to leave ID. He hasjusl 

freaked out on me. He is drinking again. It is bad, worse 
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DEPP-WASS 

than ever. I need out. I told Stephen, who is with him on 

this trip, to help you with tickets for me and Savannah out of 

here. Can you please book us on the Red Eye tomorrow morning, 

please? Stephen will belp arrange." Then later she sends a 

text saying. "And can you elso see if you can redirect ell of 

these texts to me to Whitney's phone or just block him 

entirely. I need to make this move. Best to have his 

calls/texts sent lo her so she can keep tl1em to me." 

A. "Keep tlmn for me". 

Q. 'Keep them for me". 

/\.. 'Until a later time". 

Q. 'Until a later time, please.' Was there anything you did lhal 

could have caused Ms. Heard to say, 'I need out"? Anything on 

that plane journey that would make her think she wants out? 

A Well, we certainly had an argument and that commenced to be 

physical. and I run sure she was, she sounds upsel 

Q. Your account of what happened on I.he plane is very different 

from the account I have just put to you, and your account is 

as follows, and this is from p:inigraph 36 of your witness 

statement: "I remember the flight from Boston to Los Angeles 

in detail. I had drunk alcohol prior to and on the fllgllt, 

but my behaviour was not as alleged at all I was dra1,ing art 

sketcbes in my nol<!book, as I like to do when lravelhng, when 

Ms. Heard began to harangue me. Throughout the course of our 

(Page 304) 
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relationship. Ms. Heard would often look to argue with me, 

berate me, or abuse me verbally and physically. By the time 

at which I.he flight took place, l had worked out d1at tlle best 

way to deal with this was simply not to engage and try to 

retreat from the situation." Then you said, •1 took a pillow 

to the bathroom, locked the door and slept on the floor to 

avoid confronlalion": right? 

A Yes. 

Q. That is I.he account I.hat you stick to, is it? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Do you agree, Mr. Depp, that where there are accounts that are 

directly contradictory, as I.here are in this case, Ms. Heard 

saying that you were the monster, who slapped her, kicked her. 

and was completely under the influence of drink and drugs, and 

your account that you may bave had a sip of something before 

and on the plane, but you were quietly sketching in an art 

book and did not want any confrontation at all, they are 

totally different accounts, are they not? 

A. My account and Ms. Heard's account? 

Q. Yes? 

A. Yes, ma'am. I think you will find I.he same throughout the 

entire case. 

Q. Yes, and do you agree that where there are two such different 

accounts, so at odds with each other, it is helpful to look 
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DEPP-WASS 

for independent evidence? 

[Page 305) 

MR. IUST!CENTCOL: Ms. Wass, I om not sure that is really a 

quesrion for Mr. Depp lo answer. II is open to you and 10 

Mr. Sherborne 10 make submissions lhlll that is what I should 

do. 

MS. WASS: AU right Can I ask it a different way, and before 

Mr. Depp answers, I want to seek my Lord's approval Do you 

ayee that t'ffilrds of what was said In lCXIS al Ute tinie these 

incidents took place can be helpful as to -

MR. SHERBORNE: My Lord, this is exactly the same thing. What 

Ms. Ww is plainly doing - and she did it with the e-mnn 

and I waited a very long time 10 hear the question - is 

reading documents that arc not actunlly wrinen 10 Mr. Depp, 

and using him as a vehicle 10 comment on them. We all [(!)ow 

lhc practice, and it is a typi.cal jury practice, and because 

your Lordship is a judge and only listens to the answer, 

I have not got up every lime. Where we reach the point 1h11 

Ms. Wass is trying 10 get Mr. Depp 10 accept submissioos that 

she is going to make in her closing speech, then we have 

reached a time when. in my submission, this needs to Slop, 

particularly gi11e11 lhe time and how loog Ms. Wass h.as IBken 

and how loog she still has to go. 

1 

2 
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4 

5 

6 

1 
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DEPP-WASS 

MR. JUSTICE NICOL: I tl1inl<. Mr. Sberbomc, we arc going to gel on 

,vi1h this. 

MR. SHERBORNE: Of course. 

MS. WASS: Mr. Depp, can you please tum lo page 28 oro,e ICXIS, 

lhc lCXI schedule? 

MR. JUSTICE NJCOL: This is back to volume 6. 

e MS. WASS: Yes. 

9 MR. JUSTICE NICOL: Yes. 

l 0 MS. WASS: The bottom three lines. 

11 MR. JUSTTCE NICOL: Sorry, which pegc1 

12 MS. WASS: I am so 50ff)I, 28. 

13 THE WITNESS: Sorry, which page? 

14 MS. WASS: ll ts 28, tab l t9 ofth.< text schedule. 

15 A. Yes. 

1 6 Q Do _yous~ tl1e bonom thru tats? 

11 A Ye.1, 

1 a Q. They arc from Mr. Ocutcn to Ms. Ikard on !ht date 111111 che. 

1 9 plane had amvcd in LA She says !his. "Hc is 11P in the 

20 balbtoon1" Sorry_. "ttc as -

21 MR JUSTICE NICOL: Sorry, is !his from Mr. Doutcn 10-

2: MS WASS. From Mr. Oeutm ID Ms Hcatd 

2 J MR JUSTICE NICOL: Ya. 

24 MS WASS "He is up. he is in the balhtoorrl, mov,ng sl~1 ·, will 
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MR. IUSTICE NICOL: Mr. Sherborne, r ~ with you to this 

extent, .as I b.ave already indicated, that there is a division let you know when en rouce and how he is in the car.· Was 
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DEPP-WASS 

berween submmons which will come at tbe close of the 

evidence 111d the evidence iuclf. If Ms. Wass wants to put 10 

Mr. Depp docwneru:s which she say,,. or will subruit, arc io 

cca.Oict wilh lhe Slalemcnt that he bas giveo, and wishes to 

comment on those, then i1 seems lO 111c ll1Al she is entitled to 

do that 

MR. SHERBORNE: Yes, and she has done U1a1 throughout tbo 

Cl'OS$-C'<&mio•tion. obviously, but these arc a different class 

of documen~ beca~ as was revealed by what she said in her 

last commcot, which did nol have a queslloo io ii, Ulis is 

simply being used. as I say, as a vehicle to gel Mr. Depp lo 

say, •y cs, I aarcc lha1 when one sees contemporaneous te.,u, 

they arc helpful", or be will say they are llOI, and S001ebow 

that will be used as bis evidence. How can it possibly bo hi.s 

evidence? II is pure 5f)ttUladon. 

MR. JUSTICE NICOL: I bear wbat you say, Mr. Shctbonte. I ba--, 

already snid that I agree with you to the e.,tent or tbea'C 

being a division between what is appropri1ue in submis.sions 

8Jld what is opproptintc in the course of evidence. I run not 

sure that l go entirely with you tliat everything or indeed a 

1ubs1J1ntial part of what Ms. Wass is putting Is on the wrong 

side. 

MR. SHEIU!ORNE: My Lord. I was not sayin11 th&. I w:is saying !hat 

tl1ctc arc some things -

[Page 308] 

l DEPP-WASS 

'Z Chere Ill)' reason that Mr. Ocutcrs 11ug!,t have thoupt that )OU 

.3 \\UC nOI \lldl uw _you can tlw,k of? 

~ A. I do noc rcmcmbcr, 110. 

5 Q. Mt Ocul<ts seeds iUIOChcr text He ~ "He IS U1 SOl!le pal.II, 

6 ~you m1afu pest..• Cll\.}'DII think of why Mr Ocutas ausbt 

haw chou,bt lhat you w,re 111 some pain1 

A. I do nouecall. 

9 Q. "We arc on our \Vil;/ lo (undcar)" OY<r the p:11e. please 

l<l A. Ya. 

11 Q. "He bu been sick", Mr. Oculcn tells Ms. HW'd. "We 11e 

12 aoina to~ !um snia)tr co bed.• I am going 10 uk you co 

13 listen 10 a recordina The rd'=aoc, my Lord, iJ 11b l◄SJI. 

14 There isa trusaipt of this atl48JI and l◄8J2. l48Jl Is 
15 
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th" claim211rs vusion 8Jld (2) i.s the dd'aulants' YO!l'lion. k 

is an extremdysboct lnnscript and my Lord wiU appreciate 

why io a momcnL 

MR. JUSTICE NICOL: Can I just lllrn up the file? 

MS. WASS: Yes. 

MR. JUSTICE NICOL: Wltich file are d1ese in? 

MS. WASS: S. 

MR. IUSTICE NICOL: I think 5 might not be the right bundle. 

MS. WASS: It is at the back of- it has been moved. I do not 

know ir it has been moved in my Lord's bundle. (Pause) 

MR. JUSTICE NICOL: I have found l◄SJ, but ii~. "Accompanying 
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DEPP-WASS 

USB dri,., to listen to recording". 

MS. WASS: And then: is nothing else? 

MR. JUSTlCE NICOL: No. 

MR. SHERBORNE: I do not have an}'Uling else ciUter, my Lord. That 

is exactly what I havo. (Pause) 

MS. WASS: I am told Utey might be al Ute front of file 10. 

(Pause) 

THE WITNESS: Sony-

MR. JUSTICE NICOL: Just give us a moment, Mr. Depp. 

THE WITNESS: Sony. Thank }'OU. (Pause). 

MR. JUSTICE NICOL: Ah, I have got in file 10 a tab thal says 

161JJ. You said 148JI. 

MS. WASS: May I ask ,mat my Lord's documeal is called? 

MR. JUSTICE NICOL: Which is lhe bundle thntyou think it should 

be in? 

MS. WASS: I am told it is 10. 

MR. JUSTICE NICOL: I am going to pass 10 down to }'OU and }'OU can 

locate the docwuent }'OU wont. (Santc banded) (Pause) 

MS. WASS: Whal might be better, my Lord, rother th:in talcing time 

up, is ifwe play it and th<n, ifnccessary, it can be played 

again with !he rranscript when it has been located and 

everybody bas a copy. 

MR. JUSTICE NICOL: All right 

MS. WASS: So, could we do tltat and then -

[Page 310] 

DEPP-WASS 

MR. SHERBORNE: I think it would be better to have a transcript, 

particularly ifit is very short. (Pause) 

MS. WASS: I do not think it is fair U1at Mr. Sherbome does nol 

have it if my Lord has it so I am noi going to invite anyone 

to read it I stand by tltc suggestion, given this is not an 

ideal scenario, that we listen toil, the transcripts have 

been agreed to bavo been put in the bundles so they ought to 

have been there, and we can come back to this if necessary. 

MR. SHERBORNE: Maybe there is a better answer. I am trying 10 be 

pragmatic. ls this a good opportunity to take a five-minute 

break? That allows Ms. Wass to find this and we can proceed 

with this in what I alight call a more sensible way. It is 

just a suggestion. 

MS. WASS: lam very concerned about time. lfwe play this, we 

can move on. 

MR. JUSTICE NICOL: Mr. Shertiome, I am also a little concerned 

about the time. It was a practical suggestion, bul actually, 

I think it is best lo move on. 

MR. SHER.BORNE: l am in your Lordship's hands. I really would 

like a transcript. I think it is important that certainly 

Mr. Depp and your Lordship has a transcript and we have tlte 

lnmscript 

MS. WASS: When my Lol'd hears tl1e recording, you may lake a 

di ffcrenl view. 
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[Page 3ll] 

DEPP-WASS 

MR nJST!CE NICOL: I am going to listen to the recording. lei 

Ms. Wass ask her question and then I agree that it would be 

helpful ar the future for there to be a transcript, and if the 

transcript cannot be agreed, to have each side's version of 

the transcript Bul I do want to get on with this. Let us 

listen to the recording and we will have to come back to the 

transcript when il is available. 

(Recording played to the court) 

MS. WASS: Mr. Depp, tl1at is you on the plane. Would you· like to 

say anything about it? 

MR. ruSTICE NICOL: Wei.I, do you agree that it is your voice, 

Mr. Depp? 

A. l 6nd it difficult to -

Q. All right -

A - recognise that as me. 

Q. ff you do not know, that is fine. 

A. Sorry. 

MS. WASS: Do you remember anybody else on that plane journey 

making those sorts of noises? 

A. No, I do not I do not remember anyone making those noises. 

Q. !t is not a woman's voice so we can rule Ms. Heard out, can we 

not? 

A I do not know who we can rule out 

Q. You do not feel comfortable saying that that is obviously not 

[Page 312] 

DEPP-WASS 

Ms. Heard's voice? 

A. I am not saying it is Ms. Heard's voice. lam saying that it 

sounds to me like it could be pretty much anyone's voice. 

I have never heard that recording ~fore. If it was submitted 

into evidence, I have never heard that recording before. 

I hav~ never heard of the recording before. I would say that 

it sounds almost like some animal in pain. 

Q. Yes, it does, but I am going to suggest that you are that 

animal and if you were in pain, it was because of the 

over-<:onsumption of drugs and alcohol I.hat happened on that 

flight? 

A I have to say that I cannot say that that is me. l cannot 

id.cntify that sound as me. Therefore, I am sorry I have to 

disagree with you. 

Q. Going back to Mr. Deuters' te.'<IS on 28th, if that were you 

A. ff that were me? 

Q lfthal wcreyouJLJ!ught orlcron explanation as towh)·hc 

IS telllng_Ms. Heard that hc: would k«p IR conUICI \\ith her as 

to how you are- "We \\ill I~ ) ou know" hc:n he is en route :u,d 

how he is in the car. He ism some pain, as )OU might 

g\!CSS." 

A. Yes. 
Q. It helps understand those ti:xl~; do you agn:e or not agree'? 
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DEPP-WASS 

A 1 do no1 know that the two are connected al all. 

Q. Really? 
A No, I do not know the origin of the tape. I do not know when 

the tape was made. Is thae­

Q. Well, wrc has been -

A - metlldata on that tape? 

Q. There has been evidence and there has been mctadaia, but it 
was on 24th May -

MR. nJSTICE NICOL: Now, l think, Ms. Wass, U1is is stoning to 

get into the realm of submissions. 

MS. WASS: I will not start asking about melldata and the like. 

Mr Dcutm told Ms Heard you bad been side and be was png 

to &Cl you slr.lisht to btd. W,:re you sick when .)OU am-1 

back in LA °' were you s,ck on Ille plane' 
A Clearly 1( Mr O.:utc:rs is sendmg these tnts to Ms. Heard. 

I must been quue ill, yu. 

Q.... You must ha\'t been quite ill, and yei you s:aid in your witness 

statcme..!!!, 'I remember the flight from Boston to LA in 

detail", 

A Yes. 

Q. It seems that you have not remembered being sick at all It 

must be something you did not remember aboul that flis),L Do 

you agree? 

A There is nothing that says to me I was sic:k on the plane. He 

[Page 314] 

1 DEPP-WASS 

2 is t..xting her from, I do no1 kllow \'l!!ere. It =s we were ai 

3 my house in SINCCl:2a so I canno1 say chat he is rcfcnina to 

4 lho mating call 11w I heard 011 the n:cordin3, 

5 Q. You see, )'OW' actOUDt is 1hat really it was Ms. HW'd who 

6 disgr,u:cd herulf on the pl4ne by being unpleasan~ 

1 judgmental, argumentative and really you wm lhc peaceful 

8 party and just w~nt 10 Uie bathroom to get away from lhc 

9 problems. That is your accoun~ is it not? 

1 0 A. Thal is my account There is oaly so much - SOffY, 

11 Q. That is )WI' account. Could )00 look at page 29 in the le:l<ts, 

12 please, the third tcXI do\'1'!. You Sttll a !Cit to Ms. Heard 

13 some hours later. 

1 4 A I do not bll'IC the text. 

15 Q. You do not have the t<IXl? 

16 MR. JUSTICE NICOL: 1ltls is volume 6, is it? 

11 MS. WASS: Ye$, 6, 

18 MR. JUSTICE NICOL: T1b 119. I think, Ms. W11$s, )'OU said page 29, 

19 did )00? 

20 MS. WASS; Yc:s. (Pause) I-lave )'OU go( page 29? 

21 A. I da, irulcal, ya. 

2 2 Q. I have read out the two tCltls from Mr. Oc:utcrs to Ms. Heard 

2 3 and wider Iha~ diuc is one from you 10 M.s. Hcud. 

24 A. Yes. 

2 5 Q. Do you sec diat? 
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DEPP-WASS 

A Where Bl'C we talking, I am sorry? 

Q, The third text down? 

A. Yes. 

(Page 315] 

Q. It seems to have been sent about tlwe hows after the last 

text 1111.t Mr. Dcuters sent M!. Heard, do you agree? 

Mr. Dcuters's last text was at 7.38 and this one was at I 0.42? 

A. Y cs, I see that. 

Q. This is what you say to Ms. Heard: "Once again, l find myself 

in a place of shame and regret Of course I am sony. 

I really don't know why or \~at happened. but I will never do 

it again. I want to get better for you and for me. I must 

My illness somehow crept up and pbbed me. I cannot do it 

spin. I cannot live like Iha! aga.in and I lcnowyou can't 

either. I must get better and I will for both of us." 

MR. JUSTICE NICOL: "For us both'. 

MS. WASS: "For us both starting today. I love you. Again, I am 

sorry, so sony. I love you and feet• - there must be an "P 

missing there - 'so bad for letting you down. Yours.' 

A. Yes, I see lhaL 

Q. Now, if it was Ms. Heard who was the badly behaved party on 

that aeroplane, why are you apologising to her? 

A. The very simple= to that could be one of a couple of 

things. I was apologising possibly after she w.i.s UM!Sponsive 

to me uying to make things helter on the plane because she 

[Page 316) 

DEPP-WASS 

was~ Unlhrtunatdy, lhcte was, in some way with 

Ms. Henn!, becaust.she \Vould not let 80 of her beliefs, I had 

to condition, you have to condition yourself 10 use words that 

she finds pleasing as o~ to S0ll1Clhi.ng that will sci her 

of!', so there is a gmit ~ of ph1cation 11w was always 

going on, a great deal of it But also it could be that I 

could be apologising for something thnt I said to her if 

dungs did get heated and we c.xchangcd foul words. I could be 

1pologising for that or it could be stnight-up placation, as 

was the case in a lot ofinsl20CCS, IIJld I am sure she f..,ls 

the same. She bas probably bad to placa1c me or hide -

Q. Why did you say you were in a place of shame and reg~1 

A. Sometimes one has to say that because it will take the poison 

out ofhtt quill 

Q. But you had done nothing, if you ore telling t.be truth, to 

cause you shame or regret? 
A I do not I.now that to b.: true. I ffl4Y ha,-e done something to 

C411SC slwno: And r~ which IS W SI)' that I magl11 have said 

somcllun, u11I>· IO her I rrus!!! ba,c ,~ 1nsul1cd ha or 

made some comment. but \\il,n .. ..,,di an: b.:1n1 hwkd at )'DU. you 

hurl them b.ick, and~ :we m.m) umcs that one: feds grc31 

n:arct for ha\ inii doM that. 

Q. You sec, your ocamnt was that your behnviour was that you 

were sketching in your notebook? 
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DEPP-WASS 

A. Yes. 
Q. She was arguing with you? 

A. Yes. 

[Page 317] 

Q. You worked out the best way to deal with it was simply not to 

engage, but to retreat from the situation, and you slept on 

the bathroom floor in order to retreai from the situation. 

There is no mention there of any arguing by yoll lf that 

account is correct, you bad done absolutely nothing to feel 

ashamed or regretful abou~ and yet here you are saying "Once 

again', so not just for the first time, "Once again, I find 

myself in a place of shame and regret''? 

A. Yes, mian1. 

Q. Then you say, "I really do not know why or what happened"? 

A. Yes1 ma'wn. 

Q. The truth of it is, Mr. Depp, that you have no recollection 

about your monstrous behaviour on that flight? 

A. No, I have a very good recollection of my behaviour. I also 

know that once the plane touches down or when the plane is 

going into landing mode, I wQuld have had to leave the 

baUiroom where I was sleeping on the floor and come back to my 

seat. lfthe argument continued, if she was stiU upset, as 

I can guarantee you she was, then we may have exchanged some 

rather nasty verbal words, nasty words to one another. 

Q. A.nd what illness are you talking about: "My illness somehow 

[Page 318] 
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crept up and grabbed me"? 

A Tha!, to me. sollllds like I went sir.light to e.,cessivc drinking 

a!lcr the initial altucation began. 

Q facessive drinking on the plane? 

A Before I went to the bathroom or in the bathroom or after u,. 
bathroom. 

Q. So, now we should take on board that you arc accepting thnt 

you may have engaged in occs.si\'c drinking; is that the 

position now" 

A. lam being completely honest "i_!l!__yoll I <UU thinking that if 

I an, sayj!!!I that and l am apologising for something. I bcltcvc 

that it is very probable and sowids likuorncUung that I may 

have do~ post-

Q. You may have got very dnlnk on the plane? 

A. - post argument. As I was upset. she was upset. But 

certainly not enough time to get, as you say, black-out drunk 

or anything of that natW'C. Yes, I did drink when Ms. Heard 

would get upset 

Q. I am talking about this specific journey? 

A. Yes, and I am trying to explain it. 

Q. You arc saying you did drink on this specific journey 

excessively? 

A. Excessively is maybe, maybe overstating. 

MR. JUSTICE NICOL: This series of questions began with Ms. Wass 
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[Page 319] 

DEPP-WASS 

asking you what the illness was that you are referring 10. 

Tl IE W11NF.5S: Yes. \\iiat I am !}'ing to s:iy is d1a1 the mncss that 

crept up and grabbed me is probably that I went to the bottle, 

that 'I am sorry thnt I went to U1e bottle. I am sorry d1at 

you fetl this ,vay. I am sony for everylltlng that happ,!ntd 

I am sony for c,·erythingJ did, or anything I did• I am 

sorry to say, this was quite a regular oecurrcnc:e between us, 

MS. WASS: II was a regular occurrence for you to get excessively 

drunk and/or drugged up and completely forget wliat you had 

done; that was what was a regular occurrence? 

A No, ma'am. I disagree. 

Q. Let us carry with the texts, please. Halfway down that page, 

still on page 2.9, Christie, your sister, says: 'Do you want 

to tallc?" She sends thnt to Ms. Hea.cd; do you sec d1at? 

A. I do indeed 

Q. Then Ms. Heard says: •1 can't I am sorry, but thanks for 

offering, love you." Your sister says: "Could be things get 

better from all of this. I don't know but may Uy to be 

helpful and encouraging :ind supportive. I would love it if we 

could talk even a little. I want to help you both.• 

Ms. Heard said: "Yes, and I do hope he gets better this time. 

But I can't keep staying and supporting him just to watch him 

do it all over again. He has done this many times b•fo~ 

Tokyo, the island, London, remember that, many, many tunes, 
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and I always stay. Always believe he is going to gel better, 

and every Uiree or so months I am in exactly the same 

position.• All right? Now, are you able to say, and it may 

be lhat you are not. when Ms. Heard is talking about you 

getting better, is she talking about what you regard as your 

illness? ls it the same thing you are talking about, the 

excessive drinking? 

A l believe what she is refening to is my, or our approach to 

one another, that l, my approach towards her is more agreeable 

to her. 

Q.. Mr. Deutm Kilt another text 10 Ms. Heard, the next tcxt 

down-'Hey, he's up. He's much better, clearer. He doesn't 

remember much, but we took him through all that happened. He 

is sorry, very sony and just wants to get better, which 

:illows us to make him follow-up on that promise • Did 

Mr. Deutecs takt you through wha.t had happened on the flight? 

A. Mr Dcutcrs and l lud a con\'ersation. Ms. HC!ltd w:is still 

v-ery upset and I think very - she was very stubborn about 

beanng anything tlult did not nng true with her side or 

things. And on mllJY occas1011S. I am somewlut embarrassed to 

say, lhlll I had to tell Mr Deutc~ I recall telling 

Mr. DcUlers,just agree with whntever she said,just placate 

l1Cr I can't take it any more. no more lights. no more 

\'tolcence. no more frtak-outs. JUSt plaatt her Thlu was our 

(38] (Pages 317 to 320) 
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DEPP-WASS 

practice. 

Q. That was the plan that you cooked up with Mr. Dcutc:B, was it, 

when be 1old you what hnd happened? 

A Yesa We cooked up a plan to placate Ms. Heard, but in fad 

tbal was not cooked up then, ii was cooked up a lot longer, 

prior. 

Q. Before the plane incident al all? 

A The placation of Ms. Heard, yes, it Stllr!Cd -

Q. I uuderstand. 

A - quite a, a year or two, or maybe more before that. 

Q. Before this incident? 

A. Absolutely, yes. 

Q. Mr. Deuters indiC81cd that you did not remember much. 

A Yes. 

Q. Did you tell Mr. Deutcrs Iha.I you did not remember mu.ch about 

the journey? 

A I do not recall telling Mr. Deuteis that I did not remember 

anything about the journey. I remember having a conversation 
with Mr. Deuws 5aying. "Please, just !di her wha1e= she 

wants to hear, plaa,tc ha". 

Q. I undmtnnd that. But that convenntion was two years 

beforehand, you tell us? 

A. No no no. That placation started years before. lt became a 

necessary tool to be able to deal with M$. Heard without her 

(Page 322] 
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2 going into a ratha blgh energy screoming malch. 

3 Q. I 1Y0ndcr if you can help us as 10 why Mr. Dcuters might have 

◄ said: "He doesn't remcrnbcr much but we l00k him through all 

5 that happened. He's sony, vr:ry sony and he wanes to gc::t 

6 better, which allows us 10 make him follow-up on d11t 

, promise.• You had a1=dy said you were really sony, 

8 Mr. Dq,p? 

9 A. Yes. 

l O Q. But cnn you think of a reason why Mr. Deutcrs would say, would 

ll it placate Ms. Heard 10 say you did not remo:mber much about 

12 what had happened? Why would !hot placate M$. Hwd? 

13 A. Because for her, that it looks like she was correct, and 

H Ms. Heard likes to be correct 

15 Q. TI,en, Mr. Dcuters says: "He's teary. He doesn't want 10 be a 

16 luck up any more, his words. .•. (reads to the words) ... spoken 

11 to C" - that is Christie - 'we're going to se1 him up \vilh 

18 Dr. Kipper on Wednesday, hopefully. He won'! be skipping this 

19 time.• 

20 A. "Won't be skipping al this time", yes. 

21 Q. Yes. Did you miss an oppoinoncnt with -

22 A. Apparcatly I did, yes. 

2 3 Q. Then, over the p:ige, page 30. please. {Plluse) 

2 ◄ A. Yes. 

2 5 Q. "The doc wm ily to Boston. Hts a much bisger deal than 
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DEPP-WASS 

Charhe", is "Charlie' Charlie Dl1Mit7 

A Yes. 

Q. •rm not worried about bringing Ouirlie up, ru do that when 

he's awake.• Then, Ms. Hwd texts Mr. Dcuters, saying: 

"I've n01 heard from him, which I expected. I still WllD1 to 

ny back to NYC 1oday on the Red-Eye, !hough. I can't keep 

doing lb~• Then Mr. Deuteis said. "His phone is fucking up 

I'm restarting it ... (reads 10 !he words) __ and he wasn\ 

talking physically.• This was just placating Ms.. Heard, was 

it? 
A. Yes. 

Q. "I think he'sjusl 1cxted you. He's incredibly apologetic and 

knows he has done wrong ... (reads lo the words) ... fell like 

we're in a critical juncture.• Again, all said jusi to calm 

Ms. Heard down; is that right? 

A. I run trying to sec where you are. 
Q. Sony, where arc you, Mr. Depp? 

A Looking for whal you are miding, sony. 

MR. rusnCE NICOL: If you look on page 30 of the t~ schedule. 

TIIE WITNESS: Sony, 'fed wt areatacriticaljuncturc", [ see 

that now, 

MS. WASS: Then she said 10 him: 'I don't know how robe around 

him aflcr what he did 10 me yesterday.• Have you any idea 

what she might have been referring to? 
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A. I am going to say she is talking about the experience on lhe 

11Cr0plane. 

Q. Mr. Dcutcrs was on the aeroplane, so be would have known what 

she was !Alkins about, presumably'/ 

A. Y cs. she voiced ii pretty wcll. yrs. 

Q. Then she said. 'I don't know if I WI stay with him, I nttd 

time." Mr. Deutm said: "He wants 10 so: you so much. he'5 

distraught. Then, she said: "Don't \YOtt}' about the flights, 

rm taking the ear. Thank you.• Then she said: "He thinks 

he doesn't desave 1h11. Obviously he has no idea what be did 

or 10 the c.~tcnt that he did it• ls there any reason you can 

think of why Ms. HC41'd would be af the opinion thnt you lwd no 

id.=a what you did? 

A. I believe that Ms. Heard was very happy with the idea that she 

was correct about my black~ut or violence or screaming or 

whatever she, her allegations a.re. 

Q. 'If someone was truly honest with him about how bod it renlly 

was, he would be appilled. The man Johnny is would be 

humiliated and dclinitdy wouldn't say to me that he doesn't 

cksavc it rm sad he docs not tur.-c a beru:r way 10 re2lly 

know the scw:rity of his actions ycstaday. Unfortunately for 

~ rcmcrnbcr than in full, in full dcw~-ct}'lhing that 

~ • Mr Ocutcrs s111d this "He was app:illc:d. "ilo' 
I 1old him he k1dccd you. he cried • 
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DEPP-WASS 

A. Yes. 

Q. Why was it going to appease Ms. Heard for Mr. Deuters to say 

that you cried when you were told that you kicked her? 

A. Again, and I am embarrassed to say it, I told Mr. Deuters, my 

instructions to him were placate her, tell her anytl1ing she 

wants to hear, tell her tl1at I am sad, you know, because she 

will calm down if she has heard that she is right So, to get 

past this very fractured argument, yet another argument, 

Mr. Dcuters did exactly what I asked him to do. 

Q. You specifically said: "Tell her I don't remember anything, 

but tell her that you told me that I kicked her and that 

I cried.• Were those your instructions to Mr. Deuters? 

A. I did not go into specific instructions. I did not write any 

dialogue for him. I left it to Mr. Deuters to follow my 

instructions, and I trusted that he would get U1e point to her 

U,nt I was-feeling bad about having let her down and upset 

her, or whatever she says I did, just agree with it, to get 

through this, just to get through it As she is saying, 

"I can't take it, [ am going to leave him, I can't take it any 
more", v.el~ she was feeling that for a very good reason, 

because we argued all the time. I was feeling exactly the 

same. 

Q. She was feeling it because you were assaulting her all the 

time? 
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A. I am going to respectfully disagree with what you just said 

Q. Kicking a woman in the back, that is not the action of a 

Southern gentleman, is it? 

A. That is not - kicking a.woman in the back is not the action 

of any gentleman. Kicking a woman in the back is a horrid and 

damninga~t 

Q. You would call someone who did that a wife-beater, would you 

not? 

A. If someone kicked a woniao in the back, would I call him a 

wife-beater? 

Q. Yes. 

A. No, I would call him a sick person. I would call them an 

animal. I would call him a savage. I would call him a nasty, 

I would call them - it is one of the most disgusting things 

that anyone has ever said about me, and accused me of. So, 

I deny tl,at I kicked her in the back. Yes. 

Q. You said you would no! call a man who kicked a woman in the 

back a wife-beater, but do you agree -

A. I mean a wife-beater, I would call him all kinds of things. 

Q. Do you agree it would be a fairly accurate description of 

someone who kicked a womno in the back? 

MR JUSTICE NICOL: Ms. Wass, again, I think we arc getting into 

die realm of submissions. 

MS. WASS: All right (To the witness) Can I then ask you to tum 
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DEPP-WASS 

to page 33, please. 

MR JUSTICE NICOL: You are still on -

MS. WASS: Still on the bottom page. 

MR JUSTICE NICOL: 6/Fl. 

MS. WASS: 6/Fl,yes. 

MR. JUSTICE NICOL: 119, page 33. 

MS. WASS: Page 33. (To tl,e witness) You have sent your sister a 

text, you forwarded to your sister a text that Ms. Heard sent 

to you. Can you sec tl1at at t11e top? "She finally sent me a 

text, I will not respond, at least not in text and not right 

away. She seems to have figured it all out Happy reading." 

This is the forwarded text. "There are so many things to say, 

I feel there are not enough words in the world ro articulate 

what I want to say to you. All I can say is I am heanbroken. 

My whole world came crashing down on me, I feel so lost. 

I know this, I love you, more than I've ever loved anything. 

I know you are my one, my life's true love. Fact remains 

I can't imagine life without you and the inescapable truth is, 

being with you has been the best thing to happen to my life. 

But only you have the ability to take it away from me for both 

of us. I know you have a sickness. I know you are suffering, 

Johnny, ru do anything to be able to talce that away from 

you, if only I could. We have such a beautiful..(reads to 

the words) ... that is kiJLiog us. And that is what I am 
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afraid of. Seeing such a beautiful thing as our love 

slaughtered right in front of my eyes, and not being able to 

do anything about it That is what, who I am running from, 

that demon. Because despite how much I have tried to fight 

him off, you, he has been winning. I am scared, Johnny, so 

scared, I watch as this thing stea.ls my life out fr?m UJ1der 

me. He steals my man from me and replaces him with something 

terrifying and WlJ'ecognisable." 

that was the text dmt Ms. Heard sent you, was it not? 

A. Yes, it appears so. 

Q. She is describing the monster, is she not, that part of you 

that takes over in drink'I 

A. She is describing, yes, the - what she called, referred to as 

'the monster', yes. 

Q. Could you go over to page 34, please. Now, I understand your 

case, as far as Mr. Deuters is concerned, is that his brief 

was to placate Ms. Heard, yes, to say anythi.ng that was going 

to keep her happy; yes? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Your brief was to placate Ms. Heard? 

A. As often as I could. yes. 

Q. I want to ask you about a text that did not go to Ms. Heard, 

at al~ but a text from you to Mr. E!ettany. 

A. Yes. 

[ 40] ( Pages 325 to 328) 
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DEPP-WASS 

Q. This is sent a couple of days, sent on 30th May, so a few days 

after, a week after the Boston plane incident. You say this: 

"I am going to properly stop the booze thing, darling. Drank 

all night before I picked Amber up to fly to LA, this past 

Sunday." That is obviously a reference tc the flight from 

Boston to LA, is it not? 

A. Yes. 

Q. "Ugly mate. No food for days. Powders, half a boWe of 

whisky, a thousand Red Bull and vodkas, pills, two bottles of 

champers on the plane, what do you get ... (reads to the 

words) ... screaming obscenities and insulting any fuck who got 

near.• What exactly are you talking about in that text, 

Mr. Depp? 

A. I can sec it says I drank oil night before I picked up 

Ms H-d to fly to LA. I gtt thaL 

Q. ''No food for days"1 

A. "Ugly, mate, no food for days, powders-• 

CL What arc powders" 

A. Powdm would have been cocaine. 

Q Right, You suggested that I was including cocaine in 

everything. It appears from what you arc telling Mr. BcttaI1y, 

cocaine was involved1 

A. Well, that is to say, if this entire text is about the plane 

ride. 

DEPP-WASS 

Q_ You \\TOie il 

A. Ycs,ldid. But-

Q. Oo_you remember writing it1 

(Page 330) 

A. I am going to stop, 'I nm going to stop properly the boou 

thing, darling,. Drank all night before l picked Amber up 10 

fly to LA this past Sunday Ugly, mate No food for day!, 

powders half a bonle ofwhislo.'}', thousand Red Bulls and 

vodka,_pills', all that It does not necessarily rooin tru11 

I was talking about th:ll plane ride. I could have been 

talking ilbout what I was going through :u that momcnl 

MR. JUSTICE NICOL: Mr Depp, there is a s.:ction of the ~xt that 

says "two bottlcs of champers on plane'Lis that about the 

plane ride• 

A. Wei!, on the plane, yes, 11 is. 

Q Two bottles of clwnpagnc? 

A. Two bottles of champagne on plane, okay, yes, I guess that 1s 

iL 

Q. Thal was about the plane? 

MS WASS So, you arc talkinll, "I picked Amber to fly_to LA this 

past Sunday". 

A Ycs 

Q. Then: "Ugly, mate. No food for days , ... (reads to the 

words) ... pills", you think tl1at might be about a completely 

different incident; is that your evidenct? 
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DEPP-WASS 

A I do not - I mean, no, I guess, as your Lordship has pointed 

out, the two bonlcs ofch3111pagu< on plane, what do you get? 

So, I am going to say that I made a mistake about the full 

intake oo lh~lane. 

Q. You did consume more than you were previously admiUing,tQ; is 

th:ll right1 

A. Yes, yes. but it is not - I do not remember that 11 was one 

of those 01ghts like that 

Q. One of those flights? 

A. I have h:id several, yes. 

Q. You have h:id several nighted and you have had scvcl'al flights 

where you have behaved badly like this. 

A. l have had several nights where we hav.e argued. 

Q Well, we arc not 1:llking about arguinll, we :ire talking about 

the amount of alcohol and the amount of cocaine that you had 

before and on the Oight~ 

A. Yes this sounds like -

Q. It sounds like you ovmiid it, doc.s it not1 

A. It sounds like I absolutely overdid it, it sounds like it was 

n very sclf-dcstruchve momcnt and I was incorrect in my 

statement that I had taken, I had not taken cocaine and thin~ 
of that.nature. I ~ onlr say my apologies 10 the 

cowt in terms of tha~ but l did not remember Iha! flit,hl 

being such a, the entire flight being such a nigh1m11tc. 
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Q But you do not remember that flight, full stop, I suggest? 

A No, I do remember 

Q Where in all of are you sketching your a/1? 

A. At the begjMing of the flighl 

Q.. How long did thai last'? 
A. Until Ms. Heard started 10 Jc!Prc5S that she was displeased 

with me. 

Q. You sec. you said four lines d~ after the two bonl.:s of 

champagne and wlulr do you get, " ... an angi:y aggro lndi:111." 

What is that a reference 10' 

A Sony. Native Americ:111. 

MR JUSTICE NICOL: Sony, angry• 

A Aggro Indian. 

Q_ Is a reference 10 a native American'? 

f,.. Myself bei~ &nll!Y agro native Amencan, I have part of 

native American blood. 

MS. WASS: You are an aggro angry Indian. in your words. in a 

fucking blackout. 

A That is what it ~yes 

Q. It docs I ha,-e asked you mace than once. whether _you had 

parts or this tlight tl1at you did not remember. and you hav.e 

rcpCllledl)' said }OU remembered it all clearly. 

.-.. Yes. 
Q ·nll!n. t11at changed and you said you remembereJ tlmt did you 

[41) (Pages 329 to 332) 
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hil the bottle DI some Stage I ~ you had a blackoul. dad 

)'OU 1101? 

A I cannot uy lhnt I had a full blacko'l!, bcca®: I do have 

memories or the n,ght 

Some meniories7 

A Some memones or the night, yes. 

But paru oflhnt flight arc blacked our? 

A Appatcntl}• But, )'eS. apparmtly that IS wh.tt I am SIIYlni to 

Mr 8d1any 

Q Yes Is !here any n:ason ""Y you would say lhat 10 

Mr Bcttlny if11 were no1 uue? 

A Probabl) noc. 

Q. No. You canyon with the blackout, after thc words 

"blackout•, screaming obscenities? 

A. Yes. 

Q. You remember I accused you ofscreruning obscenities to 

Ms. Heard about her relationship, or what you were suggesting 

was her matiooship with Jll(lles Franco: do you remember those 

questions about an hour agp? 

A I do indeed. yes. 

Q. You denied lbat cocnplctcly s=aming obscenities of any sort? 

A I did not real! sacaming 8!t'/ obscmitics, but I did say II a 
cenain point the argument escalated quite havily into 

screaming at one another. And 1 rctm1~d to the bathrocm, 
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with the pillow. I do remember lhnL 

Q. Hoving heard that rcconiing on the plane, do you thinlc now 

that might have been you malcing those animal noises? 

A I cau.in.ly hope ooL But I do not - I do not recognise that 

as my voice. I \WUld say that it is something that I have 

heard once, just today, and -

Q. We can play it again, ifit helps. Would you lilce to hear it 

again? 

A No, I nm fine. Thank you very much. lfit is me, then I was 

d¢finltely dealing with a problem. 

Q. Yes. !I you 1Yerc blacking out, and you were denling with a 

problem, you may have done things that you have absolutely no 

mcmoryol7 

A I may have done things Iha.I I have no memory oC but 

Mr. Oeuters was then; Mr. Judge was then: ~ would never 

have let anything happen to Amber, Ms. Heard. And I certainly 

am not a violent person, especially with women, and I have 

been violent in the past, as we have spoken, when provoked. 

This is clearly is, I made a mistake, and I - pardon, I beg 
your pardon, I spoke out of tum, and I spoke incorrectly 

about a situation. 

Q. Can I just, for the avoidance of any doubt, try lo establish 

what your evidence is now about the flight li'om Boston to LA. 

Do _you accept Wt you ~ to cxi:<U"1 
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(Page 335] 

DEPP-WASS 

A Yes 

Q. Do you a«epl that you took cocaine? 

A I tlunk what we arc wking about 1s, \\here ,1 ~ys, •powders, 

no food for days", we arc talking dnys_ So, ii is not th~t 

I, 1hat I am saying I did cocaine on die plane 

Q Half a bonlc or whislcy" 

A "HAif ■ bo!tle ofwhis~1·. a thousand Red Bulls .ind vod~ 

pills, two bottles or champers on the plain, and wtw do _you 

get• Yes. 

I want to maJce sure ii is qui!( clw "~ you ~ saying 

aboul the Baston plane 1ncicknt You were very dnri, you had 

lalccn drug,s either berorc or durin,. oc bolh-DoJOU agree 
wid1 !hat? 

A Sure, for the purposes of getting through this, IC1's say, 

yes, everythins you have said I agrtt. 

MR. JUSTICE NICOL: Mr. Dej)p, I re:ili~ 11 IS the end of the 

afternoon, bul do not feel that you must say dunp for !ht 

sake of gening through !his_ What I w:1111 10 ~ 15 your 

evidence and the evidence that is the truth. So,_you ~II me, 

as besl_Mj'OU recall, whether or ~ had been lalang 

coc:a,nc e11her on the plane oc before you goc on the plane• 

1liE WITNESS I honestly, your ladsl11p. I cannot rcall whether 

I was doing cocaine, but from the condition d111 this ll'<l is 
e~ph11nang lo Mr, Benany, it sounds like 11 would not be out 

[ Page 336] 

DEPP-WASS 

or the quesuon in ill\~ 1hc cocaine would ha,~. 
I imajpnc, kepc me awake for a lot lon&er But I 1vtU say, 

bax4 on this !Cl<!, lh§!,,Jg it is ~ly tha1 I MS 

doing pclls. alcohol. cocaine, manJuana. and cCIUlnly as I 
had not ~ dcto.•ed from the RmicodoneJ I was on Ro:ocodonc 

as wel So )g, and~ I apologise for tltaL 

MS. WASS: You accepi that n0\1'? 

A. Yes, JUtC.. I accept !hat, ma'am. 

Q. We have a record of what you just said, and It wiU be on the 

, record. When I put to you earlier that you were under lhc 

influence of drink and drugs when the= was wailing on the 

runway, do you remember I suggested that to you, thAI you 

arrived in lite car aod kepi everyone waiting. you said this is 

always how it happens. Do you think now, you were wrong 1vben 

you said you were waiting to do a detox with Dr. Kipper and 

you did not want to overdo ii, or \IO<ds to that eff'ectl 

A I am scrry, I did DOI understand lhaL 

Q. ltmaybe-

MR. JUSTICE NICOL: I think -

MS. WASS: I can leave that 

MR. JUSTICE NICOL: - the end ofU1e day is fas1 approaching 

for us all. 
MS. WASS: One more !ext and thc.n I have finished whh this. 

Page 34, please, Mr. Dq,p. A week later you sent a IClCI IO 

[ 42] ( Pages 333 to 336) 
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(Page 337) [Page 339) 

DEPP· WASS l DlSCUSSlON 
your tiicnd Potty Smith. 2 MR. JUSTICE NICOL: Yes, Ms. Wass. 

TilE WITNESS: Yes. 3 MS. WASS: My Lord, U1erewerc tllrced1ys sci aside for 

MR. JUSTICE NICOL: 15 this the third one down? ◄ cross-examination afllie claimont in this case. Two 11U1t~rs 

MS. WASS: Yu, "My darling Patty 14, I miss you and worship you 5 have IUlly made that or caused dtat timetable to be called 

and thcte is nolhina wrong between us. Ncvucvcrcould that 6 into question. The first is that y<s1erday-it was anly 

happen. I bave just bcol so bq,ond bU5)' with the fihn here in 7 yesterday- I haw: not got the exact time, but Mr. Sherbome 

Boston and then back to LA for kiddies. When I was in New 8 asked to ask some questions in chic( 11 took slig)!Uy longer 

York, there were brief visits ond fucked and charged by 9 dlon he anticipated and I make no critlcism of Mr. Shcrbome 

horrific lights witl1 Amber. I fucked up and drank and got 10 in U1at regard because Mr. Depp likes to give vc1y full 

shitty. Was so disappointed in myself." 11 answers, llll some wi1nes.ses do, and again it Is no criticism of 

So, again you are telling somebody that you did not have 12 dtat witness. Hmw:vcr, it has taken considerably longer in 

I 
' j 

i 
I 

11 

to placate that you hid been, using your words, •shitty with 13 the main bcc:ausc of the length and repetition ofsoruc ofU1e 

A~~ th11 and I agree. )"a : : ans;: position is that -and lul niJ!it I appreciated the i 
Q. Have you seen any ICCUSalions that ,-.ercnwleat the time, so I 16 words !hot my Lord indicated at thed0>eofth• doyyestenlay I 

am not asking about 2016 und beyond, that is to say after your 17 that really~ were hoping to stick by Ibo timetable - I 
divorce, suggcstlng it was Ms. Hwd that had behaved badly on lB I revised and hoped to get through seven oftbo incidents I 
the plane? 19 today. I baw: got tllfOugh three. Not all of them are long, 

MR. JUSTICE NICOL: Well, Ms. W8J.s, ifit is the defendants' case 20 os my Lord knows, but in some cases, sud, as the Boston plane I 
that there is no text, then of course Iha! is a rnaner that 21 incident, there is a lot of evidcncc il!!d Mr. Depp, as my Lord 

you con include in your subcnissions. 2 2 appm:iates, now he has = ii, bas giYell an account which is 
I 

MS. WASS: All right. 23 more conlistcnt with lhcdcience case than tho claimant's I 
MR. JUSTICE NlCOL: I am not sure that putting Mr. Depp to a 2 ◄ case. 

memory test or various 1e.-us is going to be helpful. 2 5 MR. JUSTICE NICOL: Now, Ms. Wass, we are tm=ds the end of the I 
1-------------+-----------1, 

(Page 338) [Page 340] I 
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DEPP-WASS 
MS. w ASS: My Lord, that concludes th.at epi,odc, It hu ween, 

I am tJnld. considenibly long,er !hall I bad llllicipmd, I de 

DOI know ifmy Lord -tbinkintofrisult aaw, but could I 

add=s the court about timetable., pl.....? 

MR. JUSTICE NICOL: Yes, indeed. Can Mr. Depp #lnd oown from the 

witness box while you de S<l? 

MS. WASS: Of course, it is my Lord's prerogative 10 allcw him 10 

do Iha~ but I IYould have no objection. 

MR. JUSTICE NICOL: Good. Then, Mt. Depp, you an: acing to 

continue your cvidcou ccmomiw. 

THE WTTNESS: Yeo, air. 

MR. JUSTICE NICOL: Whal I have said to you prelliOIUly about no1 

talking 10 anybody about your CYideoo: cactinucs. 

THEWTTNESS: Yet.sir. 

16 l\,IR. J1JSTICE NICOL: But I am going to arry on hearing somcdung 

11 that Ms. Wass wanu 10 say to me about ~g. 

18 THE WITNESS: Cataloly. Thank )'OU very much. Apn, my 

I 9 apologieo for rnisrep,esenting uituation. I WU not Nlly 

20 awarc oflhecntiro diioaso pudoo me. 

21 MR. JUSTICE NICOL: All rigb~ thank )'OU. 

2 2 lHE WITNESS: My apologies, thank you. 

2 3 (The witllCJS stood dom1) 

2 ◄ 

25 

12 DISCUSSION I 
day. Let us keq, to what you MO! to say about tirni.ag. 

3 MS. WASS: I have bad an opponunity ofspealcing 10 those I 
◄ IIISU1ICliJlg ~ and my junioD about uming and I would as.it I 
5 tho! Friday morning is allocated for Mr. Depp's evidococe. The l 
6 good news, if! can put it this way, is that we have all 

7 considered the length or cross-examination of the claimant's 

8 wi messes. 

9 MR. JUSTICE NICOL Toe other witnesw. 

l O MS. WASS: The other witnesses, sony, yes. Ha.s my Lord got a 

11 copy or the up-to-dare timetable? 

12 MIUtJSTICE NICOL: Just a moment. (Pause) Yes. 

l J MS. WASS: My Loni will see thas on Friday 10th, the witnesses an, 

14 Sean Ben, wllo is, I think, 11 court at the moment - he is 

l S one of Mr. Depp's guards - and Kevin Murphy. Mr. Ben will 

16 not be o lengthy witness. Mr. Murphy ,viU be lengthier than 

1 1 some, but certainly not half a day. It may ,veil be thot if he 

1 B is put on a morning. cidier on Monday or Tuesday, Tuesday 

19 preferably, or actually Wednesday or Thursday, any of those 

20 mornings couldaa:ommodatea wi~ of the length of 

21. Mr. Mwpby, Ind Mr. 8e1l could easily be accommodated in one 

22 ofthco<hcrdays. So,myappliationi,thntgi,;enthe 

2 3 difficulties that have arisen, consideration is given to 

2 ◄ revislng the timetable. 

2 5 MR. JUSTICE NICOL: Right, 

(43) (Pages 337 to 340) 
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[Page 2104] 

HEARD-WASS 

MS. WASS: What wu dle anangement u you understood it to be? 

THE WITNESS: ThlU he would be within shouting distnnco, so it was 

not just Johnny's security. 

MR. JUSTICE NICOL; Just a minute. (Pause) 

MS. WASS: Would my Lord gm: me a moment, plC2SC. 

MR. JUSTICE NICOL: Sure. (Pause) 

MS. WASS; Can you explatn what you meant by sayio11 it was not 

just Johnny's security; wlly was, what did you mean? 

THE WITNESS; Tuey never, they did not, I did not feel safe with 

just them. They did not step in 10 =· protect nae. 

Q. As far as Mr. Cirino was concamd, how did you fed about his 

pru,,nce7 

A. I acxcp(Cd 11 dic umc that he may be • mutual friend and 

coold advocate for us to have this meeting. 

Q. Did you cvor envisage that you were going to be alone ,vidl 

Mr. Dcpp7 

A No. I always was under the widcrstandiog -

MR. JUSTICE NICOL: Just hold 00 a momen~ Ms. Laws, you wanted 

lo make ao objection. 

MS. LAWS: My Lord, ,u. I do object. Obviously Iha! iu leading 

~- I did ask about !his mcctiDg, and rhc facl ii wu 

in breach of■ rau-aining order, but I think the ci-oons, 

if! may say so, ought not lo be leading on lhis. 

MR. JUSTICE NICOL: Yes. 
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HEARD-WASS 

I did nol \\1llll to wlk about CV<') tlung that we, thal hap!!"n<d 

,n our m3rr,~g, and tn our r<latinnslup I did not \\ant to 

put Johnny in a situ:mon \\Tii:t< the 11ar1d or his lids 11,auld 

~no" full~ 11ha1 Ii.? ":is or \\hat he could do It 15 

cm~tng.. 

Q. Did you want to involve youm:lfin court procttdings in 

relation to your domestic history? 

A. No. No. I just wanted to be left alone, I just wanted him 

to leave me alone. 

Q. JUSl dealing with u,e suggestion that is made on behalf of 

Mr. Depp, that this is an elaborate hoax, you a~ not lite 

victim of domestic violence, you have manipulated pictunz. 

painted on bruises, dcstmyed propcny with your friends in 

order to implicate Mr. Depp, can I ask you this: has tltere 

been any benefit to your career since you hnve made these 

allegations against Mr. Depp? 

A. No. What woman has ever benefited from being the victim of 

domestic violence, especially accusing a powerful member or 

entity or one of them in her own industry. 

Q. The suggestion of a hoax indicates there might be benefit to 

you, I am asking you. have you benefited financially in any 

way from exposing what has happened? 

A. Not at all. I married and divorced Johnny without a pre-nup 

in a no fault State. In other words, my Lord, I did not have 
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HEARD-WASS 

MS. WASS: How were you feeling about $WIii Mr. Ocpp? 

MR. JUSTICE NICOL; Wdl, Ms. Wass. if )OU wut to aslc funher 

questions on lhis topic, )COi may, buttbey must not be 

lending. nnd I think in tl1c tollllity of her evidence, 

Ms. Heard has alr04dy painted a picture. 

MS. WASS: All right. In tl1at case, I will not pursue this. 

I Wlllltto ask you ■bout1111answeryou gave to Ms. Laws in 

respect of quc:stians about whether matters were going to Sia)' 

private or become public, do )'OU widmtmd, after lhe 

restraining order? 

IHE WITNESS: Yes. 

Q. And )'OU said this: 'I was trying to save him the 

embarnssmeo1, and this. fronkty•. 

MR. JUSTICE NJCOL: Save run, tl,~ embarrassrucnt and what was -

MS. WASS: 'And tllis', tell us what were you referring to? 

THE WITNESS: I acsrured to the oowwom. I meant no offence 1o 

this proceeding. I jusl mew -

Q. Cao you oxphun \~ you meant by tlw1 

A. E,~t ~ud more lluack) \\Cft conunlf ~t J.11,111U( mie and 

~ccu:Un~ m..: or bcmg J h:ar and \\ i1.S for'1Uf; ~ 1n :l fkb1C1on 

,,h..:rc I \\Ould l\\: intt'cu1n¥]_~c I \\CU.Jld h,1\1..! 10 ,u :t('lm..: 

poull .. peal tu IHU\C' 11 or splo!.lk ouI ;1~_1.1111~1 11. I J1d 1101 

wnr11 h> do th1> I J1d nm \\3Jll 10 -.:...:po~ Liu., I did nul 

want to C\-P,)C the 1u1J\1t)_ or ,,hat ,call) hJl'l..X'flcd tn me 
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liEARD-WASS 

to prove- I was entitled to 50% of bis and be of mine 

witbGut having to prove anything happened in the nwriagc, bad 

or good. It is a no fault State. I was cntidcd to SO--" -

MR. nJSTICE NICOL: Now. Ms. Heard, you have heard nte deal at an 

wlier stage in the trial wid1 issues of expertise on 

Callfonua law. Our rules limit die ability of people to give 

expert evidence to people who have that expertise; and nobody 

has suggested that you have that cxpdtisc io California 

dzvon:c law. So, I am going to curtail that parl of )'QUr 

onswcr. 

MS. WASS: That only leaves me to ask ooe queslioo. Have you told 

th• tnrlh io court? 

1llE WITNESS: Absolutely. 

MS. WASS: 1118Jlk you very much Indeed. Has my Lo,d any questions 

of Ml. Reard'I 

MR. JUSTICE NICOL: Just a mmute. (Pause) I de not think so, 

thank you w:ry much. Be!weeo you, you have COYered wb31 

I WU going IO ask. 

MS. WASS: May Ms. Hean:! leave lhe \viines, bo•? 

MR. nJST1C£ NICOL: I was just about to d1ank h.:r for giving h,r 

evidence. Once I have done tliat, of COlll3C, Ms. Heard, you 

arc fr•• to leave. The resnictions d1at I hove put on you 

about talking about your evidence until it has concluded hos 

now come to an end. Thank you for giving your evideoce in 
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[Page 2501] 

CLOSING - SHERBORNE 
presented. 

The fin;t issue which your Lordship will need to decide, 

lll1d one we say will not truce you much time lo do so, is 1he 

meaning of the articl¢. The claimant's meaning is that 

Mr. Depp was guilty on overwhelming evidence of serious 

domestic violence-

Mil JUSTICE NICOL: Let me just look nt the pleadings. 

MR. SHERBORNE: Your Lordship will find U1em in file I, tab 13. 

Does your Lordship have tab 13? 

MR. JUSTICE NICOL: I do. 

MR. SHERBORNE: If you tum to internal page - perhaps it is 

easier if! tell your Lordship. 

MR. JUSTICE NICOL: Paragraph 10. 

MR. SHERBORNE: Paragraph IO. Just to make good what I said to 

your Lordship moments ago, there it says that "the claimant 

was guilty an overwhelming evidence of serious domestic 

violence against his U1en wife", and then these important 

words, "causing significant injury and leading to her fearing 

for her life, for which the claimant was constrai.ncd to pay no 

less Uian £5 million to compensate her, and which result«! in 

him being subjected to a continuing court restraining order, 

and for that reason he is not fit to work in the film 

industry.' 

Just to make good what I said to your Lordship before 
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[Page 2503] 

CLOSING-SHERBORNE 

of them, some nothing to do with him -who have come along to 

give their evidence and themselves be accused of lying for 

Mr. Depp. [twas in one sweep by Ms. Wass, as she gave 

yesterday in her closing submissions, regardless of the fact 

that a number of them do not even work for Mr. Depp or do not 

have to rely on him for their livelihood, as they made plain 

in their evidence. 

Yes, we say, why else would Mr. Depp, tliis very private 

man as he explained, expose all the most intimate details of 

his personal life, even die very liltle privacy dial he has 

managed to maintain despite his successful career as an actor? 

The point will not be lost on your Lordship any more than it 

is lost on tl1ose outside of this courtroom. 

As for the ddendants~y could h~usl i8!!ored 

II.ls. Hc:ird's claims, but mt)' chose not to They could have 

Just reported them alongside Mr Depp's positiol!,_but they 

deliberately ~ciekd not to do sc. They chose instead. as I 
s~. to con,·ict Mr O.:pp and that is what th,:y seek to do in 

this court, to prove that this reputauon-dtstroying 

carcer-tnding allegllt1011 I.S true That is what your Lordship 

1s concerned abou~ true or not 

So, as I say, that is the short answer as to why we are 
here, but there is also a longer answer, and it goes back 

beyond the wticle being published in 2018. It goes to May 
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CLOSING - SHERBORNE 

about allegations which required some evidence to meet them, 

yow-Lordship \vill find them if you tum over the page to 

page 10. You will find a series of allegations relating co 

the way in which. as I say, the article was not properly 

researched and was presented in a wholly one-sided manner. 

There is no evidence at all from U1e defendants' journalists 

to meet that 

As if that is not enough, your Lordship will see. and 

1 ask you to read, paragraph 13.5 of the Particulars dealing 

\vith Ms. Kendall and the way in which she was misq_uoted 

because I will have thing.s to say about dial in due COW'SC. 

For the moment, that is the meaning which we ask your lordship 

to find. 

Mr. Depp, as we say, was tried, convicted, and 

sentenced. That is what the article suggesl:i. So the short 

answer is that we are all here because the newspaper, and 

Mr. Wootton, chose to pubUsh this ~=ely serious 

allegation, an allegation which Mr. Depp says, and has always 

said, is completely untrue. Not only that, they have 

persist~ in saying that it is true, and I will tJave more to 

say about that in due course. That is why Mr. Depp is 

bringing Utis claim for libel. subjecting himself to tl1is 

painful public process, because he knows it is untrue, as do 

all die people from various walks of his life - friends, some 
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CLOSING - SHERBORNE 

27th, 2016, to a scene we have watched on the screen before 

you, to Ms. Heard outside a courtroom in Los Angeles, 

surrounded by paparazzi photographers and the media, and 

sporting rather visible bruises. That is when her story 

started, as far-fetched as we say it has proved to be, when 

she ftrst decided to teU the world that Mr. Depp was a 

wife-beater. It is hard to think of a more public way to do 

this, however much she protested to the contrary. She has set 

herself up ever since as an advocate of the #Me Too movement, 

and in the process, we say, she has picked up her theme and 

run with it. New allcg.ttions of domestic violence have 

tumbled out over the years, new twists to those allegations 

and even more in the last few days before trial and in this 

courtroom ns she gave her evidence, panicularly in 

re,.examination. It is hard to keep up with them. Even the 

defendants have not pursued many of the most recent ones, 

quite what your Lordship is meant to do about that I cannot 

say. You can imagine though how Mr. Depp feels about it, 

given that some of them were not even put to him. 

So, the longer answer as to why we are here is because 

Ms. Heard has chosen to tell the whole world about her 

allegations of domestic violence. This is nothing to do with 

Mr. Depp's supposed PR machine or his supposed influence in 

Hollywood. This is because Ms. Heard has wanted to tell her 

[3] (Pages 2501 to 2504) 
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CLOSING - SHERBORNE 

story. On any view, we say, Ms. Heard is a complex 

individual, with a complex history, medical, emotional, as she 

described to d1e professionals who looked after her. Why has 

she chosen to publicise her claims is renlly not somedling 

that this court needs to answer, because tl1is claim is not 

brought against Ms. Heard; it is brought against The Sun 

newspaper and Mr. Wootton. 

Turning to what your Lordship needs to decide, as you 

have said on more than ooe occasion, and with respect rightly, 

this cowt needs to decide whether d1e allegation tllllt 

Mr. Depp is guilty of serious physical assaults on Ms. Heard, 

causing her significant [njuries, is true or not 

MR JUSTICE NICOL: Just a minute. (Pause) Yes. 

MR SHER.BORNE: There is a little more to ft than that, let me 

explain. First of all, the burden of proof is obviously on 

the defendo.nts. They need to convince your Lcrdship that dte 

allegation is true. Now, given that this is to all intents 

and purposes an allegation of criminality, serious 

crinlinality, the court bas always required a higher degree of 

proo( 

MR. JUSTICE NICOL: Just a nlinute. (Pause) 

MR. SHERBORNE: I understnnd your Lordship wants to take a note 

and I am not trying to dissuade your Lordship, but just for 

your Lordship's reassurance, this is dealt with i.n our closing 
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with, but if your Lordship wants me to address it later, 

I will do. As I say, the autl,orities are very clear on this. 

The reason why cogent and compelling evidence is used is 

because it is effectively a way of ensuring that the 

presumption of innocence is not trampled over; even in civil 

cases where, of course, as you are here, dealing witl1 a 
serious criminal allegation. As I say, it is of particular 

importance in a case such as this, where there are two 

diametrically opposed accounts, one side is obviously lying 

and one side is telling the truth. 

Critically, for all bar one of the alleged incidents, 

the acts of physical violence which the defendants are 

required to prove rely entirely on the account given by 

Ms. Amber Heard. Other than the alleged incident in March 

2015, at the top of the stairs, in penthouse 3 of the Eastern 

Columbia Building, which her sister Whitney is meant to have 

witnessed. I will have more to say about Ms. Whitney Heard's 

evidence and its reliability in due course. Suffice lo it say 

for the moment that she has proven herself, as we say, willing 

to lie to this court on oath in order to protect her big 

sister; not once, but on a number of occasions. She plainly 

tailored her evidence to meet tl1e changes 1M1ich Ms. Heard had 

been forced to make to her story, with one eye, at all times, 

on her big sister throughout her testimony, both 
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skeleton as you w,71 see. 

The way in which the court has required a higher degree 

of proof has beeo expressed if different ways in different 

cases. It comes down to this: this court requires compellin.g 

and cogent evidence before ii will find tl,at an allegation 

tha! someone is guilty ofa serious criminal offence is true; 

evidence which is clear, consistent and forceful. Why is this 

so important? Well, as the authorities recognise, it is 

effectively the operation of the comerstone principle of the 

presumption of innocence. The Sun may have forgotten that; 

Mr. Woonon, the author of the article, may have forgonen 

tha! it appeal'Z; 001 your Lordship will not It is of 

particular imponance in a case such as this, 

MR. JUSTICE NICOL: Th~ presumption of innocence is irnpormnt 

because someone ought not to be convicted of a criminal 

offence unless tl1ey are proved to be gwlty to the requisite 

standard. 

MR. SHERBORNE: My Lord, yes. 

MR JUSTICE NICOL: I am not deciding, I am not charged with 

convicting anybody. 

MR SHERBORNE: My Lord, if you look, for example, I tl1ink it is 

Eady J in the Lillie & Reed case, it is in our closing 

skeleton, there are a nwnber of authorities. I wiU not take 

time. if you do not mind, just because there is a lot to deal 
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metaphorically and as we observed quite literally. Put 

bluntly, tl1is one individual said 10 be a witncss for Mr. O,pp 

supposedly attacking Ms. Heard is a witness that tllis court 

simply cannot trust. 

As lo the evidence giveo by Ms. H.eard's small and 

supportive group of friends, the ones that is who have stuck 

by her, or her story, it is almost entirely based oo wbat 

Ms. Heard has herselfiold them and is little more than 

hearsay. Certainly, up w1til the staged events of 21st May 

2016. 

MR. IDSTICE NICOL: Just a minute. (Pause). 

MR. SHERBORNE: We say that they have been drawn into supporting 

her account, even al the cost of lying to dtis court, whether 

because they waru 10 please her or bc<:ause of U1e exercise of 

control which she seems to have; as other witnesses have 

testified to, with whom she came into cont.acl After all, as 
she said i.n a te.,t message sent by her 10 her friends from 

Mr. Depp's phone in August 2014, to which I will take dus 

court in due course, ''This is Amber", she suys, "and I get 

what I wanL' A message which ,ve say represents a powerful 

«minder of what so much of this case is about, 

For U1ese reasons, your Lordship will need to scrutinise 

the evidence of Ms. Heard with considerable care and assess 

her credibility since so much depends on iL The defendants 

! 
I 

'----:---=-=----:.--: .. ,--_-_----:==,--=--:c:_:----::-.;--------:_=--:-=-=---==--'---,-~--:-:::-_,:-_:--: ___ :---:-,,--_ --:----:_,-------. ---.---,--.----_-1_' 

MARTEN WALSH CHERER LTD 
TEL: (020) 7067 2900 

[ 4] ( Pages 2505 to 2508) 

2ND FLOOR, 6-9 QUALITY COURT, CHANCERY LANE 
E-MAIL: info@martenwalshcherer.com 

LONDON, WC2A lHP 
FAX: (020) 7831 6864 



C 

C . 

c\ C C 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

Transcript of John C. Depp, II 
Conducted on November 10, 2020 

yellow bellied? 

A No, I didn't consider Jerry Bruckheimer 

to be yellow --

Q Did you consider Sean Bailey to be yellow 

bellied? 

A Yeah. 

Q Why? 

A Because he wasn't man enough to --

listen, I was involved in five films in that series 

of Pirates of the Caribbean, and I was very lucky 

to be a part of that, and I was very happy -- I'm 

happy still that I was a part of that because I 

have a character that has made a lot of people 

smile and happy, and that gives me great pleasure, 

but when -- when these people, who have made 

upwards of four, five, six, seven billion, eight 

billion dollars on a ration 0£ films that you've 

done for them and your character is on the ride in 

Disneyland in three different spots and in Shanghai 

and in Orlando and all over the place, I've found 

it fascinating that not one call. 

Nobody was man enough to give me the boot 
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based on allegations, and -- but it was still okay 

to leave the supposed wife-beater on the rides, and 

it's still okay for them to sell merchandise of the 

supposed wife-beater, and they can still sell 

action figures of the supposed wife-beater. They 

haven't taken me off their rides. So I would say 

that something's rotten in the state of Denmark. 

Q Do you know for sure that you are not 

going to be part of Pirates 6? 

A Without question. 

Q And is that based only on the article 

that came out sometime after the oped? 

MR. CHEW: Objection to form of the 

question. I think it misstates the testimony, but 

you may answer. 

A I don't I don't recall the dates of 

what went first, how this all went down. I'm 

sorry, your question again? 

Q Do you know for certain 

A Right. 

Q -- that you are not on Pirates 6? 

A Oh, that I said yes, no. 
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And then I said is that --

Correct. 

-- based on the article in the newspaper 

sometime shortly after the oped from Amber Heard. 

A Yes, I believe it's from that, and I 

believe it's from the global barrage of -- of 

fraudulent claims against me that -- that have 

flown throughout the world on this thing called the 

internet and in various magazines and all that. As 

I've stated earlier, things that she said, did, 

yeah, I believe of course, there was no way they 

were going to let me in Pirates -- they were going 

to bring me into Pirates 6 if someone's out there 

screaming about you being this horrible human being 

and then the press backs it up and sells it to you, 

sells it, you know? 

Q So you assume that because of everything 

that's been continuing on in these allegations, 

that you're not going to be in Pirates 6? 

MR. CHEW: Objection to the form of the 

question. It misstates the testimony. 

A I can tell you the God's honest truth 
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right now, based on everything, if they came to me 

with $300 million and a million alpacas, nothing 

under this earth, on this earth would get me to go 

back and work with Disney on a Pirates of the 

Caribbean film. 

Q Okay, thank you. If -- in your 

complaint, you said at paragraph 5, quote, "Mr. 

Depp's reputation and career were devastated when 

Ms. Heard first accused him of domestic violence on 

May 27, 2016," end of quote. In what way was your 

career devastated at that point? 

MR. CHEW: Excuse me. ·which complaint 

are you referring to? 

MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: His complaint. 

MR. CREW: Could you show it to him? 

MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: No, I don't need 

to show it to him. I just quoted it. 

MR. CHEW: You don't need to show him a 

document you're asking him about? 

BY MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: 

Q That's correct, I absolutely don't have 

to. I'm asking him what his -- was your career in 
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geez, what's the word count and all that? I don't 

need it. It's now this -- is it public, this 

right here, his -- his decision? 

418 
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Q You don't get to ask me a question, but I 

did ask you, you're aware that it's public. 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Ah, that's a good 

So--· 

Well --

If it had been in your favor, you 

10 would've agreed with him and thought he was right 

11 and have been thril,led with his decision, wouldn't 

12 you? 

13 MR. CHEW: Objection to the form of the 

14 question, calls for speculation, but you may 

15 answer. 

16 BY MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: 

17 Q You would have believed you were 

18 vindicated, would you not? 

19 MR. CHEW: Objection to the form of the 

20 question. It's a hypothetical question to a fact 

21 witness. 

22 A I'm going to say the same thing that I 
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suggest that Elon Musk is financing or behind Amber 

Heard claiming that she has been domestically 

abused and violent -- and the victim of domestic 

violence by you? 

MR. CHEW: And just to be clear, Johnny, 

you cannot answer that if the information came from 

your counsel. 

A It's not going to be answered. It can't 

be answered. 

Q So the answer would be no, you have 

nothing other than communications with counsel; is 

that correct? 

A Yes. 

Q So let's go back. Do you have any 

evidence of even a dollar that Amber Heard has made 

based on the fact that she has come forward and 

said she's the victim of domestic abuse and 

violence by you? 

MR. CHEW: Objection, asked and answered, 

calls for speculation, but you may answer one last 

time. 

A You want to know if I have proof of that. 
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No, I can't say that I do. I haven't really 

checked in with her. 

Q Do you have any evidence at all that 

Amber Heard has received any kind of movie role or 

opportunity as a result of saying coming forward 

and saying that she was the victim of domestic 

violence and abuse by you? 

A I don't know the answer to that. 

Q All right. What do you think your 

reputation is today? 

MR. CHEW: Objection. That's vague and 

ambiguous. 

THE WITNESS: That's 

MR. CHEW: Objection to the form of the 

question, vague and ambiguous. 

BY MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: 

Q You have contended that you are damaged 

in your complaint, your reputation is damaged. 

What is your reputation 

MR. CREW: Objection to the form of the 

question. 

BY MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: 
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did yesterday to you, and I hope -- I hope this 

makes sense. Whether Justice Nicol saw things in 

favor of my case against The Sun or not, whether 

this case, wherever this may land us, let's say, if 

-- if I won every case, if I won every little 

trinket or whatever, I still will lose -- I've 

still lost, and that started April 22nd and then 

the last time I saw her in May or whatever it was 

or 

Q 

A 

2016. 

Somewhere. I've still lost, you 

12 understand, because I will carry this with me, 

13 baggage, the baggage of it, the accusations. 

14 Whether I win or whether I'm deemed some kind of 

15 horrible creature that should be locked in a jail 

16 cell or in a tomb or whether I'm king of the 

17 universe, I've lost. I've already lost by the 

18 damage done. So my continuing my search for the 

19 truth, my continuing to demand the truth is not for 

20 me to win, but it's for the people out there, the 

21 women, the victims of this type of thing who are 

22 not believed, who are being lied to by your client 
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pretending to be some new messiah of the women's 

movement. She is a fraud. Anything else? So if I 

can help other people by continuing, I certainly 

will now. 

MR. CHEW: This is 11? Thank you. 

(Deposition Exhibit Number 11 was marked 

for identification.) 

THE WITNESS: Thank you. 

BY MS. CHARLSON BREDEHOFT: 

Q I want to show you what has been marked 

11 as Deposition Exhibit Number 11, and this is an 

12 article in February 2019 talking about a lawsuit 

13 that was brought in May of 2018 by two of your body 

14 guards, Eugene Arreola and Miguel Sanchez. 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 of 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

the 

Yes, ma'am. 

Do you see that? 

Yes, ma'am. 

And if you could 

first page, this is 

move down to the bottom 

an article about it from 

20 Blumenthal et cetera. BNBD is easier than saying 

21 

22 

all those names. 

MR. CHEW: And De Blouw. 
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rely on my counsel to alert me to those -- those 

things. 

Q And do you understand in this lawsuit, 

you have the burden of proof to prove that it's 

false? 

A All right. 

Q Do you understand that? 

MR. CHEW: Objection to the form of the 

question to the extent -- well, clearly it calls 

for a legal conclusion. 

A The burden of proof is on me to prove 

that it's false. Well --

Q 

A 

I'm just asking if you understand that. 

I walk into this case with what I walked 

into the other case with, and that's the truth, and 

t~e outcome is the outcome is the outcome. I can't 

-- I have nothing to do with that. I can only 

speak my truth and hope that justice will in fact 

prove that Ms. Heard was not ever touched, abused 

by me in any way, shape or form. That's -- that is 

the truth. 

Q If you view the decision in the U.K. as 
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an opinion of one man and we go to trial by the 

jury and the jury decides in favor of Amber Heard, 

is your decision -- is your position going to be 

that's the opinion of seven people? 

MR. CHEW: Objection to the form of the 

question. It's a hypothetical question to a fact 

witness and it's argumentative. 

A No, I'm not going to say that's the 

opinion of seven people. Listen, it can be the 

opinion of one man, it can be the opinion of 200 

people, it can be the opinion of a thousand people, 

and they could believe that I did do these things, 

which I did not take part in any of what Ms. Heard 

accuses me of. It is outright fiction, therefore, 

I -- I can only hope that people will hear the 

truth and understand it to be the truth, but I 

don't think that the the young soldiers who were 

storming the beaches at Normandy -- I don't think 

they were saying hey, let's have pizza tonight. I 

think that they knew what they'd gone into. 

So what I'm saying is if -- if this does 

come out, the decision in this particular case 
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comes out in Mrs. -- Ms. Heard's favor, then that 

is what will happen, but that's not going to make 

me go oh, my God, I must have done it. Do you 

understand? 

Q All right, so you're not going to get 

what you're seeking anyway. You're not going to 

get --

MR. CHEW: Object. 

A I told you already, I can go through this 

case, and if it's -- if it goes in my favor and the 

truth is -- it comes out, I think that what that 

will do will help the people out •there, the women 

out there to -- to not have to listen to someone 

who's built a foundation, some foundation that they 

can stand on, a platform, and then use that 

platform to further their image as this great 

savior and public speaker and an ambassador to this 

or that or this or that. Clearly those are her 

goals, and I -- I am not going to be the 

springboard that gets her there based on her lies. 

Q You've asked in your complaint to be 

awarded all expenses and costs, including 
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF FAIRFAX COUNTY 

JOHNNY C. DEPP, II, 

Plaintiff, 

-x 

V. Case No. CL-2019-0002911 

AMBER LAURA HEARD, 

Defendant. 

- - - -x 
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Transcript of Hearing 
Conducted on September 18, 2020 

be required to provide all this information is 

denied. Mr. Waldman is still currently counsel 

for a party in the case. 

As to the documents that I guess I've got 

sort of categorized here as fourth RFP 14; sixth 

RFPs 1 through 6 and 8; and seventh RFPs 1, 3, 5, 

and 7, those are, basicaLly, the information 

r~lated to the divorce case. Reguest is denied as 

to those documents. It is denied under the f 

10 doctrine of it's enough is enough. You all have 

11 been through the divorce already. We're not going 

12 

13 

to retry that divorce in this case, and that's 

what! deem this to be aimed at. I 

14 The fourth RFP 1 and 2, that is to be 

15 produced by September 30th. 

16 As to the tax documents, it's granted in 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

part and denied in part. The documents which show 

the gross income are to be produced. The 

supporting documents are not to be produced. You 

all have got a lot of information on income, and 

this is just one more area where I envision a 

rehashing of previous other issues. 
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1 CERTIFICATE OF SHORTHAND REPORTER-E-NOTARY PUBLIC 

2 I, Victoria Lynn Wilson, the officer 

3 before whom the foregoing proceedings were taken, 

4 do hereby certify that the foregoing transcript is 

5 a true and correct record of the proceedings; that 

6 said proceedings were taken by me stenographically 

7 and thereafter reduced to typewriting under my 

8 direction; and that I am neither counsel for, 

9 related to, nor employed by any of the parties to 

10 this case and have no interest, financial or 

11 otherwise, in its outcome. 

12 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my 

13 hand and affixed my notarial seal this 18th day of 

14 September 2020. 

15 My commission expires May 31, 2023. 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

I 

i.~4--/4:-Jzdu)'J 
VICTORIA LYNN WILSON 

E-NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR 

THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA 
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